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2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Bl LL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2114 

Scnntc Humun Services Committee 

□ Conference Committee 

Hearing Dute Junuury 22, 200 I 

Tu )O Number 

Minutes: 

The Senate Human Services Committee was culled to order by Senator Lee with all Senators 

present. The hearing for 21 I 4 was held in the Brynhild Haugland Room, 

13,6 

DR, CONSTANCE KALANEK, Executive Director of the ND Board of Nursing introduced hill 

and supports amendments to it. (Written testimony), SENATOR KILZER : When you change 

the term nursing assistant, docs that change the term entirely from code or arc there other 

locations where it will still be made? DR. KALANEK: We have tried to be consistent in our 

changes. There may be some other parts that it in included and we can deal with it at another 

time. 

SUSAN McNABOE, Registered Nurse, Williston supports bill. (Written testimony) 
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MARY SMITH, ND Nursc:s Association, supports bill. SENATOR LEE: Arc there any changes 

in the actual procedure for discipline or conduct in an action. DR. KALAN EK: There is no 

significant change in the investigative process. 

PENNI WESTON, Registered Nurse and board member of the ND Nurses Association, supports 

this bill and proposed an amendment. (Written testimony)/ SENATOR LEE: Arc you familiar 

with the Medical Assistant Training Module that is being provided by Minot State University'? 

Yes, Do you have any information from ND regarding higher error record with people who arc 

administering medications in a non medical setting. MS. WESTON: When I came into my 

present position the medications were being administered by people that the Mrg did not put on 

the Registry of the Board of Nursing. Gave them the self study manual and let them complete 

that. We had situations of medication that was given for Parkinson's disease that is given in 

different dosages. We ran out of one of those .~trengths and because they didn't realize that you 

just couldn't break it in half, they were actually giving a wrong medicine because it docsn 1t 

become the same dosage. SENATOR MATHERN: On the amendment explain that we would 

be leaving in other folks to administer medications. MS. WESTON: Our concern was if you 

look at the wri.y it was (:urrcntly written they could delegate to someone who is not on the 

registry. So we felt that by putting that terminology in as a compromise, SENATOR LEE 

pointed out that. the amendment is the same as Dr. Kalunek 's amendment. 

BONNIE SELZLER, Assistant Director of Mental Health, Dept of Human Services, supports 

bill. 

(Written testimony) SENATOR LEE asked why adult foster care facilities were included, MS. 

SELZLER: Dept of Human Services met with BON and this is just clarification. 
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KIRSTEN FRIEDT, Registered nurse, ABLE, lnc of Dickinuon, supports bill. (Written 

testimony), She does not support Penni Weston's amendment. 

ELAINE D. TAYLOR, President of ND LPN Association, supports bill and proposes 

amendment. (Written Testimony) 

MELANA HOWE, RN, Director of Patient Care Services, Hettinger, supports bill and 

amendment. (Written testimony) 

SHELLEY PETERSON, President of ND Long Term Care Association, supports bill and 

amendments. (Written testimony) SENATOR POLOVITZ: Who was the questionnaire sent to'? 

MS. PETERSON: It was sent to all 88 nursing homes and 30 basic care facilities. 2/3 of them 

respond. Statistics in testimony, 

JANIS GAULT, Rolette, supports bill. I work as a LPN and am furthering my education. I 

understand that a 2-year LPN in other states is different. SENATOR LEE: So you support the 

continuing cd provision'? Yes. SENATOR KILZER: How many years have you worked us un 

LPN'? MS. GAULT: Since 1989. SENATOR KILZER. Would you continue to work at the 

sume time that you are doing your continuing education or would you have to stop work 

according to your planning. MS. GAULT: I would continue to work and do continuing 

education at the same time. My Grandparents stepped in and helped with the kids. 

VALARIE EIDE, RN, Nursing Home Administrator of Good Shepherd, Watford City, supports 

bill. Gave an illustration of Maria being a RN in 49 other states, but not in ND. I had no 

inquiries when I needed n Director of Nursing position. I could not hire Maria, even though she 

would be an exceptional candidate. 

OLENICE DARWIN, Director of Nursing Service at Good Samaritan Center, Arthur, ND, 

supports bill. (Written test.) Proposed an amendment. 
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BRUCE BOWERSOX, Administrator at Hillsboro, supports bill. We have a tremendous need 

for nurses. Next 5-10 years will put an additional strain on supply of nurses. SENATOR 

MATHERN: Have you ever had a situation where a nurse from another area lctl because of 

education'? MR. BOWERSOX: An RN in Minn. came to work at our facility. She took 3-4 

bachelor level clas8cs1 and after a number of years of trying this she went back to Minnesota 

because it was easier. 

CARY KROSTAD, supports amendment. There must be core values cannot allow unlicensed to 

administer medication. SENATOR MA TH ERN: Arc you in favor of or opposed regarding the 

30 hour continui.ng education? MS. KROSTAD: Opposed. 

ARNOLD THOMAS, President of the ND Health care Association, supports the bill ,(Written 

testimony). 

There was no other testimony. The hearing was closed on SB 2114, 

The meeting on January 24, 200 I was called to order by Senator Lee. Dr. Clayton Jenson of 

Fargo was welcomed to the committee. He is Dr. Of the day. He will give us a little insight on 

2114 and the availability of a Distnr.cc Lcarni(lg Program 1 capable of delivering nursing 

education to all facilities in ND. It originates in USD and is very well done. It is an excellent 

program for continuing ed or advanced education toward degrees. It is possible for every L TC 

facility to satellite. An estimate of cost is $2S00 per month. It is a mechanism for nursing 

education for CNA, LPN, administrators, trairdng people within a community, SENATOR 

LEE asked if it would be available on foe basis. OR. JENSON said that is was possibly 

negotiable. SENATOR MATHERN asked if we can get UND or somebody to fill in the excess 

time. SENATOR POLOVITZ: Is this philosophically a real plus to attract people to work in 

these homes. DR, JENSON: Yes, it allows rooted workers to go from CNA to LPN and not 
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leave the facility. A lot to be said to make maximum use of all communications we can us!.!. 

SENATOR LEE: The basic degree is what one needs for fundamental knowledge. Continuing 

cd is designed to keep one updated on new techniques and procedures. DR. JENSON: 

Continuing education is an absolute must. Good Sam's requires continuing cd to be rcccrti lied. 

It you don't have continuing education you become a dinosaur in the profcss'ion. 

The Dr. Was thanked for the opportunity afforded to the committee to hear about this possibility. 

Committee discussion was held again on January 24, Tape 1, Side B, Meter 39, 

General discussion on 2114 and 2241. SENATOR KILZER moved amendments, SENATOR 

FISCHER seconded it. Discussion pursued the SENATOR KILZER withdrew his motion along 

with the second of SENATOR FISCHER. 

Discussion resumed on Jaimary 29, 200 I, Tape 21 Side 8, Meter 14.2 

DR. KALANEK answered questions on the bill. SENATOR FISCHER moved amendments 

presented by Dr. Kalanek. SENATOR KILZER seconded it. Discussion ?roof of progression 

towards degree; transitional license, additional 30 CE credits can be in ~tthcr situation. Roll call 

vote carried 6-0. SENATOR MATHERN moved to further amend with Bonnie Selzer 

amendments. SENATOR POLOVITZ seconded it, Roll call vote carried 6-0. SENATOR 

POLOVITZ moved DO PASS AS AMENDED. SENATOR KILZER seconded the motion. 

Roll call vote carri~d 6-0. SENATOR LEE will carry the bill. 

March 28, 2001, Tape 1, Side A, Meter 35.6 

Discussion resumed on SB 2114. Voice vote carried for a DO CONCUR, SENATOR LEE will 

carry the bill. 



Bill/Resolution No.: 

Amendment to: SB 2114 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Leglslatlve Council 

02/05/2001 

1A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations 
compared to funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

1999-2001 Biennium l 2001-2003 Biennium I 2003-2005 Biennium I 
General Fund/ Other Funds I General Fund I Other Funds jGenerel Fund I Other Fundsl 

Revenues $~ $~ $~ $6,00~ $~ $6,ooq 

E,c pendlturas $~ $~ $~ $~ $~ sq 
Appropriations sol so! $~ $~ $~ sg 

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision. 

1999-2001 Biennium 2001-2003 Biennium I 2003-2005 Biennium 1 
School School I School I 

Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts 
$01 $0[ $g $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

2, Narrative: Identify the aspr:cts of the measure which cause fiscal impact and include any comments 
relevant to your analysis, 

The Specialty Practice Registered Nurse License application fee may generate $3000,00 prr biennium in 
additional revenue to the board. Estimate 30-50 nurses would quality for this type of liccnsurc, 

Removal of the residency requirement could increase the number of nurses that renew their licenses 
( estimate of $3000 per biennium), us it would nil ow nurses to renew even though they arc not residing or 
employed in ND. 

3. State flscal effect detall: For Information shown under state fiscal effect In 1 A, please: 
A Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts, Provide deta/1, when appropriate, for each revenue type 

and fund affected and anv amounts Included In the executive budget, 

Will not affect state general fund. 

8, Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts, Prov/de detail, when appropriate, for each 
agency, line item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected, 

Will not affect state general fund 

C. Appropriations: Explain the approprlat/on amounts, Provide deta/1, when approprlate, of the effect 
on the b/ennlal appropriation for each agency and fund aflected and any amounts included in the 
e><ecutlve budget. Indicate the relatlonship between the amounts shown for expenditures and 



appropriations. 

As an occupational board, the ND Board of Nursing follows N DCC 54-44-12 for appropriations. The 
Board of Nursing is fonded primarily through Ii censure foes from RNs, LPNs, and APRNs. 

ame: Constance B Kalanek 
1:=---:-:----:----=..,..,....,:---:::-.::-

0 n e Number: (701 328~9777 
IA,gencv: ND Board of Nursing 

ate Prepared: 02/06/2001 



BIii/Resoiution No.: 

Amendment to: 

SB 2114 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by legislative Council 

12/26/2000 

1A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations 
compared to funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current low. 

1999-2001 Biennium 2001-2003 Biennium I 2003-2005 Biennium I 
General Fund Other Funds General Fund I Other Funds !General Fund! Other Funds ! 

Revenues $0 $0 $~ $6,00~ $~ $6,ooq 
Expenditures $0 $0 $~ $~ $~ 

I Appropriations j ____ s-'~'------$~__.__ ___ sq__.._ ___ $_._~ _____ $_._~--

Sq 

1 B. County, city. and school district fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision. 

1999-2001 Biennium 2001-2003 Biennium 2003-2006 Biennium 
School School School 

Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts 
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

2. Narrative: Identify the aspects of the measure which cause fiscal impact and include any comments 
relevant to your analysis. 

The Speciality Practice Registered Nurse License application fee may generate $3000 per biennium in 
additional revenue to the board. Estimate 30-50 nurses would quality for this type of liccnsurc, 

Removal of the residency requirement could increase number of nurses that renew their license ( estimutc 
$3000 per biennium), as it would allow nurses to renew even if they arc not working or residing in ND. 

3. State flsoat effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts Included In the executive budget. 

No effect to state general fund, 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts, Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, 
llne Item, and fund affected and the number of FTE posltlons affected. 

No effect to state general fund, 

C, Appropriations: Explain the approprlatlon amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, of the effect on 
the b/ennlsl appropriation for each agency nnd fund affected and any amounts included in the executive 
budget, Indicate the relatlonshlp between the amounts shown for expenditures ond appropriations, 



As an occupational board, the ND Board of Nursing follows NDCC 54-44-12 for uppropriations. The 
Board of Nursing is funded primarily through liccnsurc fees from RNs, LPNs, nnd APRNs. 

~ame: Connie Kalanek -!Agency: ND Board of I !ursing I 
._pil_o_n_e_N_u_m_b_er_: __ ~(7_0_1_,_) _32_8_-9_7_77 ______ . ._p_a"_,e_P_re_p_a_re_d_: _12_/2_8_/2_0_0_0 ________ --, 
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Adopted by the Human Services Committee 
January 29, 2001 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2114 

Page 1, llne 1, after the third comma Insert 1143-12.1-05," 

Page 1, lintt 2, remove 11and 11 

Page 1, line 3, after 1143-12.1-15 11 insert U, and 43-12.1-16 11 

Page 1, line 5, remove 11and 11 and after 1'procedures 11 insert '·, and the expiration date of the 
authority of a licensed nurse to delegate medication administratlon 11 

Page 2, after line 25, Insert: 

11
~ 

11Transjtlonal practical nurse llcense 11 means a license issued by the board 
tQ a person who meets all of the requirements for llcensure by 
endorsement as a licensed practical nurse. except the educational 
reguirements, 

.1"°'- 'Transltjonal registered nurse ncense 11 means a license issued by the board 
to a person who meets all of the reaulrements for llcensure by 
endorsement as a registered nurse. except the educatjonat regulremants, 11 

Page 2, llne 26, replace 11811 with 1111'' 

Page 4, line 23, replace 11S1att11 with 11A person 11 

Page 4, line 28 , replace "Group" with "Within group'\ replace "an.a" with an underscored 
comma, and after "facilities" Insert ",._,apd adult foster care facUltles 11 

Page 4, line 29, replace ".ao.tt" with 11.w:" 

Page 5, line 1, replace uHuman' with 11 Wjthln human 11 and remove 11A licensed nur§,e mav° 

Page 5, remove lines 2 and 3 

Page 5, after line 8, Insert: 

"SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Sectlo11 43·12.1·06 of the 1999 Supplement to 
the North Dakota Century Code Is amended and reenacted as follows: 

43-12.1 0005. Board of nursing • Composition • Term of office. There Is a 
state board of nursing whose members must be appointed by the governor which must 
consist of five registered nurses, three licensed practical nurses, and one public 
member. Each board member must be appointed for a term of four years. No 
appointee may be appointed for more than two consecutive terms. An appointment for 
an unexpired term of more than eighteen months wlll constitute a full term. Terms of 
nurse board members must be evenly distributed to allow two licensed nurse board 
members to be appointed or reappointed each year. l=no MemeoFo ef tt!le eoa,a holding 
efflee eA Augijot 1, 1006, ffl&J' eeAtlAue te oorve ao momee,o fer U:iolr r-oopoetl¥o ton¥1e, 11 

Page No. 1 18200.0101 



• 
Page 8, line 7, remove the overstrike over 11 AeAewal re~ulres J;treef ef J:troffressieA tewards 11 

Page 8, line 8, remove the overstrike over 11meeting tho", after 11edueatlenal 11 insert 11,academjc", 
remove the overstrike over 11 re~ulroFAenta 11 and insert immediately thereafter 11of thjrty 
hours of continuing education actiylty", and remove the overstrike over the period 

Page 9, line 11, after the comma insert "specialty practice registered nurse," 

Page 9, line 19, after "certification" Insert "or evaluation" 

Page 9, line 22, after "certification" insert "or eyaluatjon 11 

Page 10, line 23, after "reprimand" Insert "J;iliice on probation." 

Page 12, after llne 9, Insert: 

11SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Section 43-12.1-16 of the 1999 Supplemen~ to 
the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

43-12.1 .. 16. (Effeetl'le Uuough July 31, 2881) Delegation of medication 
administration. A licensed nurse may delegate medication administration to a person 
exempt under subsection 9 of section 43~12.1 ·04. 11 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No, 2 18200.0101 



Date: 
Roll Call Vote#: / 

2001 SIL ,,iTE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2- I I Y' 

Senate HUMAN SERVICES Committee 

D Subcommittee on ______________________ _ 
or 

D Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken 

Motion Made By 

Senators 
Senator Lee, Chairpers,:m 
Senator Kilzer, Vice-Chairperson 
Senator Erbele 
Senator Fischer 

Yes 
✓ 
v' 

✓ 
v 

No Senators 
Senator Polovitz 
Senator Mathern 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) __ /? _______ No 0 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Yes No 
✓ 

v 



Date: 
Roll Call Vote #: 2-

2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. ,J. / 1 '-/ 

Senate HUMAN SERVICES ·--------------------- Committee 

D Subcommittee on ______________________ _ 

or 
D Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken µ ~ 
Motion Made By ,. / Seconded 

_/&.~~~~~------• - By ~~ 
Senators Yes No Senators Yes 

Senator Lee, Chairoerson v Senator Polovitz v 
Senator Kilzer. Vice-Chairoerson ✓ Senator M;:1them y 

Senator Erbele V 

Senator Fischer V 

-
Total (Yes) __ b 

No 

·-

Absent ..Q_------------------~-----­

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: 
Roll Call Vote #: 3 

2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL1RESOLUTION NO. 2..1/~ 

Senate HUMAN SERVICES Committee 

D Subcommittee on ----~-------------·----­
or 

D Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken ./) 0 ~ a.t., 

Motion Made By . n I . j... 

~ 
Senators Yes~ 

Senator Lee, Chairperson v~ - V Senator Kilzer, Vice~Chain,erson 
Senator Erbele ✓ 
Senator Fischer V 

Total (Yes)_L ___ _ 

Seconded 
By 

No Senators 
Senator Polovitz 
Senator Mathern 

.. 1,a.a 

_, 
• ,,.__ .. __,_ ~~•··-

- -

No 0 _..__ ______ _ 
Absent _., ~0-------- _____________ _ 
Floor Asoignment . ~ ✓~ 
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Ye1 No 
✓ 
~ 



REPORT OF ST ANDING COMMITTEE (41 O) 
February 2, 2001 12:07 p.m. 

Module No: SR-19-2213 
Carrier: Lee 

Insert LC: 18200.0101 Title: .0200 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2114: Human Services Committee (Sen. Lee, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS 

AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (6 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2114 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after the third comma insert 1143·12.1-05.'' 

Page 1, line 2, remove 0 and" 

Page 1, line 3, after "43-12.1-15" insert ''i and 43-12.1-16" 

Page 1, llne 5, remove "and" and after "procedures0 insert ''i and the expiration date of the 
authority of a licensed nurse to delegate medication admlnistratlon° 

Page 2, after line 25, Insert: 

"9. "Transitl9nal practical nurse license" means a license Issued by the board 
10 a person who meets all of the requirements for llcensure by 
endorsement as a .Jl@.osed practical nurse, except the educational 
requirements. 

1 O. "Transltlonal registered nurse license" means a license Issued bY--..1.M 
board to a person who meets all of tbf) requirements for llcensure by 
endorsement as a registered nurse, exc_!illt the educational requlrementfu11 

Page 21 line 26, replace "~t with ''.11" 

Page 4, llne 23 1 replace 11Staff11 with 11A person 11 

Page 4, line 28 , replace 11Gro@11 with 11 Wlthln gr0Lm"1 replace "and" with an underscored 
comma, and after "facllltles" Insert 11 J,..£lnd adult foster ..Qgm__f_ru;)Jjitles" 

Page 4, line 29, replace "ru.'.d" with "or" 

Page 5, llne 1, replace "Human" with 11WithillhY..man 11 and remove "A licensed nurse mat 

Page 5, remove lines 2 and 3 

Page 5, after line 8, Insert: 

"SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 43-12.1 ·05 of the 1999 Supplement to 
the North Dakota Century Code Is amended and reenacted as follows: 

431112.1•05. Board of nursing .. Composition • Term of office. There Is a 
state board of nursing whose members must be appointed by the governor which must 
consist of five registered nurses, three licensed practlcal nurses, and one publ:c 
member. Each board member must be appointed for a term of four years. NfJ 
appointee may be appointed for more than two consecutive terms, An appointment for 
an unexpired term of mot'e than eighteen months wlll constitute a full term. Terms of 
nurse board members must be evenly distributed to allow two licensed nurse board 
members to be appointed or reappointed each year, +he members of lho beard 
t:lolalAg offloe oA August 11 1806, may ooAUAuo le aari.io aa mombore for their 
roepoell¥e termer" 

Page 8, llne 7, remove the overstrike over 11ReAewal requires proof of progroeoloA towards" 

(2) DtSK, (3) COMM Pago No. 1 Sfl10·2ll13 



REPORT OP STAl~DINO COMMITTEE (410) 
February 2, 2001 12:07 p.m. 

Module ~lo: SR•19·2213 
Carrier: Lee 

lnaert LC: 18200,0101 Title: .0200 

Page 8. line 8, remove the overstrike over ""'eoUA@ Ike", after "ec4ueaUeAel" Insert "~wnJ.Q", 
remove the overstrike over 11 fet1ijlf8ffleAte" and Insert Immediately thereafter 11Qf.th.lrty 
ho.ura.ruQflllnu.lnQ ~du0aU.OilJlcJ.l'iUt, and remove the overstrike over lhe period 

Page 9, llne 11, after lhe comma Insert "arutC.la.llY. PHtQllc~ .reglalered. nuree." 

Page 9, line 19, after "cQrt!Ucation" Insert "or evah.uttlo.□" 

Page 9, line 22, ,after "Q.fll.Uflcatioo" insert "or eval.uallim'' 

Page 1 o, line 23, after "uu2rlrnaod" Insert 11.1.Place on woo.atlon/' 

Page 12, aftor llne 9, Insert: 

"SECTION 13, AMENDMENT. Section 43· 12.1 · 16 of tho 1999 Supplement to 
the North Dakota Century Code Is amended and reenacted as follows: 

43 .. 12.1 .. 1 e, (liHeellYe lhrew1h Jwly 31, aeeo Delegation of medication 
admlnlItratlon. A llconsed nurse may delegate medication administration to a person 
exempt under subsection 9 of section 43-12.1 ·04. 11 

Renumber accordingly 

(2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 2 SR-19-2213 



2001 HOUSE HUMAN SERVICES 
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2001 HOUSE STANDING ( 'OMMITTl".I~ MINUTl•:s 

BILL/RLSOLUTION NO, SB 2114 

I louse I lumun Services ( 'ommhtcc 

(J C'onforcncc Committee 

Heuring Dute Murch 7. 200 I 
. -··. ..... ~ . .. .. .. -

_____ J·~,p-~ N 1~m~-~-r . _ 
Jllj)_~_ L. ••··- -- - ... 

_Tupc __ l _____________________ .. 

Side A 
X 

T!~l~~J _______________ .. .... _ .. . X 

__ C()JlJ}llittcc r1crt§_W!}_lJ!.l.!t~ ____ Cb-/~i~ 
Minutes: 

Side B 

X 

Meter,, 
41 (iO to end 
o to end 
0 tu 4100 

Chuirmun Price, Vice Chairnrnn Devlin, Rep, Dosch, Rep. Galvin, Rep. Klein, Rep. Pollcrt, 

Rep. Porter, Rep, Tiem,m, Rep. Weiler, Ri.!p, Wc.:isz, Rep, Clcury, Rep, Mctcult\ Rep. Niemeier, 

Rep. Sandvig 

Chairman Price: Open hearing on SB 2114. 

Constuncc Kalu.!Nkl Executive Director of the N. D. Oourd of Nursing. (Sec written testimony,) 

On behalf of tho board, I wish to offer testimony in support of SB 2114 relating to the Nurse 

Practices Act 43-12. l, (\Vritten testimony included section by section summary of the revisions 

made to the Nurse Practices Act 43-12.1 along with rationale for the changes, proposed 

amendments to SB 2114, and Proposed Revisions to NDAC Title 54, Ruic Revision.) 

~_,_ Weiter: Can you explain in section 7, the transitional license'? 



Pugo 2 
I louse llumun Services Committee 
Bill/RcNolution Number SB 2114 
I tc.mring Dute Murch 7 t 200 I 

Kulun~ki Tho trunsitionnl license is tile license thul nurse obtains if she docs not 111~·c1 1h1.· 

cducutiunul requirements. Soun I .PN that docsn 't huvc on Assm.:iul1.1s Degree or a11 H N who 

doesn't hnvc Buct11,:lor's Degree would be lic•.:nsed u11d1:r a transitional license. 

~11- Weiler: Why then the need for the CL uctivity requirements'! 

Kuhuwk: Currently we havi: in plucc un ucudemk requirement for trunsitional license l~• ... •s, Tlic~­

hnve eight degrees to complete their degree, whether it is un LPN or un l{N. In negotiation wl1h 

fllcilitics und th~ hen Ith cure e11virn11nwn1 the bomd ugn:cd to gi vc that individuul a1101lwr option. 

So they could dwosc the 11cndcmic n.:quin.:111c111 or tile CE requirement to renew their lkcnsc. 

Rcu, Port~: On pugc 2 when: we sturt talking about the specialty practice n:gistercd nurse • last 

session we dealt with the rcgistcr~d nurse lirst nssistant and insurance mundute reqlliring 

insuruncc companil•s to puy the covl'ntg"~ and th'-' Board of Nursing got up and said thut thl'Y 

didn't need the rcquircnwnts of the ndvunccd prncticcs nurses so you were opposed to thut bill. 

Is this the board's wuy of getting uround that and next session we're going to sec u bill thut 

mandates scpurnte payments for RN first ussists'? 

.Kn.lnnck: The bill in the lust session was for tlw RN first assistants! spcciflcully. This definition 

is for any specialty process, It's the boards wuy of recognizing those individuals who do have a 

specialty practice. It docs give that additionul recognition, 

Rep. Porter: When we get into the medication administration progrum, some of the concerns that 

have come up relate to schools and secretaries giving medication. Is the medication 

administration program of schools exempted from that now1 or are they brought into it to make 

sure people arc working in conjunction with what is being done with the DD facilities? \\'hat is 

being done as far as schools'? 
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Kuluni,;k; Thut is u very complex issue. We've worked with the school nurses on lhc medication 

udminlstrution issue:, und there arc u number of schools thut do hnvc school nurses. When 11 

nurse is present inn school, they urc subject to the Nurse Pra..:ticcs Act and musl uhidc by lhat 

Act. 

B.c11, Portc[i If this scc1ion h\'.i.;omcs lnw and thcl'I.~ is 11 contrnct to u public hcnlth u11i1 for 

providing school nursing, und thnl m1rsc is not prcscnl over the new hour which II d1ild needs the 

mcdicution, then the pnrcnts l'Ull't uuthorizc the sccrct:1ry to give thul mcdic111ion • the person 

needs to go back und be rctrnincd in mcdk·ution ud111inistrntio11 thi.? way it is dcs\:ribcd in the 

Nun~c Practice's Act'! 

ConstunccKolunck: Thut cxcmplion deals with the I lumnn Servkcs Dcpurtmcnt. In light of your 

question, once the nurse lcuws the si.:hool proper the udministrutor is responsible for the 

medication udminlstrution, 

Rep, Wci~:z: Page 8, section 7 where you uddr~d the 30 hours of continuing cducntion • is thut a 

one time thing, yearly'? 

Constuncc Knlunck: It ls not specifically lnid out in the bill. The requirement would bi.? for 

renewal and be on a two-year time frame. 

Bonnie Selzler: Assistant Director of Mental Health Services, Department of Human Services. 

(See written testimony.) In response to HB 1403 of the t 999 Legislative Session, representatives 

from the Department of Human Services., the Board of Nursing, the North Dakota Medical 

Association, the North Dakota Nurses Association, the North Dakota Association of Community 

Facilities and other private providers met regularly to discuss the ramifications of unlicensed 

staff providing medication, The results of those efforts were previously reported to the Interim 

Budget Committee on Health Care as directed by HB 1403. The changes detailed in subsection 9 
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of Section 3 of SB 21 14 reflect the consensus of thut grnup. The Dcpurtmcnt of 11 uman Sen ices 

supports SB 21 14. 

K,irst~n Frh;dJ: RN, Able. Im:. (Sec written testimony.) Mcdkution administrntio11 and 

dologntion of nursing tusks have long been a grny urcu for nurses employed by ni~:ilitks sud, a~ 

AULE, Inc. I urge you lo plu~c u DO PASS on SB 2114. 

&w~~ Under the revision it says "muy dclcgutc" • so thut isn't a rcquirc111c111, so the l'l'llh:r 

or tho home could still dch,)gutc thul to so111ebody without your involvement, or docs this rl.!quin: 

your involvement if you urc 011 stal'I'! 

Kirsten Friedt: I will defer thnt question to lk Kalunck. 

Constnncc Kulunck: It is permissive in that nurses who work in those fodlitics arc covered by 

the Nursc Pructiccs Act. 

Mike Hillmun: Academic Afthirs, N, D. University. I don't hnvc prepared testimony, but I do 

want to speak strongly in fhvor of the proposed amendment - Section 7, page 81 lines 24 and 25. 

Without those changes the trnnsitionul license education requirement would not reflect 

North Dakota's current nursing practice, There would be vast difference in the education 

requirements between nurses educated in the state and those educated out side the state. 

Chairman Price: You're talking about the 30 hour requirements'? 

Mike Hillman;. Yes. Tho 30 hours would be removed and replaced by requirements developed 

in rules by the Board of Nursing. 

Susan McNaboe: RN, CNOR, CRNFA, Opcrutive Services of Mercy Medical Center, (Sec 

written testimony,) I am speaking today in support of SB 2114, specifically to Section I, item 8, 

(Discussed specialization in nursing practices.) 
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Hluhu: Tuyl~m LPN und President of the N, I), Licensed Prue I i~~nl Nurses Assol·iatio11. ( Sec 

written testimony,) NDI .f>N/\ wishes lo speuk in tilvor of SB 2114. 

Woioc Tuylur; No, I grnduntcd i11 I <J<14, 

rnuinc Tn)'Wrl No, I wus grnndlhthcrcd ill, 

Rcr,, Porter: One of the points thut you hrough1 up wus u nursing shortugc. 11nd we dealt with 

thnt in other uspccts of this committc~· curly 011. Some people tell tlu.:rc is not u nursing short11g~·. 

some people tell us it is just u clcmogrnphk proble111. Your education level is in the majority of 

LPN's who don't hold un Associutc Degree, If sonwonc is working in Mi1111csot11 as 1111 1.PN for 

20 ycurs und decides to move to rural North Dakota, do you think thut person is qua Ii tkd to 

pructice us un LPN in rural North Dnkota us they were for the lust 20 years in M inncsotu? 

Elaine Tuylor: I think you really have to look nt their experience, their capabilities, and I think 

the person thut is hiring them could certainly be checking into this. Yes, I think they nci.'d to be 

givtn credit for their work experience. 

Rep. Porter: The way that the bill is currently written is either or the academic rcquircm(,nt, or 

30 hours of continuing education and education activities, but there isn't anything specific to past 

work experience, So what you arc telling me, is that looking at their past work experience that 

the LPN from Minnesota is fully capable if they would meet the 30 hours of continuing 

education activity? 

Elaine Taylor: Yes, that is the feeling that I have, 
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li~ll1 P9.ll~ Expluin to me the differences in the work pcrform\ld by un RN and 1111 LPN. and 

whut modules urc uvnilublc to you us an I.PN for cducution requirements to do otlwr 

intcrvc11tion'! 

lilu.in~.Jnylor: LPN 's thnt I um lhmilim with through the association and others thal arc 1101 

momhcrs, they have the opportunity to work in charge positions• u lot of them work in dirw .. ·s 

and in long term cure. So those thnl work in hospitul Hicilitics mny be tuum lenders, hut they arc 

goncrully culled floor nurses. They am assigned X number of puticnts und urc responsible for 

them, Through our nnlionul fodcrntion we have opportunities to get continuing cducutioil, We 

huvc workshops, but we urc not required as u state to huvc X number of hours. 

&n1 Port,;ri I um interested in thl.l starting of IVs, typl.l ofmcdicutions thut cun he administm·cd. 

If you tako ACLS course, cun you inti mute a puti1.Jnt on orders of u physiciun - thosl.l types of 

things? 

Eluinc Taylor: I have not hud thut course, I huvc had an IV Therapy course which was 

conducted through the Board of Nursing. 

RCP1 Porter: What is the number of LPNs that arc members of your association? 

Elaine Taylor: NDLPNA has anywhere from 40 to 60 members at any given time. In the 

national federation there is 950,000 in chc United Stntcs. 

Penni Weston: RN and Board Member of N.D, Nurses Association. (Sec written testimony.) 

We support the revisions with one exception. We arc not supportive of the exemption of those 

individuals who provide medications in specific se~tings. NONA believes licensed nurses should 

be and must be involved ln any setting where nursing care is rendered, either through direct cure 

or delegation. Delegation implies licensed nurse responsibility, which cannot be permissive 

under the law. 
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l~J~ Your comments ubout medication errors .. lust session when the 1)1) focllith:s wc1\i 

in tnlklng ubout this purticulur exemption • if I remember right there i~ a higher rnh.· of 

mcdiculion errors wlilcrc licensed professionals work than where unlicensed profossio11als work, 

l>o you hnvc those statistics uvuilublc'! 

1>cnni W\tH\vn: I do not hnvc lhc stutisti<.:s. ''ne of the things I cun tell you why I believe that is 

the cusc is thnt in order to know thut 11 111cdicution error has occurred you have to lrnn.· enough 

knowledge to know that it hus been II mcdic11tio11 error. The mcdkation system is only as good 

us the people thut monitor thut. 

8cp, PortcG Docs every DD focility in the State of North Dukotu employ a nurse'? 

Penni Wcstoni I would huvc to defor that question to the DD facility. 

Rep, Porter: According to your objcclion to this truining in utilizution of trn:dication 

udinitlistration individuals, thl.!n every DD lhcility in the stutc would huvc to employ a nurse. 

Is that correct? 

Penni Weston: My objection is thnt there should be some nurse involved in some way. I bclie,·c 

thnt the way the exemption is written the facilities could choose not to have licensed nurses 

involved. 

Chairman Price; Do you work in a DD focility or long term care center'? 

Penni Weston: I work in an assistant living facility, 

Chainnan Price: You talked about defining nursing tasks and others are having heartburn with 

the fact that HIFCA is looking at feeding, particularly since there have been a lot of long term 

care settings that have used family members as volunteers. What is the position right now on 

inaking non-occupied bed, is that considered a nursing task? 



Pugc 8 
I louse t hunun Services C'ommlttcc 
B1II/Rcsolutlon Numbor SIJ 2114 
I !curing Dute Mnrch 7, 200 I 

f1:nni Wc~1vn: I defer thal lo the Board of Nursing wl11:1hcr lhcy consider lhal a nursing task or 

not. 

Omirnum Price: Just bccuusc II tusk is dcli11cd a nursing task I have a real situution u hl..'d that 

hus nobody in it being ~:onsidcrcd a nursing tusk, 

Vice Chuirmnn P~: I assume you made 1he s11111e arguments to lhe ad ho<.: co1111nitt1.•c. 

Penni WcstQJJ.~ Yes we did. 

Vice Chuirmnn Devlin: llow 1111my nurses there un.~ in the state that would quuli l'y to belong lo 

your orgnnizution, and how muny do'? 

Penni Wcstpn;, The licensed nurses, the RN's in the state, tlw stutistics un: about I oc1/;1 of tile 

eligible populntion, Right uround 700 

Mclanu Howe: Director of Patient Care Services, West River Regional Medical Center and 

President of the North Dakotu Organization of Nurse Executives. (Sec written testimony.) I um 

speaking in support of SB 2114 and spcci fically Sections I anti 3 us they n~Ltc to supct·vision 

through delegation anlt licensul'C, The proposed revisions arc timely. practical, and make good 

sense. 

Chairman Price: The question I have is the change from nurse assistant to unlicensed assisted 

person. How is the public going to perceive this'? How arc you going to define that person. Arc 

you going to say to that person "we're going to huvc an unlicensed assisted person come in to -

whatever" - how is the public going to review the change'? 

Melana Howe: I don't know that the public will really be aware of the change. There name tugs 

don't say unlicensed - they say respiratory therapist, surgical technician - all these arc cclii tied. 

It is a team these days. The way the wording is changed, it recognizes everybody. 

~hairman Price: Will we not here ofCNA's anymore? 
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Mulnno Howe: Their lugs will contim1c to suy < 'NA - it just won't say unlicensed. 

jicJ), Port~r: Arc you huving troubli.: obtuining and rciuining nurses in your rnrnl area'! 

M~lunu I !owe: No, but crunches arc occurring in otlwr nn:us. not nurses, hut 111 lub techs, 

lnundry, dietary, etc. I think there is II crurH.:h in lwalth CUJ'I.' in rurnl North Dakotu. I think so111c 

of it is economics of the business, 1111d cco110111ics of nirnl /\mcricn. In health 1.·are there b some 

rcnlly icky jobs, thut is the reality of thl! business. There arc some horl'ibli: shil\s, so111~· lwrl'ihk 

responsibilities - liubility wise as lhn1s just th!.! job itself, You urc doing some nasty type hands 

on work, There arc people who urcn 't even drawn to this bllsincss because of that. 

Rep, Porter; Spccifkully looking 111 this bill, in th!.) portion dealing with transitional liccnsl.)s, if 

you hud the opportumty to him nn RN from Montwrn that had worked fol' I 0- 15 years in that 

stute, would sec that just the ability to do 30 hours of continuing education in onkr to work in 

North Dakota would suffice, or oo you think they should have to go back to school and get a 

Bachelor's Degree in order to work in North Dukotn. 

Molanu Howe: You're talking to un old nurse and I have worked in six different states in my 

nursing career. Some of the states require continuing education. Most of the states did not. 

North Dakota is the only state that required u four year degree. I 'vc seen nurses with degrees, 

I've seen nurses with two y~ur RN 's (two year Associate Degree). I support the 30 credit hours 

as an option. I think this industry has changed a lot. Especially the registered nurses in the 

specialty areas, the neonatal areas, the ICU - whatever, They are functioning almost at the level 

as residents function nt. I do not think we should cut education requirements. I think all states 

should require continuing ed. What this docs is it requires those of us that were licensed before 

1988 to continue to move forward and progress. 
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~Jtunl Will« Director of Nursingt Buptist I lomc, Inc. The question uskcd curlier on Section 2, 

line I 8 rcgurding hnving un unlicensed person on the numc tug, cuch of the facilities would be 

nllowcd to use n numc for that unlicensed assisted person. I huvc had the opportunity to 

interview, hire, nnd cvnluutc stuff. Do I think thul 30 continuing credit hours arc going to b~• 

enough to sny thut person cnn prncticc in North Dukota • I cun't unswcr that. I think there HI''-' u 

lot of people with Buchclor·s Degrees. Some ol' them urc great, some of them me duds, It 

depends rcully on the person, and I do agree that it depends on their experience, I don't think 

thut is something thut the committee or could be uddrcsscd in luw. I think that should be lctl to 

the profcssionul orgunizution of the Bou rd of Nursing working with their members to mukc thut 

dctcrminutlon, I don't think North Dakota should give up their educational rcquircrmmts - the 

Buchclor's Degree or an Associutc's Degree, but I do believe in experience. 

Rep, Weisz: Do you feel the standnrd nmsing cure in the surrounding states is substantially 

lower than North Dakota'? 

Grant Wilz: I haven lot of pride in North Dakota. so I would not say the standard of care is less 

than other places, I think the people and the education that we offer - I think we do u better job, 

Rose Stoller: Executive Director of the Mental Health Association of North Dakota, We support 

this bill with one exception. We tcsti fled lust session nnd renew our concerns today about the 

section allowing for medication administration by non-nurses in residential treatment centers\ 

facilities for persons with developmental disabilities, adult foster care facilities, and regional 

human service centers, Our concern is primarily to the administration of medications to persons 

with mental illness. 
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Sluilly P!i:lC!fillll..i. President of the North Dukotu Long Term ('me Associution, ( Written 

testimony,) (Briefly outlined the Associution's position on cducution r~·quircmerlls 1hr 1111rscs.) 

We urc supportive of all uspccts of SB 2114 und respectively request your support. 

R1tn, Klein: How many classroom credits do~~s it take un LPN to get 1111 l{N dcgn:c'? 

Shol~PQtcrson: I don't know. 

Mory Ann Mnrsh: Chuir of the Nursing Department, Dickinson Stutc University. TIH.' LPN is 

required to complete 65 credit hours in order to get their Associutc's Degree. So we would need 

to tnkc u look n perspective student frum thdr out-of-stutc program and how their program they 

gruduutcd from co111purcs with ours, and then al low upprovt~'. if they ure from an accl'cdilcd 

progrum, 

Rep. K)cjn: The North Dakotu huvc a law that you huvc to huvc 44 hours from the i11stitutc to 

graduutc from that institution, Docs that apply to nurses also'? 

Mary Ann Marsh: The progrnm thut we have at Dickinson State is an Associutc of ,\pplicd 

Science and Pradicc Nursing. It is a 65 credit hour program which includes general education 

courses as well as the nur~ing courses, So is the 44 hours a general education requirement for an 

Associate's Degree? 

Rep, Klein: No, this is on u four year dcg1·cc. 

Mary Ann Marsh: Oh, for the on- campus. Yes, there is a minimum requirement. 

Yicc Chairman Devlin: Shelly, are you more comfortable leaving the 30 hours in or you okay 

with just leaving it wide open and leaving it with the bonrd? 

Shelly Peterson: We arc very comfortable with the 30 hours. We have a very positive working 

relationship with the Board of Nursing. We have a greater comfort when we know what the law 

says. 
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AnmJd Thomas: J>rci;idcnt of the North l>uk<Jtu l lcullh Cure Association. We ugrcc with the 

Board of Nurslng's decision. 

Evol)m QuhdS'Yi Senior Executive und Chief Nursing Offkcr, McritCurc. (Sec written 

testimony,) I um here ((J spcuk in support of SB 21 I 4. H is our belief thut u DO PASS VOTli on 

SB 2114 would provide for the trnnsitionul licc11surc needed to provide incentive for nmscs in 

border communities to begin practicing in North Dukotu. It would ullow time to uddrcss th!J 

long .. tcrm need for solutions rut her thun a drumutic dismantling of a system of cxccllcncc in 

nursing, 

Rep, Metcalf: Is it eusier in Minnesota to get nurses tlrnn it is in North Dukotu'! 

Evelyn Quigley: I would suy that on an avcrugc we huvc openings for 25 to 30 nurses, and thut 

would include licensed practical nurses and RNs. Be(;uusc our hospital is located in 

North Dakota1 it is more challcngmg at times to have prn,;itions within the hospital because nurses 

from the hospital move into umbulutory cure to have another experience, The hours make a 

difference. That is where health care is going is into ambulatory service, 

Rep, Metcalf: Arc there nurses in Minnesota that would be willing to work in North Dakota that 

cannot or will not because of the cducutionul requirements'? 

Evelyn Quigley_;, I am not certain about nurses that are not working in No11h Dakota because of 

the requirements. We do have nurses in North Dakota that are there working toward their 

education. We work with this through tuition reimbursement. We work this through our 

professional organizations. 

Glenn Thom: President, N.D. Society for Respiratory Care. (See written t1.!stimony.) As 

respiratory therapists licensed to deliver patient care alongside the nurses in the State of North 

Dakota, we feel the amendments made in Reengrossed SB 2114 are positive changes to the North 
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Dakota Century Code, with one notable exception. The clients described in lines J and 4 of page 

5 do not fall into the category of persons which can safely be covered by the services of 

"unlicensed assistivc personnel". We recommend that unlicensed assistivc personnel be excluded 

from the delivery of medications to residents of facilities licensed under Chapter 15-16. 

Rep. Porter: Were you involved in the interim negotiations of this particular part of this Century 

Code'? 

Glen Thom: I was not, but I came one on one with the Board of Nursing. 

Chairman Price: In your career as a health care professional have you encountered problems 

with patients in these facilities that have had medication administrations'? 

Glen Thom: What typically happened is as a respiratory therapist we get to sec these people afkr 

they have aspirated and contracted pneumonia w some of the individuals on mechanical 

ventilators. Typically we will get them when they have gone down the road already as part of a 

bad effect of not being monitored appropriately. 

Chairman Price: Were these people in u social model or a medical model'? 

Olen Thom: They were in a social model, originally. 

Chairman Price: Dr. Kalanck, we have a couple of more questions for you if you don't mind. 

Vice Chahman Devlin: I would like you to tell the committee specifically what your intent will 

be under the language requirements us established by the board. Has the board discussed this? 

Constance Kalanek: The board hasn't looked at it in detail. They have given it a curso··• · nmount 

of discussion. Some of the things discussed were define continuous practice, to define 

cont1;1uing education activity. Defining the experienced nurse coming into North Dakota, and 

then to clearly outline what contirtuing education activities would be acceptable by the bonrd. 
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All those things need lo be explored in grcut detail. That is why we use the Nursing Practice 

Committee which is made up of ubout 25 individuals. 

Vice Chairman Devlin: When I sec this next time~ the administrative rules won't all ofa sudden 

say a l 00 hours of continuing education or something like that'? 

Constance Kalanek: I would hope not. 

Vice Chairman Devlin: Do you have a spccitk number for even general areas - is that JO hours 

in the realm of what you arc talking about'? 

Constance Kalanck: I think we need to look at other states to sec what their requirements arc. 

We are currently in the process of conducting a survey of 1,500 nurses here in the state on the 

continuing education competent area, and we arc presently tabulating that data, We will review 

that also to help us outline what the nurses think is responsible. We expect there may be some 

changes requirements for rc11cwals for all nurses. 

Rep, Clearyi Could we add "no more thun 30 hours11
, and that would maybe be satisfactory'? 

Constance Kalanek: The univcrnity system spoke in favor of this continuing education 

amendment. We negotiated with them yesterday and discussed this at great length, and we were 

nble to come to a consensus that they would not oppose the continuing Ed options. It was ten to 

the board to decide what would be appropriate number of hours, 

.&mJ.. Cleary: I like it this wny ~ the amendment N because then you can take into considcrution u 

lot of other factors. 

Rep, Wciszi, The current amendment docsh 't limit how you define continuing education activity, 

Wouldn't the only limitations be the actual 30 hours'? I would assume you would huvc flexibility 

even to define that differently depending on the number of years of service somebody hm; nlrcudy 

Incurred. lsn 't that correct'? 
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Constance Knlanck: That really is the purpose of the rules - to guide the board in implementing 

that particular law. 

Rep, Weisz: This bill allows you to <lo the rule making as you sec fit - the type of education 

activity that is required. The only limitations in this bill, in reality, is the 30 hours. We're not 

saying how you should promulgate the rnles of what those 30 hours should be, or what flexibility 

that the board would have or anything dse. In your response lu the question by Rep. Devlin, you 

were implying that you wanted your amendment in there because you thought you needed this 

flexibility to promulgate rnlcs having to do with the type of activity is required, etc., etc, This 

docsn 't prohibit that, correct'? 

Constance Kalanck: No, it docs not. 

Chairman Price: Let's say, for example, that you have someone coming in who really would like 

to get the four year dcgrcc1 and th~y havu a special area they would like to wo1·k towards - you 

could help tailor n play fot· them even if they may not do it in eight years or whatever• the 30 

hours they do every two yeurs could be patterned towards that l would assume. 

Constance Kalunck: That is correct. 

Chairman Price: So if you have someone that is here - say from a militnry base and will only be 

here three yeurs - there's could be basically very general - so you Are looking at helping pattern it 

towards their particular situation as much us what is nvuHublc. Do you think the bourd would 

tnke a look at some of the out-of-state courses thut arc uvailnble over the Internet as u piece of it? 

Constance Kalnnck: I believe so. As long us those courses nrc approved by 11 provider. 

Chuinnan Price: Part of the concern is thnt we want it flexible, but yet we don 1t wunt it so 

onerous that nobody is going to go for it, because obviously this person is going to paying for it 

out of their own pocket. It is going to be within "what is available to me", Do you think we can 
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come to some language that gives us some reassurance that it is not going to be too cumbersome, 

but yet gives you enough flexibility'? 

Constance Kalanek: We would ccrtalnly be open to that discussion. 

Vice Chairman Devlin: I understand that you and Shelly's two groups have a great relationship, 

but for whatever reason one of you may not be there, move on the another job and the 

relationship deteriorates, will you involve Long Term Care, the Medical Association and 

different ones in at least the discussions on the number of hours required before the board sets 

them'? 

Constance Kalanck: Yes. The Nurses Practice Committee would be called upon to set those 

parameters. If I were not to be present, they would continue. 

Chairrnan Price: Close SB 2 t 14. 
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CHAIRMAN PRICE: Let's look at SB 2114. There were some amendments that Dr. Kalanek 

talked about. Page 12, they wanted to make sure that the specialty practice registered nurse was 

included on line 15 and line 19. The other issue has to do with page 8 for the continuing 

education. At the very least we have to insert the word "or" because it says "of', It should be 

academic "or" the 30 hours of continuing education, We looked at the 30 hours as being tailored 

to the nursing question by the board depending upon their particular circumstances. 

REP. PORTER: I would move those three amendments. 

REP. WEISZ: Second. 

CHAIRMAN PRICE: (Discussed changes to amendments.) I have a motion and a second, 

Discussion? Seeing none all in favor signify by saying Aye ( 13 Yes, 0 No, I Absent), 
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REP. SANDVIG: A couple of people had a concern about the unlicensed assisted personnel 

giving medication to residents. I was wondering if we wanted to do anything about that. 

CHAIRMAN PRICE: Personally, I don't. That came out of HB 1403 last session. Exemption 

was in place for many, many years. When we did some things in '95 that was supposed to be 

looked at. Something didn't happen, so it went away without the final discussion on it. So in 

HB 1403 we directed the department and the Board of Nursing to come back to us with language 

that they agreed upon. That is what we've got. The objection comes from Mr. Gayle, 

Respiratory Care. We didn't have any testimony last time that there had been problems. 

REP. WEISZ: He didn 1t indicate that the problem had to do with mis-medication. His issue 

was that he didn't think the person watched over enough to sec ifthcre was reaction to 

medication that was prescriled. He didn't really address that they had a problem. 

REP. TIEMAN: I move the bill. 

REP. METCALF: Second. 

CHAIRMAN PRICE: Further discussion'? Seeing none the clerk will take the roll on a DO 

PASS as amended. 

12 YES l NO t ABSENT 
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Chairman Price: We arc b1·i11ging buck SB 21 I 4, The Council of the Board of Nursing and the 

Attorney Generals office noticed one place where they forgot to add something. 

Dr1 Kalannk: Discussed the udditional amendments. 

Chairman Price: It was added to the other sections us well, this was just missed. 

Dr, Kulanak; Yes, this is to make it consistent. 

Chairman Price; We will take u look ut this and net on it Inter. 

COMMITTEE WOIU{ 

Chairman Price: Committee pull out SB 2 I I 4. 

Motion to reconsider action, second, Curried. 

(Discussion on urnendment) 

Rcp,Oeylh1i I move tho amendment. 

Rep, Weisz: I second, 



Page 2 
House Human Services Committee 
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2114 
Hearing Date March 21, 2001 

Chainnan Price: All those in favor signify by saying Aye. Opposed? Amendment carries by 

voice vote. We have SB 2114 as amended before us. What arc your wishes'? 

Rep. Cleary: I move a do pass as amended. 

!kth.Metcalf: I second. 

Chairman Price: We have a motion and a second for a do pass as amended. Clerk will take the 

roll. 

MOTION FOR A DO l'ASS AS AMENDED 

YES, 14 NO, 0 

CARRIED B\' REP. CLEARY 



18200.0301 
Tltle.0400 

II ,e 
Adopted by the Human Services Committee -s/2ao / 

March 13, 2001 '1/o/ 

HOUSE AMENDMENTS TO SB 2114 

Page a. line 24, replace the first "Qf" with "Q.t" 

Page a. line 25, l'emove "a.gtJyJ.tt 

HOUSE HS 3-13-01 

HOUSE AMENDMENTS TO SB 2114 HOUSE HS 3-13-01 
Page 12, line 15, after the first comma Insert "R specialty practice registered nurse/ 

Page 12, line 19, after the first comma Insert "a specialty practice registered nurse," 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 18200,0301 



Date: .3 - I 3 - 6 I 
Roll Call Vote #: / 

2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. s g o\ I J L/ 

House Human Services -------------------- Committee 

0 Subcommittee on ·----------------------­
or 

D Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

~ ~.~ Action Taken 

Motion Made By Seconded 
~~· Ptrif;v _______ By 4~ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes 
Clara Sue Price - Chairman ,/ Audrey Cleary i./ 
William Devlin - V. Chairman ,/ Ralph Metcalf ./ 

Mark Dosch ./ Carol Niemeier _/ 

Pat Galvin V" Sally Sandvig .~ 
Frank Klein 1/ 

Chet Pollert 
Todd Porter t/ 
W9yne Tieman ✓ 
Dave Weiler ✓ 
Robin Weisz ✓ 

-
-· -

No 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) __ ).-..3 ____ No __ _.Q _______ _ 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: 3 - I 3 - () I 
Roll Call Vote#: ~ 

2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO . .SB ~ / J '-f 

House Human Services Committee 

D Subcommittee on ______________________ _ 
or 

D Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken 

Motion Made By 

Representatives Yes 
Clar& Sue Price - Chairman J/ 
William Devlin - V. Chairman - ✓ 
Mark Dosch v 
Pat Galvin V' 
Frank Klein 
Chet Pollert 
Todd Porter V 

Wavne Tieman i/ 
Dave Weiler ,/ 
Robin Weisz v 

Seconded 
By 

No Representatives 
Audrey Clearv 
Ralph Metcalf 
Carol Niemeier 
Sally Sandvi~ 

J/ 

Yes No . 
t/ 
v 
,/ 

✓ 

Total (Yes) __ .....,Ja_""-=-, ____ No -------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment -~--~~~-.&Jo~--------------­
lfthe vote is on an amendment. briefly indicate intent: 



REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) 
March 13, 2001 3:21 p.m. 

Module No: HR-43-5508 
Carrier~ Cleary 

Insert LC: 18200.0301 Title: .0400 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2114, as reengrossed and amended: Human Services Committee (Rep. Price, 

Chairman) recommend~ AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, 
recommends DO Pf~ss (12 YEAS, 1 NAY, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Reengrossed SB 2114, as amended, was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 8, line 24, replace the first "Qf" with "ru" 

Page 8, line 25, remove "acUvltt 

Page 12, llne 15, after the first comma insert 0 a specialty practice regis.tfilfilt nurse." 

Page 12, llne 19, after the first comma insert "a specialty practice registered nur.filh" 

Rer.umber accordlngly 

(2) DESI<, !3) COMM Page No. 1 



Date: 3-~ )-tJ / 
Roll CaJJ Vote#: / 

2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 5 5 ~ // L/ 

House Human Services Committee 

D Subcommittee on ______________________ _ 
or 

D Conference Committee 

Legislative CouncH Amendment Number 

Action Taken ~ ~ ~ 'd-y~ :SB il.L/L/ (Y~ 

Motion Made By 

4 
&_ . Seconded /1;, e 

. 'L By~ . A:21.fv 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Clara Sue Price - Chainnan i/ A udrev Cleary v 
William Devlin .. V. Chairman ✓ Ralph Metcalf ,/ 

Mark Dosch ✓ Carol Niemeier V 

Pat Galvin ✓ Sally Sandvig I -Frank Klein ✓ 

Chet Pollert ✓ 

Todd Porter ✓ ,_ 

Wavne Tieman ✓ 

Dave Weiler v 
Robin Weisz ✓ 

" 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) __ /,.....L/.....----- No ________ _ 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



18200,0302 
Tllle.0500 

BOUSE AMENDMENTS TO SB 2114 

Adopted by the Human Services Committee 
March 21, 2001 

BOUSE BS 3-22-01 

In addition to the amendments adopted by the House as printed on pages 960 and 961 of the 
House Journal, Reengrossed Senate BIii No. 2114 Is further amended as follows: 

Page 6, line 1 o, after the first comma Insert "specjalty practice registered nurse," 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 18200,0302 



Date: 3-~ /·tJ I 
Roll Call Vote#: ~ 

2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL ~qTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. s B o) I J t..t 

House Human Services Committee 

D Subcommittee on _______________________ _ 

or 
D Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken 

Motion Made By iJ.. ... &_ A Seconded 
~, ~~-· - By 

Representatives 
Clara Sue Price .. Chainnan 
William Devlin ~ V. Chainnan 
Mark Dosch 
Pat Galvin 
Frank Klein 
Chet Pollert 
Todd Porter 
Wavne Tieman 
Dave Weiler 
Robin Weisz 

Total 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

Yes No 
~ 
1/ 

/ 
✓ 

✓ 
v= 
✓ 

V 
1/ 

,/ 

lfthe vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Representatives 
A·lldrev Cleary 
Ralph Metcalf 
Carol Niemeier 
Sally Sandvi.e: 

Yes No 
✓ 

✓ 
,./ 

,/ 



Date: 3 .... Q /-11 / 
Roll Call Vote#: .3 

2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. $ f3 cl// L/ 

House Human Services Committee 

D Subcommittee on ______________________ _ 

or 

D Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken 

M ti n Made By 0 0 Ro .r\ . t1 JJJ A.41 4, By m~1t 'V (1 l 

Seconded 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Clara Sue Price - Chairman ✓ Audrey Cleary ,/ 

William Devlin - V. Chainnan ✓ Rolph, Metcalf v 
Mark Dosch / Carol Niemeier v 
Pat Galvin v Sall~ Sandvig ,/ 

Frank Klein v -Chet Pollett v 
Todd Porter v w-
Wavne Tieman V ,,_ 

Dave Weiler v 
Robin Weisz ✓ 

,,. 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) ------'-~----- No ___ ,J _________ _ 
-------i:..-..---------------------

Floor Asslgnmeitl B.,afJ . (!fM.tw. r 
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) 
March 22, 2001 9:23 a.m. 

Module No: HR-50-6371 
Carrier: Cleary 

Insert LC: 18200.0302 Tltle: .0500 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2114, as engrossed and amended: Human Services Committee (Rep. Price, 

Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, 
recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Engrossed SB 2114, as amended, was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar, 

In addition to the amendments adopted by the House as printed on pages 960 and 961 of the 
House Journal, Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2114 Is further amended as follows: 

Page 6, line 10, after the first comma Insert "specialty practice registered nurse," 

Renumber accordingly 

(2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 1 HR•60•6371 
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Testimony on SB 2114 
~enate Human Services Committee 

January 22, 2001 

Chairman Lee and members of the Senate Human Services Committee, thank you for the 
opportunity to testify on SB 2114. My name is Shelly Peterson, President of the North 
Dakota Long Tenn Care Association. 1 am here today representing our members, nursing 
facilities, basic care facilities and assisted living faci1ities. 

We are supportive of a11 aspects of SB 21 14 and respectively request the Committee to 
consider amendments that will further strengthen the bill. 

Prior to talking about the amendments or the bill draft I would like to briefly outline to the 
Committee why 1 am here today. Last fall the Chairman of our Association was asked by 
a legislator what our position was on the educational requirements for nurses. That question 
prompted statewide discussion. 

We conducted discussion groups in six regions of the state, asked the National Association 
of Directors of Nursing Administration of North Dakota for their input and position, 
discussed it within our Resident Issues Committee and Legislative Committee, explored the 
topic with legislators, conducted a survey of long tcm1 care nurses and finally at our 
December 13, 2000 Membership Meeting formulated our position and solution, During this 
time I worked closely with Dr. Constance Kalanek, Executive Director of the North Dakota 
Board of Nursing, exploring options that might be acceptable to both pa11ies. During our 
exploratory process we found the majority of t'espondents, including nurses supported 
repealing the current educational standards, however this position would be strongly opposed 
by the North Dakota Board of Nursing. 

In the true spirit of working toward common ground, the North Dakota Board of Nursing and 
our Association reached a "third alternative" that I truly believe wiJI benefit North Dakota, 
consumers of health care and the nursing profession. Our amendment allows North Dakota 
to continue to maintain their academic requirements for nurses but allows those nurses who 

• hold an out-of .. state license, who apply for licensure in North Dakota and find they don't 
meet the educational requirementi,, to have two C>ptions in order to be allowed to practice in 

North Dakota. ~~ 'ii O ,.1,10 

~~,./ (_ F6> ~ 7!:> 
"'r''~~ 



Currently a nurse who does not meet the educational requirements applies for a transitional 
license. In order to obtain a transitional license, a nurse must show 1) completion of a 
nursing education program approved by another state's Board ofNursing: 2) a current license 
by examination, approved by the State's requirement for license by examination; and 3) an 
unencumbered license. 
Our proposed amendrnent provides the nurse-applicant described above a second option. As 
you know the only option available now is the nurse applicant must obtain an Associate 
Degree (LPN) or Baccalaureate Degree (RN) with a major in nursing within eight years. 
North Dakota Long Tenn Care Association's amendment adds continuing education as the 
second option available to the nurse. So rather than having only one option of returning to 
school, the nurse would agree to 30 hours of continuing education every liccns~ renewal 
cycle. A renewal cycle is two years. The continuing education parameters would br. set by 
the North Dakota Board of Nursing, and could he tailored to the area of nursing practice 
relevant to the transitional nurse's job duties, if they so choose. 

As it stand, this amendment has no impact on the 400 nurses presently in transition~ although 
it is anticipated the North Dakotu Board of Nursing would address this issue by rule, The 
amendment further does not address the nurse whose license lapsed because they did not 
obtain the proper academic requirements ,vithin eight years, who may now wish to practice 
under the CEU provision. It would only be through rule promogation by the North Dakota 
Board of Nursing could these situations be addressed. Our amendment is simply allowing 
another option to those experienced nurses deemed competent by another state~ ,vho desire 
a North Dakota license to practice here. 

As you may be aware, long tenn care is in a nursing crisis and if this amendment removes 
one barrier to employment in North Dakota, we believe it merits your serious consideration 
and adoption. Currently we have 1,000 open positions in nursing facilities across North 
Dakota, The top vacant position is CNA, with RN's and LPN's second. Two-thirds of the 
nursing facilities term themselves in a staffing crisis and in 20001 two out of every five 
nursing facilities voluntarily stopped admisslons because of insufficient staff to care for 
residents. 

For nursing facilities LPN turnover is 24% and RN turnover i~, 33%. With the averagti age 
of Jong tenn care LPN•s at 43 years and RN•s at 44 year, this problem will become ,even 
more acute in ten and fifteen years when nurses decide to retire, 



We recognize we have many barriers to employment. Salary and benefits, demands of the 
job, working evenings and weekends, rural North Dakota etc. Wt: believe our amendment 
will remove one of those barriers by allowing those nurses duly licensed by another state, 
to practice in North Dakota. 

I have exp]aincd only one amendment related to the nurse licensed by another state, the other 
amendments are being brought fonvard by the Noiih Dakota Board of Nursing and would 
be best explained by Dr. Constance Kalanek, Executive Director of the North Dakota Board 
of Nursing. Amendment Janguage related to CEU option are the two definitions of 
"TranshionaJ practical nurse Hcense" and "Transitional registered nurse license" and on Page 
8 where it addresses transitional license renewals, "thirty hours continuing education 
activity," Prior to giving the floor back to Dr. Kalanck, I have received testimony by a nurse 
in her last year of transition who will Jose her license on December 31, 2001 because she 
will not have met the acadcmk requirements. She is a Minnesota resident~ and works in 
North Dakota at TBJ STEPS Program of Personal Achievement, the skilled nursing facility 
in Grafton who serves adults with severe head injuries. She is unable to be present and asked 
me to bring her story to you this morning. 

Thank you for your consideration of our amendment and our support of SB 21 14. I would 
be happy to answer any questions you might have. at this time. 

Shelly Peterson, President 
North Dakota Long Term Care Association 
l 900 North 1 J th Street 
Bismarck, ND 58501 
(70 l) 222-0660 
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To CJ,o/rmllH Ltt, M~mb,1r~· o/tlu Stffatt ll1ur,an .tcr~lrt Commlllt'1' 

Tlumli ym, jiu- 11,,• (lpJn>rtu11lty t,, ,\ul,m/( lff)' tntlmm,y um/ dl,cuu tltt' ;mport thut Sen11t,1 BIii Nt1, 21 U 
('(m/d l,n~t 011 mt. M)' nam,• I.~ (.'ltrl.,·tir1c- l>ulrlmun; I reside in rur<1I Stt/'lt«-tt, Ml,mt.trJta """ ,·urr,•ttlly 
hR,1r ff trarriltlrmal 1/c'e•mt o.t a Re~/.u,•rrd N,u-st. In IV8 7, I J!"'"""lcd/rt1m Ea."it (irar1d Fork.,· 
Tt-,·hnfrul 0,11,.111• wltlt lffJ' Pronh·ul N11nin1t d~f'"· ,,, 199J, I pursutd '"Y tdu,·atlt>n, and 1rndut1fttl 
from Northl11nd Ct,mmunll)' ( 't1llt11<' t.•ltlt 011 A.~~.,,,;,,,,,,,, Sdt',,,,,, dt•gr,•r, I om ,·urrn,tl)i 1wr.,uinJJ "')' 
l,uc·t,dt111r"alt d,,grte' 11,roucll Regt>III!, Coll,•c,•, ltm•1c1••n; I wJII ,,,,, C'"1Hpll•tl' "'Y r,l11<'uh°1111 hJ· tlu- ""'' 4 
tilt )'tar, 
I lul1'i1 ~t'IJ u Norlh naA1Jlu .'itlllt• tmploytt Jm tlrr. f"1.1r fl.ftrtn ytur.,· In wl,i(-1, I l,u1•r l,('lf/ .,·cwrul 
podtl,m.t, mo.tt rurr,1111/y, h,1lnx Dir,WM of Nursltt~J,u th<' n,1k 1/y devt'lop,1d Truu111alJ( IJroln /11/urJ' 
l 1nll In Gru/wn, North Palwtt,. J ,un also tlHplo;•,d pilrl 1im1 os n PrnNlrnl Nursing ,•/inkol i11.,1ruc101 
j,,r N"rllr JJuAc,tu .~·tufr O,llcK" "' Sdrn(·r, H'uhprton, !VtJrlh Ddvfu. I am Qn myj,>urtl, "'"''K'UI t')•dt• 
for my 11,wur, whkh mettnJ tlft•,·tl••t Ptumber .f /, 10()1,· I will nol bt• "bl"/() pra,·ri,·<- nur:,l11K In N<1rtlt 
l)Ukt>ltt, I lltJJJ(' a .,mmg l'IUllmllmnu IIJH'(Jfd."f t1dUl'llllm1 (I/Id I .~uppofl lllld C'Offll11t'ttd ,,u 8c>nrd CJ/ 
Nur.,·ln,: an tlrt'lr r,cule1tt1T)' 11rarr.,., u, ddfrtr quality 11111,,lng c11re to tltc• µuhlfr, l,11w~.,tr, I /~t•I 11ml m) 
.'lltuatim,, al fn.•:,·t, d~,ait,,•,'i t/14.• majority '1f traruUl,.mal n11r,si.•J In tit< '"ral h~flllhmr«' .,•cflin>;, It lw:, btt'f! 
dl/fi,·ull (tJ c,htoln "'J' huul,•rut,· Jr~rte It, tltt rtq"lrc>d tlfrft /ramt. St~frol/orrr>rj• fft''9d ft> bt tal.t1t Into 
C'muldnaflm1 .rn "" a.t: ra1.,1,,R a jo;HI/J•, flnant'lol .wpport, tt('U,uil,11/t)' to '"'"'r,tl,,,- I/If ti," rur11I ~·tttlHN, 
t'NfplnJ'''~ 11,•,•1>1HHu>dullo11, 011d Jlfl""'"' lijtf ,•/l(•unulnnf'I'.'- Io,,, Jn/tll'or of lifting rht currtnl uf,uf~n,lc• 
r,•t1ul1«1mc1111., 1111d •·,mvntlttf w w,,t/11ul111 t1du,•a1/v11 rtqulrtmt'nls likt 11,,, adjoiflit1Jt .,·1111,•.~. 1 am 
asking that you support SB 2lJ4 and the amendment by the North DakotJJ Long Temt 
Carv, Assodation on CEU's, r believe that this amendment. If paned, w/11 benefit the 
sutt, of North Dakot.a, the roral community heallhcllrd crisis, and prec/<Jmln-1tely the 
pe(Jple th~t we serwJ. Again, thank y(Ju lbr •I/owing m• to t!Xpf"eSS my con<-ems, 

Respectfully submitted, 

fltu~ £k/4,1..~I Jt?✓ 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENA'fE BILL NO. 2114 

Page 2. after line 28, insert: 

"j O. "Transitional practical nurse license" means a license issued by the board to 
a person who meets all of the requirements for licensure by endorsement as 
a licensed practical nurse, ·except the educational requirements~ 

1L. ,'.1rnnsitional registered nurse license" meanil license issued by the board 
to a person who meets all of the requirements for Ji_censur~ endorsement 
as a registered_ nurse, except the educa~lona! require1nents_!." 

Page 4 1 line 23 1 replace "Staff' with .. A pel'Son 1
' 

Page 4, llne 28 1 replace "Grol.)~" with 11Wlt..bln. group" 

Page 5, line 1, replace "Huma..n" with 11Wlthln human" and remove "A licensed nurse may" 

Page ·6, remove lines 2 and 3 

Page 5, after line 8, Insert: 

"SECT,oN 4. AMENDMl::NT. Section 43•12.1~05 of the 1999 Supplement 
to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

43 .. 12.1-05. Board of nursing .. Composition • Term of office. There Is 
a state board of nursing whose m~mbers must be appointed by the governor which 
must consist of five registered nurses, three licensed practical nurses, and one 
public member. Each board member must be appointed for a t,:lrm of fou1 years. 
No appointee may be appointed for more than two consecutive terms. An 
appointment for an unexpired term of more than eighteen months will constitute a 
full term. Terms of nur$e board members must be evenly distributed to allow two 
llcensed ,,urse board members to be appointed or reappointed each year. !fhe 
,nembers of-the beer~ holdlAS efflee on August +r4-995i-ffl~➔o -aerve· ae 
members for their respeetl•,ie terme:" 

'Page 8, llne 7, remove the overstrike over 11Renewaf reqw~rogression-towMM" 

-



Page 8, line 8, remove the overstrike over "meeting the'\ aft0r "~" Insert 

.. academic", remove the overstrike over 0 ,eqtffl'ement8" and insert immediately thereafter 

11thirty hours continuing education activity'' 

Page 9. line 11. after "nurse," insert ".ru1ecialty pract!cf! registered nurse.·· 

Page 9, line 19, after "~lflcation" Insert "or evaluation" 

Page 9, line 22, aft.er "certification" Insert "or evaluatlon" 
I 

Page 10, line 21, remove "probat~" 

Page 10, line 23, after "reprimand" Insert 1\.12lace on probation 11 

Page 12, attar line 9, inse,t 

11SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Section 43-12.1-16 of the 1999 Supplement 
to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

43.12.1 .. 16. (-Effective--thr,ough..July--3'1, 200+} Delegation of medication 
administration. A licensed nurse may delegate medication adminlstratior1 to a 
person exempt under subsection 9 of section 43 .. 12.1-04." 

Renumber accordingly 



Entry Into Practice 
Survey Results From Nurses 

December 2000 

1. Shou1d the educational requirements for RN's and LPN's be eliminated? 

Yes: 65 or 59% 
No: 46 or41% 

2. Should we support an endorsement process? 

Yes: 90 or 67% 
No: 28 or 21% 
Did not answer: 17 or 12% 

3. Should the North Dakota Long Tenn Care Association take a position on this 
issue? 

Yes: 
No: 
Undecided or No Answer: 

72 or 67% 
25 or 23% 
10 or 10% 

62 members responded to the survey with multiple respons~s fron1 Mott Good 
Samaritan Center, Trinity Homes and the Baptist Home. 

Resident Issues_ Committee Recommen~ation: 
Work with the North Dakota University System to increase access to education in 
non-traditional ways. If access to affordable and non-traditional education is not 
ac.:hieved repeal entry-into-practice in the 2003 session. 

Legislative Committee Recommendation: 
Support the multi-state !icensure leg.islation and work with the Board of Nursing in 
reaching an agreement on an amend1.nent that would acknowledge licensed nurses in 
other states who wish to practice in I\Jorth Dakota without pursing additional 
education. 



F itty-se11enth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

North Dakota B1)a1d of Nursing 

BILL NO. 

J A BILL for an Act to allow certain adrninist tat1vc agenc1r1s lo enter into lir:ensing 

2 compacts with other states. 

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

'1 SECTION 1. Administrative agency compacts. An udmini~lrative 21genc.:y 

s as defined In subsection 2 of 28-32-01 may establish, liy aciministrntivo rule, 

G procudures for licensees In another state lo be lir;0nsed 1n tt1is stf1te pursuant to a 

·1 written agreement with another stc1te, writlon ficensing compact.c; with other states, 

a or any other method of license recognition that ensures th~ health, safoty and 

g welfare of the public. Any compncl or agrcemonl by an ndrninistrative agnncy does 

1 o not become binding on this state until imp!ementod by mlministr ative rule under this 

11 sec.;t\011. 
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Chairman Senator Judy Lee and other Members of the Senate Human 

Services Committee. 

Thank you for this opportunity to testify on the Senate Bill 2114 

amendment 1>roposed. 

I am Glenicc Darwin, a graduate of Dickinson State College in 1971, 

with an Associate Degree in Nu1·sing. I have been a Registfred Nurse in 

ND for 30 year·s this sum met♦• I am certified as n Gerontological Nur·;e 

by the American Nurses Credentialing Center Commission on 

Cet·tification. I am also n certified Dil·cctct· of Nursing Administt·ation 

in Long Ter·m Cat·c tht·ough the National Association Dh·ectors of 

Nu.-sing Adminish·ation in Long Term Cal'c. I 1·cccived by Bachelors of 

Science Degree in Health Services Administration from the Univea·sity 

of Minnesota, Mool'head, MN. 

I have been the Director of Nursing Service at the Arthur. Good 

Samaritan Center, in Arthur, Noa·th Dakota since 1992. On occasion 

over this period of time I have had nurses quit in Oct/Nov/Dec. to move 

out of state because they choose not to invest two mor·e years of their 

lives at R college of nursing to earn their degree. It is not a problem for 

these nurses to obtain a transitional license to practice in the state of 

ND, the problem arises when the nurse realizes just how much time 

away from their families will be required, how much driving is required 

at attend some classes and their clinical days, the cost of each credit 

hour they will be required to take, the cost of motel rooms and th~ gas, 

plus the cost of books, sup1>Hes and olh~r expenses, they consider the 
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tot11I l'Ost of going on for their de1&rces nnd m11ny c11ses feel they just 

catn't do U. They choosr to lt.•nve fill' stnh• or drive to l\1N m· SD and not 

lncut· the debt 

A t•ou1>lt• of sUuntlor1s I would likl' to sha11·t• brien,, with you. A LPN I 

hired fr•om the state of ()t•cgon hnd cxt~ellt•nt rt•fert•n,•..-s, A Physlclnn I 

,·ontncted regnrding her, hlghl)' 1·-.•..-om,nl'tulrd lwr for· hln• In LTC. llr 

wJshl'd In- l'Ould hat\'l' her lmck UN on t!1t1plo~''-''-'• lie spokl1 highl)· nhout 

her skills nnd dc\1otion to his pntients nt their dink nnd hospitnl. I 

hh·cd her, she oricntntcd c1~si'y nnd nhl'nd of sd1edulc for most LPN ts, 

She wo1'kl1d for 1ne for· n ycnr nnd decided to mo,1e to l\1N. She wnntcd • 

to stny in ND hecnusc she has fnmily here, hut didn't choose to cvntinue 

for he,· degree as the current r·clkcnsu1·c rc<1uircs. She ·wns nn excellent 

- LPN of 11 011e-yen1· program in Portlnnd, O1·egon. She hns kept in 

contact with us nt the centc1· and requests us to let her know if the state 

changes their critel'ia for rcliccnsurc. She would love to cornc back to 

our center if she docs not have to go bncl< to college for' n deg1·ee. CEU's 

would not be an undo hardship. 

Another case, an excellent LPN, choosing to be an Registered Nurse. 

She went part-time for me and choose an out of state college to com pJetc 

her· Associate Degree for RN. She past her boards and than left our 

home to work at the VA hospital in Fargo, since they are governmental 

and except any state license without a BSN. She doesn't have to prepare 

a schedule to obtain her nsr ! at this time since she has three children at 

home and chooses not to incur further educational debts. 
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These nrc Just two sltuattlons Ornt ,·,·:mlted In nddUlonnl ex1,t-r1sr for our 

center•, There aarc nuu,y n1ore nursing ,·on,~e,·ns fo,· t·utnl LTC fndlitit•s 

regarding the shortnge of nul'siog stnff. For exnn,1ph.• not ndmlttlng 

residents tlrnt wnnt to come to 0111· fndlity hl'l'IIIISl' Wl' don't hn,1l1 th,• 

nu,·ses to cnre for them in thl1 mnnner I hl1lil1Vl' th,•~1 drser,1l' for ,11rnlit,­

of Ufc. I lun1c on nH,rf.' Urnn ont.' ot'l'nslon dcnit•d ndmlsslons du,, to Ou.­

shor·tage of nurs,•s in thl' pnst yt•n,· nnd other yen rs. 1 IHl\'l' hud to usl' 

,~ontrnct nurses in the pnst, I don't IH11it•,1t• thll ,11rnlity of ,·n1·-.• is the 

highest J>ossihle when you Ul't•d to use cont nu.·t stuff. They don't know 

nruJ love our residents ns we do, The ,·osc of' fontn1ct LPN's is $30/hr· 

nnd for· RN's $40/ht•, 

We try desperately to keep all our nurses becausll we iu·c 32 rnilcs from 

F~?; go nnd are in con1pctition with three large hospitnls and five LTC 

facilities and other care providing agencies. So when I lose a nu,·se to 

another state due to our current licensure requirements, this truly 

concerns me fol' ND. The state populntion is growing older and we need 

these nurses to stay and be employed hel'c within the state. 
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The evangellcal Lutheran Good Samaritan Society Is the r 1tlon's 

largest non-profit provider or long term care servlc.:es. The Society has 

240 facllltles located In 25 states and serves approximately 25,000 

residents. There are 15 facllltles located In North Dakota. 

The Good Samaritan Society has Invested significant funds to build the 

technol,.,gy Infrastructure for !earning, connection, and sharing of data 

and Information between the facilities and 1+-s Central Office. The 

Society has establlshed a Distance Learning Network that links the 

facilities by satellite to Its Central Office In Sioux Falls, 

Because of the Society's rural locations and the shortage of long"term 

care employees, especially nurses, the Society Is developing academic 

partnerships to provide nursing education for Good Samaritan Society 

Staff. The University of SD and South Dakota State University are 

working together with the Good Samaritan Society to offer course 

work for an Associate Degree In Nursing (RN) and a Bachelors Degree 

In Nursing and an lncrt:?aslng nurnber of CEU's for nurses. These 

academic programs wlll be rolled out this fall In Minnesota, Nebraska, 

and Iowa. North Dakota Is not under consideration for these distance 

degree nursing programs because of the current llcensure 

requirement. 
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The Society Is extremely supportive of this blll because It Is flexible 

and responsive to where the delivery of education Is going. Also, It 

would allow our facllltles In NO to take advantage of Its technology by 

training and developing our own staff and community members and 

therefore addressing the workforce shortage. 
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Please consider the 1>ro1>osed amendment to Senate HIii 2114, This 

Hrnt~nd1nent would allow nny nur~e who does not meet the ~dul'attional 

standards for the stntc of ND to hll\1C two opOons, They could enroll in 

n dcgt·cc 1>rog1•nm or choose to do tht.• 30 CEil's fo1· four 1·cnewnl ,,e1·iods 

and not consider moving to nnother stnte, 

Thnnk you fo1· your· thnc nnd considrrntion of ihls aunt•ndtnl'llt. 
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Madam Chairman, members of Health and Human Servrces Commrttee, my 
name Is Arnold Thomas. I am President of the ND Healthcare Association and 
am here rn supporf of SB 2114, 

SB 2Tl4 rs the curmrnatfon of a work effort fhat rncluded· hospftafs and hospUal 
nurse leaders. We think the provisions In this blll wlll provide appropnute tools 
and polfcy gufdelrnes for today's health care envfronmenf as the BD seeks to 
fulffll It purpose. 

We especfaHy commend fhe BDrs readershfp ih supportrng the expansion of 
options available for llcensed nurses to sustain and engage their professlonal 
skflls rn ND. rn addfffon fo complfmenffng exfstrng professronaf' sfancfords and 
professional competency expectations, we think the continuing education 
provrsron wrrF ennance·fhe practrce affrocffveness of ND for lfcensed n~s 
practicing In other jurisdictions, whose professional Interests are primarily rural 
focused. 

We as!< adopfTon offhe contfnurng educaffon amendmenf and·o "Do-P-ass" of 
SB 2114. 

PO Box 73AO Slsmotc~. :-,D 51!~07•73.dO Phone 701•224,9732 Fax 701•224•9529 



On behalf of th• bolrd, I wl1h to offer te1ttmony In 1upport cf SB 211• rel1tfng to 
the Nura, Pr1ctJc11 Act 43•12.1. 
Chairperson Lee and members of the Human Services Committee, my 
My name Is Kirsten Friedt. I am a Registered Nurse employed by ABLE, Inc, of 
Dickinson. t urge you to place a DO PASS on Senate em 211 ◄. ABLE provides 
services to people with Developmental Dlsabllltlea; we are licensed under chapter 25-
16, t have baen employed by ABLE, Inc. for afmoet 11 year,. Medtcation 
administration and delegation of nursing tasks have long been a gray area for nurees 
employed by faolUtlea such aa ABLE, lno. I can remember discussing this very l&SU$ at 
the first nurse's meeting for people with developmental dlsabllltles that I attended, just a 
few short months after f started. 

Today I woufd like to &peek to the exemption portion of this blll lncJuded In section three, 
subaectlon 9 both with the exemption effective through July 31, 2001 and effective after 
July 31, 2001, Durtng the last legtslatlve session I wa:q not In favor of the exemption es 
It ls noted through July 31, 2001, The exemption through July 311 2001 exempts the DD 
provider from having to place staff administering medication~ '1n t11e North Dakota 
Board of Nurslng's Medication Assistant Registry. However, It aut1J not extmpt the 
nurses employed by the DD provider from having to comply with the Nurse Practice Act. 
What this did was take the nurse out of the task of administering medications. 
Unlicensed asslstlve personnel are able administer medications without the nurse being 
Involved. 

The exemption as written t'J be effective after July 31 1 2001 states the nurse may 
delegate medication administration to a person exempt from the provisions of chapter 
43 .. 12.1. This keeps the nurse Involved In the task of administering medications when It 
has been delegated to unllcern,ed assist.Ive personnel. This provision Is In fact a 
compromise reached by the North Dakota Board of Nursing and the Department of 
Human Services. I was a member of the committf>e that deliberated over this Issue. 
Although It Is not piarfect by any means It. ls workable and rational at this point In time. It 
continues to allow me, the nurse, to delegate to the staff the duty of administering 
medt ;ations. This Includes Insuring the person administering medications meets 
competency standards. 

Once again, I urge you to place a do pass on Senate BIii 2114. Thank you 'for your time 
and attention to my testimony. 



Teatlmony Before the Human Service, Committee 

SB 2114 

Chairperson: Senator Judy Lee 

January 22, 2001 

Chairperson Lee and memb,,.. of the committee, 

My name la Bonnie Selzler; I am the A11l1tant Director of Mental Health and 

represent the Department of Human Services on the Medication 

Administration Committee, 

In response to HB 1403 of the 1999 leglslatlve sesslori, representatives 

from the Department of Human Services, the Board of Nursing, the North 

Dakota Medical Association, the North Dakota Nurses Association, the 

North l>akota Assoc~atlon of Community FaclUtfes and other private 

providers met regularly to discuss the ramifications of unlicensed staff 

providing medication. The results of those efforts were previously reported 

to the Interim Budget Committee on Health Care as directed by HB 1403. 

The t:hanges detailed In subsection 9 uf Section 3 of Senate BIii 2114 

reflect the consensus of that group. However, the Department requests an 

amendment to the blll to clarify line 23 Item 9 c to read: 

Line 23 Item ~'9. Group home~i;, residential child care faclllties, and aduft 

foster care facilities licensed under sectf on 50-11, or" 

The Department of Human Services supports Senate Bill 2114. 

I am happy to answer any questions you may have. 
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NORTH DAKOTA BOARD OF NURSING 
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, .. # (701) 321•'115 

HUMAN SERVtc•~s COMMITTEE 

TESTIMONY RELATED TO sn 2114 

Chairperson Lee and members of the Human Services Committee, m)' nnme Is Coustnnt·c 
Kalanc!c, Executive I>lrt~cttu· of the North Dukotn Hoard of Nurslug, 

On bchulf of the board, I wfsh to offer testimony In su ppor~ uf SB 2114 rclntlng to the 
Nurse Practfcu Act 43-12,l. 

The North Dakota Board of Nursing works diligently to establish and maintain rules and 
regulations that protect and serve the public. In 1995, the Nurse Prcctlces Act was 
subject to major revlslons1 which also resulted in several rule revisions. 

The board currently licenses 8271 registered nurses of which 61 % hold a bachelor's 
degree or higher. 3173 licensed practical nurses of which 48% hold an associate 
degree, and 443 advanced practice nurses. The board also maintains a nurse assistant 
registry of 2122 nurse assistants and 238 medication assistants. 

The proposed revisions of the Nurse Practices Act 43-12.1 begein with the first meeting 
of the Nurse Practice Committee established by the board In May 2000. This committee 
was established to provide expertise from areas of nursing practice not represented on 
the board and to makEl recommendations to the board on Issues relevant to current 
practice. This committee comprised of 23 lndlvlduals, represents nursing practice, 
administration (hospital and L TC)1 ND Department of Health1 North Dakota Licensed 
Practical Nurse Association and the North Dakota Nurses Association. The committee 
met In, May, June, August1 and September 2000. 

The following Is a section by section summary of the revisions made to the Nurse 
Practices Act 43-12.1 along with rationale for the changes. 

1 l'he ml.'1.'llnn or tlM! N:idh l>11koht ffnard ur N11r~lt1A fi; to 11~~Url' Nnrlh l>illwllt dlltt•n~ t111nllty nuriln• rnl'C' lhrnu~h lht rt>Aulia1h1n of 
,-11111d11rds ror n1m:lnA 1.-du,·utlon, lll'l.'n.~urc 1rnd pr1wlh•,•, 

, 
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B.tc:;t10o•b~•S1ctlon Sl~mmary of eroggaed 
RevJ1lon1 to Chlgtett3•i2.1 Nurse er1c;tlge1 Act 

SECTION ONE; PEEINITIQNS 

The most Important revision In thlf, section Is the definition of 11Unllcen1ed aaslstlve 
person", This proposed defihltlon provides for utilization of an assistant to the nurse In a 
variety of roles In their field regardless of tltle, Unlicensed asslstlve person may Include but 
are not limited to nurse assistant, surgical and dialysis technicians and medical assistants. 

The proposed definition for 11 speclalty practice registered nurse" will provide for 
recognition and llcensure of nurses who practice a specialty but who do not meet the 
quallf!catlon for advanced practice. The specialty practice registered nurse must be 
currently licensed as a registered nurse, In good standing, and not be the subject of 
current d)&':)lpllnary action, Examples Include but are not limited to the registered nurse first 
assistant (1·~NFA), diabetic educator, or entsrostomal therapist. 

SECTION TWO: LICENSED REQUIRED 

This section states that any person who provides nursing care to a resident of this state 
must hold a current license or registration Issued by the board. The proposed revision 
Inserts the category of specialty practice registered nurse and deletes the words ''a nurse 
assistant" and replaces It with "unlicensed assls!lve person". 

SECTION TH~EE: PERSONS EXEMPI 

In this section the term tasks Is replaced with the word Interventions. This Is congruent 
with the updated terminology used In the nursing profession. It Is a broader term that 
encompasses more than the basic technical skills. 

This section also provides for an exemption for medication administration for facllltles 
licensed under chapter 25-03.2, chapter 25-16, and chapter 50-11. The 1995 Nurse 
Practices Act - NDCC 43-12.1-04(9) exempted DD provider agencies, foster care 
providers, and human service centers from ~eglstry of asslstlve personnel from 
medication administration. This exemption has continued and will sunset July 31, 2001. 

A joint committee of the Department of Human Services and the Board of Nursing 
was established according to the requirements contained In HB 1403 during the 
1999 Legislative Session. The committee met on September 9, September 22, 
October 12, November 10, December 16, 1999. Exe1cutlve Summaries are available for 
your review. 
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The rationale for this exemption Includes the following: 
• Tha NDDHS facilities VY ,11 monitor certified medication assistants through the use 

of the Medication Assistant Programs registry at Minot State University In 
conjunction with the Protection and Advocacy Program. 

• This Is not an exemption from the nurse assistant registry. 
• Background checks e1re conducted on lndlvlduals employed by the 

facllltles/agenc}lee undor the p1Jrvlew of the ND Department of Human Services. 
• An up-to·•dote 11st of names of lndlvlduals successfully completing the Medication 

Assistant I Course Is supplied to the North Dakota Board of Nursing beginning In 
May 1999, 

• The Board of Nursing approves the Medication Assistant Courses I & II. 
• NDDHS will Include In contracts with providers or In a rule revision a requirement 

that employees of facllltles administering medications complete a North Dakota 
Board of Nursing approved Medication I Course. 

• NDDHS wlll be responslble to establish a standard reportln~J mechanism for 
providers on medication errors and wlll review thei submitted reports with the 
BON. 

• In an effort to provide quality nursing care in those facllltles the Board has 
proposed a revision of the definition of consultative nurse and the addition of 
definitions for assisting with self-administration of regularly scheduled or routine 
medications and basic nursing Interventions. (See attached) 

• The revision of the doflnltlon of consultative nurse provides direction for nurses 
who are delegating to unlicensed personnel and Is broad enough to cover 
consultative nursing regardless of employment setting. 

• The nurse Is accountable to the board of nursing and the faclllty to follow the 
standards of practice for an Identified role, I.e. RN, LPN. 

This section continues to provide protelltlon to the nurse who delegates medication 
administration In the above aettlngs. According to the Attorney General'$ Opinion 
dated December-4, 2000. "despite the !Imitation provided by NDAC 54-05-04-05(9), 
medication administration may be delegated to a person exempt under NDCC 43-12.1-
04(9) pursuant to NDCC 43 .. 12.1-·16 until August 1, 2001. If this protection were not 
provided for the nurses providing consultative services to these facilities, they may Indeed 
be In violation of NDCC 43-12.1. The opinion Is attached . 

.SECTION THREE: EXEMPTIONS (CONT). 
North Dakota practitioners must be licensed to practice nursing. This section (Page 5, 
Lin~ 4, Subsection 10) would exemµt Individuals licensed in another jurisdiction with a 
ND employer to attend orientation, mee·Hngs, or required continuing education without 
obtaining a ND license. Speclflcally, health care facllltles located on the ND, Minnesota, 
SD, and Montana borders have satellite clinics and smaller hospitals, whlch employ 
nurses licensed In Minnesota, Montana and SD. 
Due to the significant changes In the health care environment and the establishment of 
large health care corporations across state borders, many nurses who reside In a 
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contiguous state must attend required lnservlces or orientation frorn the ND employer In 
the North Dakota work site, Also, a number of national corporations and organizations 
employ nurses strictly to provide either consultation or education In North Dakota for 
llmlted time frames, 
Subsection 1 O also specifically provides for nurse consultants to practice In the state on a 
limited basis, Examples Include but are not limited to presenting ln .. servlces, reviewing 
pollcy and procedures; working as a sales representative. Guest lecturer, short-term 
consultant, and evaluation specifics wlll be further deflnfld In the rules, 

Sf:CIION EOUB: COMPENSATION G•C BOABD MEMBERS 

This section deletes the currer1t language and replaces It with language consistent with 
other regulatory boards In North Dakota. The proposed language Is much more specific 
and more uaeful for budgetary purposes. The board of nursing ls the only board to use the 
current language 

SECTION EIVE; POWERS AtiD...0.UIIES OF THE 60ABD 

This section replaces the term nurse assistant with unlicensed asslstlve person to be 
consistent throughout the NDCC 43-12.1. 

Subsection 12 (Page 6, line 22) addresses the Nurse Advocacy Program (NAP). The 
µrogram addresses losues of Impairment and Is confldontial in noture. Evaluation and 
treatment of NAP participants is obtained from programs and treatment prof esslonals who 
are I nandated by statutory confldentlallty laws. The NAP records nnd program results that 
reflect such action should likewise be protected. 
Subsection 13 (Page 6, line 24) adds the word applicants to provide for disciplinary action 
by the board for Individuals who have a positive response to the llcensure questions, 

SECTION SIX: LICENSURE • REGISTRATIO~ 

This section deletes the requirement of procf of progression towards meeting the 
educational requirements for endorsed nurses that do not meet the educational 
requirements established by the board. The proposed amendment would re-instate thls 
sentence. 

Subsection six (Page 8, line 25) makes the edlt.orlal changes described In Sections one 
and two related to the nurse assistant. Also, added proof of certftlcatlon as a 
mechanism for registry status. 
Subsection seven (Page 8, line 30, Page 9, llr1es1-7) Identifies the requirements for 
obtaining a specialty practice license for the registered nurse. 
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.&.E.C.tJ.Q.N SEYEN: LICENSE•BEGISIRAIION•BENEWAL 

This section eliminates the residency requirement and Is a recommendation by legal 
counsel, It legally may ba unconstltutlonal. ND ls the only state with a residency 
requirement for nurses. Employment by a federal agency Is addressed In NDCC 43•12.1· 
04 (3). Subsection 2 (Page 9, Ll,1e 17) c!early outlines the requirements for plAcement on 
the nurse assl~tant (unlicensed asslstlve person) registry. 

SECTION EIGHT: DUTIES OE LICENSEES 

This section adds "registrants" or 11reglstered 11 to the current language, Thie will provide 
for the Individuals on the nurse assistant registry to be held to the same standard as the 
licensee when asked to provide Information to the board or to report potential vlolatlona. 
It also provides for consistency. 

SECTION NJNE; 01sc1eL1NAR'f PROCEF.DINGS. 

This section Is Intended to address the Increased cost for legal services for complex 
cases, It also clarifies how the boards of nursing of other states are notified. Effective 
November 1999 federal law required reporting to national data banks. 

SECTION TEN: GROUNDS FOR DISCIPLINE-PENALTIES 

This section speclflcally outllnes board authority, The BON has conducted an 
alternative to dlsclpllne program entitled the Nurse Advocacy Program for nurses with 
Identified Impairments of chemical dependency, psychiatric Impairments, and or 
physical disorders, It has been In operation for 1 O years and has had a total of 92 
participants (67 RNs, 35 LPNs) since Its lnceptlo11. The change In this section gives the 
board the authority to ask for evaluation and treatment when :mpalrment lo reported to 
tho board. 

The other revisions would allow for voluntary surrander or emergency suspension of 
one's license to practice nursing, The revisions would be further defined In the rules. 

Subsection 2 (Page 11,Llne 1) adds registration and assist In the practice of nursing for 
Inclusion of the unlicensed asslstlve person (nurse assistant), Restricted Is reploced with 
sanctioned Is a broader term to encompass other Jurisdiction's terminology. 

Subsection 5 (Page 11, Line 9) has been clarified by Inserting the language of professional 
misconduct which would be further defined In the rules as It ls for the deleted terms. 
Examples of professional mlsc;onduct Include, but an=- not limited to a departum or failure 
to conform to standards of practice; endangering a patient's llfe, health, or safety; 
misconduct could include non•payment of medications; non-payment of Nursing Education 
Loan; patient abandonment; negligence; or fallure to adhere to professional code of ethics. 
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Subsection 6 (Page 11, Line 13-14) has been revised to Include supplies and equipment 
and drug diversion for personal use ls more specific. 
Subsection 9 (Page 11, Line 19-21) specifically Identifies ru~1• -inslbllltleo of licensee; 
Globally Identifies any vlolatlon within the authority of the board. 

&ECDObl ELEYE~: .VJQLAitQN - el5NALIIES, 
Refer to Sections one and two, 

AMENDMENTS 
The board proposes the following amendments. See handcut. 

.cml.QLUSIONS 

Individual licensed nurses are accountable for tholr actions. This Includes the 
performance of or supervision of the performance of activities and functions requiring 
the knowledge, skllls and abllltle~ currently ascribed to the licensed nurse. The Board 
of Nursing wlll continue to evaluate nu1 sing prantlce c1ccordlng to the provisions of the 
Nurse Practlr·es Act1 ihe legal standards of nursing as promulgated throuoh the 
Administrative Rules of the Board of nurslng1 and colledlve wisdom of the appointed 
board members. The board wlll continue to carry out Its mission as to the safety of the 
specific nursing practices, protection of the public and the provision of competent 
practitioners. 1·;,ank you for giving mo the opportunity to provide testimony on behalf of 
the North Dakota Board of Nursing. 

I am now open for questions. 
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Heidi Heftt<11T1p 
ATTORNEY GENERAi. 

'December 4, 2000 

Honorable Judy L, Dd4ers 
State Senator 

STATE CAPITOL 
800 E BOULEVARD AVE 

8'SMAACK NO 58505-0CM0 
(701) 328•2210 FAX (101) 328·2226 

2200 South 29th Street, Apt. 92N 
Grand Forks, ND 58201-58p9 

Dear Senator DeMers: 

·Thank you for yau:r letter inquiring about the delegation authority of 
licensed nurses under ~orth Dakota's Nurso Practice~ Act, N,O,C,C. eh. 
43-12, 1. 

1'he Nurse Praetic&si Act defines nurs:b1g to ·include '"[e.)dminietration, 
teaching, supenrision, delegation, and evaluation of health Dnd nursing 
practices." N.o.c.c. § 43 ... 1'1.1-02(6). The authority of a nurse to 
delegat• to nurDe assistants is necessarily implied from the detinition 
of ·11·nut'ae assistant_,, as ._a persor1 who is authorized by the board to 
perform nursing tasks delegated and· supervised by a licensed nurstL" 
N,o.c.c. s 43-1·2,"1-0·2(51, "Nurse" is defined in N.o.c.c. 
5 43•12,1··02(4) as "'arW person currently licensed ai; an adva.noed 
praotiee registered nurse, registered nurse, or licensed practical 
nurse." 

N,O,C,C. ch. 43-12.l only authorizes delegation by a nurse to a person 
exerr;,t from the Nurse Practices Act pursuant to N.D.c.c, § 43-12,1~16. 
"A licattaed nursaa may dl!legate medication administration to a person 
exen;,t ~nder subsection 9 of section 43~12,1-04.~ N,D,C,C. 
S 43•12,1 .. 16 (effective through "uly 31, 2001). 1999 N,D, Sess. Laws. 
ch. 376, S 4, Subseetion 9 of section 43-12.1-04 ex~ts from tha Nurse 
Practices Aet "fa) person who provides medication administration 
accordiTig to individual needs and as part of an individual habilitation 
or caae plan within a resi6ent1al treatment center for children lic@nsed 
under chapter 25 ... 03 .2, a treatment or care r:enter for dovelopmontally 
disabled persons licensed tmder chapter 25-16, or a residential child 
care facility licensed under chapter so-11.~ 

Pur1uant ·to the authority provided to the Board of Nui:sing in N,O,C,C, 
S 43--12 ,. 1 .. 09 (2) ,. the Board has· adopted rules to define delegation and 
regulate it1 u•• . See, for example, N,D,i\,C, S S4·0!5-00,l .. 0l(S) and 
cha, 54-0S-04, 54-07-0S, and ~4-07•08, N,O,A,C, S 54•05-04-05 prohibits 
delegation by a licensed nurse for nine listed activities. Subsection 9 
of that a~c:tion J):t·ohib:lts delegation of medication adrnitlistration unleea 
it i■ to a nurae a1aistant who haa met ~he reQUirement1 of N.O.~.c. ch. 
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54~07-05. That subsection also provides an exception to its own 
limitation for specific delegation to a specific nurse assistant for the 
administration of a specific medication to a specific client. 

The Legialature grants rulemaking authority to administrative agencies 
by statutory delegation. However, the Legislature may aleo retract 
authority previously delegated to an agency. Trinity Medical Center v, 
North Dakota Board of Nursing, 399 N,W,2d 835, 848 (N,D. 1987), 
Therefore, under the circumstancea provided for delegation under 

·N,o.c.c. § 4·3-12.1-16 to those persons identified in N,o.c.c. 
S 43~12,1-04(9), the Legislature haa, for the period of effectiveness of 
those statutes, overridden tho rulo111 of the Board of Nursing that are 
contrary to those sections, There£ ore, it is my opinion that despite 
the limitation provided by N,O,A.c. § 54-05-04-05 (9), medication 
administrat~on tnaY be delegated to a person exempt under N.o.c.c. 
S 43-12.1-04(9) pursuant to N.o.c.c. s 43-12.1-16 until ~ugUst 1, 2001, 
when that statute expires, It is my further opinion that except for 
del•gati~n pursuant t~ N.D.c.c. § 43-12,1-16, licensee. nurses rMY only 
delegate. to a nurse assistant, 

Sin0e%'ely, 

Heidi Heitkamp 
Attorney General 

rel/pg 

L•l69 
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DefinUlons. 
Current: 

PROPOSED REVISIONS TO NDAC TITLE 54 
RULE REVSION 

54-01 .. 01 .. 02(5) "Consultative Nurse" means a Jicensed nurse who provides guidance and 
infonnation as a participant of the interdisciplinary team but is not individually responsible to 
direct the plan of care for the client. 
Suggested Replacement 54 .. 07-01-02(5) 
"Consultative Nurse" means a licensed nurse who provides ~uidance and lnfonnation related to 
nursin~ proceduresJ1nd interventfons to the facility or afitency but is not individually responsible 
to provide or direct the plan of care for the client1 
Suggested addition to Article 54-07-0.1-02 Nurse Assistant: (revisJon to Unlicensed 
Assfstfve Person after Nurse Practices Act enacted) 
54 .. 0"/-01-02. Definhions. 

2. "Activities of dally llvlng11 Includes transferring. ambulating, reposltionlng 1 exercising, toileting, 
- feeding, And assistance with self-administered oL regularly scheduled or routine 
medications and personal cares. Personal care Includes but Is not llrolted to bathing, hair 
care, nail care, shaving, dressing, aAd oral care, and maintenance of a safe envlronmtn.t. 
Basic loiervantlons vary from setting to setting depending on the client population 
UtY.t.ctand the acuity and complexity of the client's care needs. 
"Aulltio~ with Self Administration of Regutatlv Scheduled or Routine 
Medfcat1ons0 means helping the cJJent with one or more steps Jo the process of 
taking medications but does not mean °admlnlstratfon of medication" as defined lo 
the rules. Examples of "a-.sslstlng" Include. but are not limited to opening the 
medication container or reminding the cllent of the proper time to take the 
medication, Aaslstlng with the administration of medication may be a delegated 
Intervention. 

7 



RNFA Rnp b .. lltlH 
AJong with first assisting the surgeon. RNFA 
responsibilities indude: 
• Evaluating the needs of the patient and of the 

surgical team on a continuum throughout the 
surgieal experience_ 

• COiiaborating with the surgeons and other 
health care professionals for an optimal 
surgical outcome. 

• Perfomting foUowup care to evafuate the 
patient's condition. 

• Participating in discharge planning and post-
operative teaehing. 

Who recognizes RNFA practice? 
First assisting is within the scope of nursing 
practice of an fifty state boards of nursing_ Many 
major professional organizations recognize the 
RNF A. role. including 

• The Association of periOperative 
Registered Nurses. Inc (AORN). 

• The Amerfcan College of Surgeons {ACS), 
• National League of Nursing {NLN}, 
• The American Nursss Association (ANA}, 

and 
• The National Association of Orthopedic 

Nurses (NAON). 

Why does my doctor choose an RNFA? 
In tnis age of skyrocketing health care costs, 
RNFAs are a cost.-effectiVe surgical assistant 
provider. Decreasing costs ls an important issue 
to bCttl doctors and patients. RNFA"s help to 
make tt1is possible without compromising patient 
safety or quality of care. Their experience. 
knOwfedge. skills and qualifications make tnem a 
valuable member of the health care team. 

As a concerned health care consumer. you can 
empower and •assist" YOURSELF by requesting 
your surgeon employ the services of an RNFA. 

Registered Nu71i First Assistant: 
•Combining lcnow/edg• and sllll for auist/ve 

•olutlon.sln 
Forfurther lnformatlon regarding Registered Nurse Fim 
AUlatan1s contact 

AORN.lnc 
BN Bm Assfstarn specialty Asserob!Y 

217G South Padcer.Road, Suite 300 
... - Oenwr:coao231-5711 .. 

http;[fmy aom,oro!oroucsisaJRNfA.htm 
httptt,mw,aom omtpettent11n<1;x,htin 

b:u>tt«mr,aom,qm1oatrentrmraract.tJtm 

REGISTERED NURSE 

FIRST ASSISTANT 

You are having surgery. 

Your doctor says an assistant is needed 
for your surgical procedure. 

Your assistant will be 4n RNFA ... 

~--
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T ASSISTANTS 

"A quaJJt:y, cost-flffectlve 
alternative for the surgical patient" 

Amid America's inevitable health care reform 
changes and insurance cutbacks, the nationally 
racognized.profession of Registerea:N~First 
Assstant (RNFA's).. is. proud to announce Hs 
unique. position to of(er cost~ffectiw: q~ity first 
assisting and nursing care for the surgical patient 
wim e<Jueation and support fer the family. 

As an educated, board certified, and licensed 
professional. _the RNFA can provide a multiple­
rote solution to our health care crisis that is in 
alignment witn today's health care reform 
pnitosopny. 

As a provider !:lf surgical assisting, tne RNFA is 
otten reifTltk.Irse<l by insurance companies for 
sefVices rendere~ at a significantly lower cost to 
the consumer and insurance inaustry while 
providing safe quality patient care. 

What is an RNFA? 
RNFA standS fer Registered Nursa First Assistant 
T~js is a registare<l nucse wno tnrough additional 
eaucation and training has obtained the 
necessary technical skias and knowledge to 
~ction as the assistant to 
me surgeon during an operation.. 

Aaditionally, ~ .RNFA is competent to per.arm 
inaividualizecs nursing car& management before 
aoo after surgery. 

-~ 

How does a ReglatA • INcoma a first 
us.mot?· ~ 
An experienced RN attends a formal RNFA 
education program offered by many colleges 
throughout the country. This involves one 
academic year of both dassroom and supervised 
cfinical training oversesn by a surgeon preceptor. 
Upon completion. the RN is awarded a certificate 

signifying RNFA starus !ndicating the ability to 
assist the ~cgeon at the operating field as well as 
meaedside. 

To be accepted to an RNFA program. the RN 
must have at least two years of professional 
nursing experience in an ope;ating room 
environment and the CNOR designation or have 
an advanced practice degree. 

To achieve national certification. represented by 
the CNOR ccedential, the RN must successfully 
complete a nationally recognized exam. CNOR 
status indicates the RN's proficiency in the 
practice of caring for patients perioperativety 
(before, during. and after surgery}. This 
certification provides a credential from the 
Certification Board of Perioperative Nursing and 
is recognized by the Association ot periOperative 
Registered Nurses (AORN} as documentation of 
professional actuevement based on AORN 
standards ot practice. 

Certification as a RN RrstAssistant (CRNFA} can 
be achieved attar completing a specified number 
of hours as a first assistant and passing a 
national!y recognized ·exam. CRNFA status 
documents validation of the professional 
achievement of identified stanc;iards of practice by 
an individual Registered Nurse First Assistant 
providing perioperative care. 

---· 

'-'-
Where do RNFAs practlc 
RNFAs are employed by 1..a1s. sur~ 
centers, dinics. physicians, or self-employee 
independent providers. They 21so practice 
educators and administrators. The c.v 
performed depend on the practice sett 
experience, individual state laws, institutic 
regulations, and specialty areas in which tr 
practice. 
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Senate BiJI 2 J 14 

Specialization in nursing practice has been a major advancement in nursing over the last 
few decades, Three forces initiate movement toward specialization: 

New knowledge pertinent to the field 
Technological advance 
And response to public need. 

The development of the Registered Nurse First Assistant is the result of changes in the 
health care delivery system and insurers' greater attention to cost-effectiveness. 

The scope of practice for the Registered Nurse First Assistant is a part of the specialized 
practice of perfoperative nursing. The RNF A assists the surgeon in the perfonnance of 
the surgical procedure, from the preoperative assessment through thesurgical 
intervention, recovery, and discharge of the patient. 

Currently the board of nursing in all fifty states recognizes the RNFA role as being within 
the scope of nursing practice. The Association of periOperative Registered Nurses, the 
American College of Surgeons, the American Nurses Association, and the National 
Association of Orthopedic Nurses also recognize RNF As, 

To be eligible for certification the Registered Nurse First Assistant must: 
1. be currently licensed as a registered nurse , without provision or condition 
.2. must be a Certified Nurse Operating Room (CNOR) and must maintain that status 

throughout the entire period of CRNF A certification 
The CNOR itself involves two years of perioperative experience, current Ii censure 
as a registered nurse, and successful completion of the certification exam. 

3. must have a BSN degree as of January 1,2000 
4, must have completed 2000 documented hours of practice as an RNFA l V 
S, must have completed a formal RNFA program ~ ~ 1 f 
The category of Specialty Practice Registered Nurse recognizes the experience and 
expertise of the CRNF A. Our education is extensive and is a definite benefit to our 
patients, the citizens of North Dakota. 



REGISTERED NURSE FIRST ASSJST ANT 
CONSUMER FACT SHEET 

Registered Nurse First Assistant (RNF A) 
A quality, cost-dfective alternative for the surgical patient 

Amid America's inevitable health care reform changes and insurance cutbacks the nationally 
recognized profession of Registered Nurse First Assistant (RNF A) is proud to announce their 
unique position to offer cost effective quality first assisting and nursing care for the surgical 
patient. 

As an educated, licensed profossional, the RNFA can provide a multiple-role solution to our 
health ~are crisis, which is ~n alignment with today's hea]th care refonn philosophy. 

As a provider of surgical assisting. insurance companies may reimburse the RNF A for services 
rendered at a significantly Jower cost to the consumer and insurance industry without 
compromising the quality of patient care. 

The RNF A is a Registered Nurse with a minimum of five years clinical/didactic education, 
certHk.ation, and experience. These five years include the following chronological requisites: 
• At Jeas1 two years secondary education for Registered Nurse (RN) licensure. 
• At least two years practicing professional nwsing in the operating milieu 
• Achie\lemcnt of national Certification jn Operating Room Nursing (CNOR) which indicates: 

• satisfactory completion of two years perfoperative nursing 
• proficiency in the practice of caring for patients perioperatively 
• documented validation of professional achievement of identified standards of practice as 
• defined by the national Association of periOperative Registered Nurses (AORN) 
• extraordinary concern for accountability to the general pubHc for nursing practice 

• Education for the RNF A indicates the abi!ity to assist the surgeon at the operating room table 
as well as the ubedside", evidenced by: 
• competency in perfonning individualized surgical nursing care management before, 

during, and after surgery 
• competency in recognizing surgical anatomy and physiology and operative technique 

rell:lted to first assist 
• competency in carrying out intraoperative nursing behaviors of handling tissue, 

providing exposure, using surgical instruments, suturing, and controlJing b1ood Joss 
• competency in recognizing surgic1:1l hazards and jnitiating appropriate corrective and 

preventative action including but not ltmited to recognizing abnonnal Jab vaJues and 
diagnostic test results 

• achievement of Basic Cardiac Life Support 

.. 
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The RNF A is responsible preoperatively for: 
• Interviewing thr. surgical patient for a comprehensive health history 
• Performing nursing physical assessments 
• Educating the patient and offering emotional support 
• Evaluating the needs of the patient and of the surgical team on a continuum throughout the 

surgical intervention 

The RNF A is responsible intraoperatively for: 
• Collaborating with the surgeon and the other health care professionals for an optimal surgical 

outcome 
• Assisting the anesthesiulogjst when applicable 
• Assisting with patient positioning~ skin preparation, and draping 
• Providing wound exposure 
• Handling tissue appropriately to reduce the potential for injury 
·• Using and manipulating sw·gica] instruments skillfully 
• Controlling blood loss 
• Suturing tissue 

The RNF A is responsible postoperatively for: 
• Assisting in the safe delivery of the patient to the recovery room 
• Communicating to appropriate health care personnel and family members 
• Perfonning follow .. up care to evaluate patient condition 
• Participating in discharge planning and postoperative teaching 

REGJSTERED NURSE FIRST ASSISTANT 

Combining knowledge and sldll for assistive solutions 

• 

• 

• 
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COMMONLY ASKED QUESTIONS ABOUT REGISTERED NURSE FIRST 
ASSISTANTS (RNFA'S) AND REIMBURSEMENT 

Who are the memben of the 1ur1lc1I team? 

The members of the surgical team are the surgeon, the anesthesiologist, th-: registered nune who 
functions in the circulating nurse role, the registered muse or a surgical technologist who functiom 
in the scrub nurse role and the registered nurse who functions in the role as the first assistant to the 
SW'le0D, 

What ,, the role of the RN Flnt Assistant? 

. · The role of the.Registered Nurse First Assistant (RNFA), as reflected in the RNFA Consumer Fact 
Sheet, is collabonnive with the surgeon. It .l~egin.s when th" need for surgicd intervention ii 
identified, continues through the surgical Plt!Cedure and is completed when the patient is dilcharpd 
from the surgeon•s care. The unique role of the Registered Nurse First Assistant (RNFA) bu 
emerged out of changes in the health care delivery system and insurance cutbacks. The RNFA is 
the only licensed alternative to the MD assistant in surgery and can provide cost-effective, 
knowledgeable, educated surgical assisting without reducing the quality of patient cure. 

Are RNF'A'• recopJzed on• state and nadonalffiel? 

Yes. RNFA•• are recognized by the 

• American College or Surgeona (ACS) 
• Association or Operadn1 Room Nunes (AORN) 
• American Nurses Association (ANA) 
• National Association of Orthopedic NW1e1 (NAON) 

Do all surgical procedures require ~o 1ur1,on1? _ 

No. Most procedures require only one p.:ifflary surgeon with an educationally prepared nonpbysicfan 
ftnt uslstant. such as the RNPA. 

In eonelu1lon, ' .. . .. 
' 't 

With their time at a premium and decrculng reimbursement, surgeons are increasin, the \t.tiliudon 
of the RNFA't 1ervices. Health care reform is a virtuaJ t·eality. Reimbursement of a quallfi~ 
educationally prep~ licensed nonphyslchm. can serve the public's health care needs et a 
1ub1tandal coat 1avinp to the im~Re parrier and to the consumer. 

'I' 
RNPA'• are credible altem1tives f~r provldJn1 surgical aufstance throuahout all phases of• 
pat!mt's surgical experience. With today•s trend to reduce h&llth can, spendin1t the role of the , 
RNP A fa viewed u a aafeguard against any redueuon in quality or .continuity of health care • . .. 

• • I, 

• 
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CERTIFICATION PROGRAM FOR REGISTERED NURSE FIRST ASSIST ANTS 
OFFERED BY THE CERTIFICATION BOARD PERIOPERATIVE 1-.1.JRSING 

Definition 

Certification is defined RS: The documented validation of the professional achievement of identified 
standards of practice by an individual registered nurse providing care for patients before, during and· 
after surgery. 

Objcctivts c'1! the Certification Program 

• 'Recognizes the individual registered nurse who is proficient in practice. 
• Streiig1hens conscious use of theory in planning and implementing patient care. 
• Enhances professional growth through continued learning that results in broader knowledge 

and expanded skills, 

Purposes of Certification 

• Demonstrate concern for accountability to the general public for nursing practice, 
• Enhance quality patient care. 
• Identify RNf'A' s who have dtmonstrated professional achievement in providing care for 

patients during ic;utgical intervention. 
• Provide employing agencies with a means of identifying professional achievement of an 

individual RNF A. , 
• ldentify professional nurses practicing in an expanded role. 

Ellgiblllfy 

Any registered nurse who meets the following requirements may apply for certification. EVERY 
REQUIREMENT MUST BE l\tET AT THE TIME OF APPLICATION. 

1. The applicant must be currently licensed as a registered nurse, without provision or 
condition, in the country where currently practicing. 

2. The applicant must be a CNOR at the time of applicatiot1 and must maintain CNOR status 
during the entire period of CRNF A certification. 

3, The applicant must have successfully completed a structnred tducational cow-se ~don the 
core currfoulum for the RNF A. 

4. The applicant must have completed at leacrt 2000 hours of practice as an RNFA. This 
piactic-e· inc1udet"pre·artd·postoperati've'patient'care ru: we)l as practictrwithin the c,perating 
room. It may include hours of practice in an RNF A internship or practicum. It does not 
include attendance of classes, programs or seminars. Written documentation ol the 2000 
hours of practice must accompany this appUcatlon, 

4. The applicant must have completed at least S00 of the r<:quired practice hours wltltln the two 
years prior to application. 



... 

Abe CllPN (Certification Board Perioperative Nursing) recently included, as part of its • 
w;ategk plan, the BSN or MSN as a criterion for certification. This plan will be implemented 

in the year 2000. lrus change reflects the Board's decision to support a professional standard. lbis 
criterion brings certification in accordance with its purpose. Meanwhile, the time frame provides 
sufficient notification for those nurses without plans for further education to be(;omc certified. It is 
not the Board's wish to penaliz~ nurses without nurses degrees, but to encourage them to meet this 
professional standard. ,· 

Those who are already certified will not need a DSN or MSN as long as CNOR certification 
d->es not lap1e . .... 

Recertificatjon 
. 

CRNF A certification is conferred for a period of five years. To recertify, CRNF A's must either: 

1. Achieve a passing score on the examination; or 
2. Pr<Nide written documentation of 100 acceptable contact hours related to RNFA practice 

( over and above the CNOR contact hours) 

Documentation of 2000 practice hours as an RNF A will be required as part of the eligibility criteria. 

• ...., I 

I '•.,-t ............ ,, ,...,,..,1...,,0 ........... ,.,. ",,.,,..,.,..,..,._1 ♦• ..... , _.,-.,., ~,~.: ....... ,,. 
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REGISTERED NURSE FIRST ASSIST ANT 
EDUCATIONAL COURSE 

The Registered Nurse First Assistant program is designed to provide the experienced perioperative 
nurse with the advanced preparation necessary to assume the role of first assistant. The nursing 
process is utilized as the basis for providing nwsing care to patients requiring surgical intervention. 
The program is based on the Core Curriculwn for the RNF A. 

Prerequisites 

A. Two years of recent perioperative experience in scrubbing and circulating, and/or first 
. . assisting. 

B. Must be CNOR or CNOR eligible with CNOR status obtained before a certificate of program 
cofupletion is awarded. Verification of cw-rent RN license and CNOR status must be 
submitted. 

C. CPR certification required. 
D. Must submit two letters: 

1. One of recommendation validating: 
I!- Proficiency in the roles of scrubbing, circulating, or first a'lsisting 
b. Ability to perform effectively in stressful and emergency situations 
c. Ability to perform effectively and harmoniously as a team member 
d. Ability to perform effectively as a leader · · · · · 

2. One from ~urgeon/physkian agreeing to fulfill the preceptor role during the 
independent clinical internship. 

The program consists of three components: 

A. Precl~sroom Component .. Consists of reading assignments with accompanying feedback 
analysis to be complete prior to the one week didactic session. Begins approximately six 
weeks prior to didactic component. 

These texts are required: 

1. 
2. 

3. 
4. 

Coi·e Curriculum for the RNF A - (from AORN) 
Rothrock, J. (1993), TI-IE FIRS1' RN ASSIST ANT; AN EXP ANDED 
PERI OPERATIVE ROLE. J. B. Lippincott: Philadelphia 
Clinical surgical text of choice 
Also suggested: 
Current AORN standards 

....... 

Bates, B. ( 1987 or most recent edition), A GUIDE TO PHYSICAL EXAMINA TJON 
AND HlSTORY TAKlNO. 4t11 edition, J, B. Lippincott: Philadelphia 
Zollinger. A TL.AS OF SURGICAL PROCEDURES. Anatomy and Physiology. 
Brown. Physical Assessment Text 

B. The DidactJc Learning Session • The classroom component is designe;d to provide the RNF A 

... 
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candida.te with the intellectual concepts and manual techniques necessary to first.assisting. 
This se~sion includes 48 hours of lectures and manual dexterity laboratory sessions on knot • 
tying and suwring. The obj<.-ctives arc based on the Core Curriculum for RN First Assistants. 

1. 

2. 
3. 
4. 
..... 
5' • . .. 

. . 6. 
7.'. 
8 .. 
9. 

10. 
11. 

12. 

13. 
14. 

Discuss the evolution of the RN as a first assistant and their role as a surgical team 
member 
Identify behaviors of the RN first assistant 
Describe factors influencing scope of practice 
Discuss legal issues and docwnents that delineate legal responsibilitits for the RN 
first assistant 
List methods of providing exposure, hemostasis, and safe tissue handling 
Demonstrate basic knots with modifications and combinations of same 
Demonstrate basic suturing methods for wound closure 
Recognize proper techniques of asepsis, infection control, and wound healing. 
Describe the anatomy, physiology, and disease processes as thP;y relate to each of the 
specialty areas and specific operations 
Recognize surgical hazards and identify appropriate nursing actions 
Discuss types of job descriptions, personnel scheduling systems and implement 
evaluation systems within a hospital facility 
Identify and demonstrate knowledge of.drugs used in pre and postop care, OR and 
M.~tbesia 
Discuss current credentialing processes available to the RNFA's 
Discuss application methods for practice privileges and reimbursement 

C. Independent Clinical Internship - This component is designed to practice the necessary 
clinical teaming experiences for the perloperative uurse who wishes to functf on in the 
expanded role of an RNFA. The internship will be supervised and mutually planned by the 
physician preceptor and the RNF A student. Each student will actively participate in 
determining their objectives, identifying lea.ming resources, and evaluating attainment of 
goals for their individual learning needJ, The physician preceptor will assist the student in 
learning independent intraoperative behavior necessary for the RNF A role, Tbtse include: 

• 
• 
• 
• 

tissue handling 
suturing and knot tying 
providing hemostasis and exposw-c 
use of surgical instruments . ..... 

• 

• 

The RNFA student will consult with the program faculty coordinator a.nd function under the 
direct supervision of the surgeon preceptor during the entire clinJcal internship. The 
lndependent structure of the clinical internship component demands the student to be highly 
disciplined, motivated, and self .. directed with attention directed toward goal setting and 
achievement. 1be internship will be 120 hours specific to the role of the RNFA. This 
component must be completed within the maximum time frame of twelve montm. A 
certificate of program completion will be issued after successful completion of all ' • 
components. 
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Definition 

CNOR EXAM OFFERED BY 
CERTIFICATION BOARD 

PERIOPERATIVE NURSING 

C'NOR certification is defined as: The documented validation of the professional achievement of identified 
standards of practice ty an individual registered nurse providing care for patients before, during and after 
surgery. 

... ' 
Objectives or th-, Certification Program 

. . 
• Recognizes the individual registered nurse who is proficient in practice. 
• Strengthens conscious use of theory in assessing, planning, implementing, and evaluating patient 

car.e. 
• Enhances professional gro,vth through continued learning that results in broader knowledge and 

ex.panded skllls. 

PurpoHs of Certlncatlon 

• nemor,c:trateo ooncem for accountability to the general public for nursing practic::c. 
• .Cnhan..,~ quulity patient care. · 
• Identify registered nurses who have demonstrated professional auhievemcnt in providing 

preioperative nursing care. 
• Provide employing agencies with a means of identifyirig professional achievement of an individual 

perioperatlve nurse. 
• Provide personal satisfaction for practitioners. 

EJ1giblllty 

Any registered nurse who meets the tollowlng requirements may apply for certification. EVERY 
REQUIREMENT MUST BE MET AT THE TIME OF APPLICATION. 

l. The applicant must be currently licensed as a registered nurse, without provision or condition. in the 
country where currently practicing. 

2. The apptlcant must have completed a minimum of two year perloperatlve practice as a registered 
nurse In an ~dminlstmtlve, teaching, research, or general staff capacity. The practice may be full 
or part time. There must be at least 2400 hours during that two year period. ·-... · 

3. The appllcant must have been employed at some time within the last two years prior to appJlcatlon, 
either fuJI or part time, ln an administrative, teaching. research, or general staff' capacity fn 
perioperatlve nurtlna as a registered nurse.· 

Recertfncadon 

1. Achk:ve a passing score on the program. 
2. Provide written documentation of l 00 acceptablt contact hou~. 



January 22, ~001 

Testimony : To Senate Human Services Committee 

ChaJrperson Lee and Committee Members: 
My name Is Mary Smith. I am testifying on behalf of the North DakotEJ 
Nurses AssocJatlon on SB 2114. 

The Nurses Association commends the Board of Nursing for their work 
and for the process of open communication and for Involving nurses from 
numerous practice areas In making decisions regarding needed changes In 
the Practices Act. 

Hlghllghts of the proposed changes we view as strengthening and clarifying 
the 11practlce of nursing" lnchJde; 

In Section One The proposed definition of "Unlicensed Asslstlve 
Personnel" provides for utllfzatlon of an assistant to the nurse In a variety of 
roles regardless of title. The proposed definition of "Specialty Practice 
Registered Nurse" provides recognition and llcensure for nurses who 
practice In a speclalty area but do not have a Masters Degree. 

In Section Three The proposed revision of an exemption for 
individuals Ucensed In another jurisdiction with a ND employer allows for 
the nurses to attend orientation, meetings, or required continuing education 
without obtaining a ND license. Speclflcally, health care facilities located 
on the ND, Minnesota, SD and Montana rorders h~ve satellite cllnlcs and 
smaller hospitals, which employ nurses licensed In these states, Due to 
changes In the health care environment, and the establishment of large 
health care corporations across state borders, many nurses who reside In 
a contiguous state must attend required lnservlces or orientation from the 
ND employer at the ND workslte. This exemption also speclflcally provides 
for nurse consultants to practice In the state on a limited basis. 

In Section Seven The proposed elJmlnatlon of residency 
requirements for nurses to practice. 
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Section Ten The proposed revisions provide for an alternative to 
dlsclpllne such as the Nurse Advocacy Program for Impaired nurses and 
Increases clarity. It gives the board the authority to ask for an evaluation 
and treatment when Impairment Is reported to the board. The other 
revisions would allow for voluntary surrender of one's license to practice 
nursf ng. tt also. provides for the burden of proof on the licensee to submit 
evidence of safe practice. Subsection 5 has been clarified by Inserting the 
language of professional misconduct which would be further defined In the 
rules. Examples of professional misconduct would be a departure or 
failure to conform to standards of practice, endangering a patient's life or 
safety, non-payment of Nursing Education Loan, and failure to adhere to 
professional code of ethics, 

The Nurses Association, however does have one area of non-agreement 
with the revisions. We have met with the Board regarding this Issue and 
have not been able to reach resolution. We have In effect agreed to 
disagree and a member of our Board will be presenting that Issue this 
morning. 

Thank you for this opportunity to testify and for your support of nurses in 
North Dakota. 

Mary Smith MS,RN 
President, NONA 
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TESTIMONY ON SB 2114 
NORTH DAKOTA NURSES ASSOCIATION 

Chairperson Lee and members of the Senate Human Services Committee. My 
name is Penni Weston. I am a Registered Nurse and a board member of the 
North Dakota Nurses Association (NONA), an organization r"presenting 
professional nurses in ND. 

NONA has been a participant in the workgroups responsible for formulating the 
revisions to the Nurse Practice Act. We appreciated the opportwtity to be 
involved in this process and support the revisions with one exception. We are 
not supportive of the exemption for those individuals who provide medications 
in specific settings (developmentally disabled treatment centers, hwnan service 
centers, etc.), NONA is fuJly aware that this exemption has been agreed upon as 
a compromise, however we have grave concerns for the safety of the clients 
receiving medications as a result of this compromise. The dictionary defines 
compromise as conceding, giving in or making a deal. The other definition of 
cmnpromise is to compromise care. We believe this is the applicable definition 
in this exemption for the following reasons: 

1. This exemption allows the least trained individual to administer 
medications to some of our least capable citizens, Medication 
administration is a complex 1:jkill that requires a broad base of knowledge 
to prevent undesired consequences. It is much more involved than 
simply "handing out pills". The individua1 administering medication 
must have knowledge of anatomy and physiology (which organs will the 
medication affect), microbiology (what diseases or infections is the 
medication intended to treat), pharmacology (what are the potential side 
effects and allergic reactions), mathematics ( what is the correct dosage) 
and medical and Jega] prin.ciples. These must be W1derstood before the 
actual manual skill of giving the medication can be mastered. At the very 
least, licensed nurses should be involved in determining which 
medications can be safely administered by someone with only the 
completion of a self-study program, 

2. Client safety is our major concern with this exemption. Who will be 
rnoµitoring medication administration to assure that the clie~t's safety 
and well being is protected? The client wil1 go to a health care provider 
who will issue a prescription and then will have no further responsibility 
to the client. The prescription will then go to a phannacist who will fill 
place the pills in the bottle and Jabe) the container. This phannacist will 
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also have no further responsibility or interaction with the cJient. The 
medication is then delivered to the client's care setting. Who then, will 
be responsible to make sure the medication is given at the appropriate 
time, in the right amount and to the right client? 

A recent report from the IOM (Institute of Medicine) demonstrates that 
errors are being made at alarming rates. Medication errors are one of the 
areas that have surfaced as being one of the most troublesome. Note that 
this report indicates patient safety is being jeopardized in health care 
settings where licensed nurses are administering medications. Common 
sense would tell us that if medication errors were jeopardizing patient 
safety where licensed nurses are involved in the process of medication 
administration, not having a licensed nurse involved would seem to 
indicate almost sure danger. 

3. Thjs legislative body is deliberating a bill, which would allow 
pham1acists with a doctorate degree (7 years of formal education) to 
administer flu vaccines to adults. This same legislation (SB 2364) was 
defeated last session with the rationale given by legislators that it was 
"unsafe" and that medication administration, particularly to pediatric 
patients, must be done by nurses. It seems inconsistent and illogical to 
think then, that someone with less education should be allowed to 
administer medications such as anticonvulsants (prevent seizures), 
psychotropics (mood altering), antihypertensives (blood pressure and 
heart medications), and oral hypoglycemics ( diabetes medications), 
Medical symptoms may not have been the reason for someone entering 
these settings, however, as the aging process occurs and medical 
problems arise. so does the need for nursing care; particular)y medication 
administration. The person who administers these medications should 
know about drug toxicities, side effects, drug/drug interactions and other 
potential problems that may arise as a result of the client requiring 
medication for treatment of a medical problem. If the individual 
administering the medications does not have this knowledge, then the 
person who is supervising the medication administration must know this 
in order to safely delegate this task. 

As previously stated, NONA does not support this exemption, however, we are 
offering an amendment for the committee to consider. The premise of 
professional licensing is to protect the public from unscrupulous providers. 
Exemptions to a practice act serve only to weaken the protection of the public. 
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When this exemption was temporary, the last sentence, 0 A licensed nurse may 
delegate medication administration to a person exempt from the provisions of 
Chapter 43-12. l under this subsection° 1nay have been important. With the 
exemption potentially becoming permanent, we ask that it be eliminated. 

Families who give nursing care to a family member are exempted, but a 
licensed nurse is often involved through home care or hospice services, 
Individuals rendering assistance in a disaster are exempt, but Jicensed nurses 
have always been involved such as providing leadership and direction for care 
in the shelters. 

Because this sentence is in one of the exemptions, it may prevent licensed 
nurses from being involved in the other exemptions as well. 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO SB 2114 

Delete the last sentence of Section 3, 43 .. 12.1-04, subsection 9, d. to read: 

Eb Human service centers licensed under chapter so .. 06. A lieensee 

AYFse may Elelegate meaieatieA adminiBfflltion to a persen eKempt 

fi=em the pro,;isiens of Chapter 43 -12, J 1:lflder trns subseotien, 

In closing, NDNA believes licensed nurses should be and must be involved in 
any setting where nursing care is rendered, either through direct care or 
delegation. Delegation implies licensed nurse responsibility, which cannot be 
permissive under the law. 



To: Senate Human Services Committee 
Judy Lee, chair 

From: Mehtna Howe, RN 
Director of Patient Care Services 
Hettinger, North Dakota 

I am l• registered nurse and work in healthcare administration. 

As an employer of healthcare personnel with West River Regional Medical Center and 
President of the North Dakota Organization of Nurse Executives (the clinical supportive 
entity of the North Dakota Healthcare Association), I am speaking in support of Senate 
Bi 11 2114 and specifically Sections One and Three as they relate to supervision through 
delegation and licensure. 

First, North Dakota is unique in its standards for assignment and delegations. The 
nurse's role and accountability for care are defined by the following questions: 

1. Who is directing the care? 
2. From whom does the unlicensed assistive personnel get the authority to act? 
3. What are the nursing activities for which the nurse is held accountable? 

In numerous healthcare facilities across ND. individuals, regardless of title or education, 
are performing interventions delegated and supervised by a licensed nurse. These 
individuals are assistive to the nurse, regardless of title. The desired change in the 
Practice Act recognizes the individuars education, training, and competency. It also 
recognizes those individuals' scope of practice that ovel'laps with nursing. h sets the 
stage for mutual respect between professionals. An assistant to the nurse is not a nursing 
assistant, but may be another recognized professional, such as medical assistant, surgical 
technfoian, dialysis technician, or medical technicians. 

Secondly, ND practitioners must be licensed to practice nursing. This section would 
exempt individuals Hcensed in another jurisdiction with a ND employer to attend 
orientatfon, meetings1 or required ~ontinuing education without obtaining a ND License, 
SpeciflcaHy, heahhcare facilities located on the North Dakota, Minnesota, South Dakota, 
and Montana borders have satellite clinics and smaller hospitals, which employ nurses 
licensed in Minnesota, Montana, and South Dakota. 

Due to the significant changes in the healthcare environment and the establishment of 
large healthcare corporations across state borders, many nurses who reside in a border 
state must attend required in-services or orientation in ND. Also, a number of national 
corporations and organii.ations employ nurses strictly to provide either consultation or 
education in ND for Umited time frames. This exemption also specifically provides for 
nurse consultants to practice an the state on limited basis. Examples tncJude but are not 
limited to, presenting in-services, reviewing policy and procedures, working as a sole 
representative, guest Jecturer, short-tenn consultant. 

The ND BON should be commended on their collaboration with nursing executives, such 
as myself, to prepare for the desired revisions of the Standards of Practice for nursing. 
Healthcare is changing rapidly and drastically. The proposed revisions are timely, 
practical, and make good sense. Thank you. 
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649 Airport Rd. • Bismarck, ND 58604 , Phone: (701) 223· 1386 • Fax: (701) 223-0675 

January 25, 2001 

Members of the Senate Human Services Committee: 

I have attached a summary and supporting data from HRSA Bureau of Health Professions 
regarding: 
• nmnbers of nurses, 
• changes in numbers of uursing degrees awarded, 
• educational levels of nurses, and 
• various employment indicators for nurses 
for North Dakota and the surrounding stattis of Minnesota, Montana and South Dakota as 
well as national averages, 

Thu data 1upport, that North Dakota's educational requirements have Jl2t 
n.,.atively ,mpacted the numbers or nurses ia the state. In mo,t areas, Including 
numben of RN1, LPN1 and numben of students graduating from LPN programs, 
North Dakota "outranks" nejghboriag state that have lower educational 1tandard1 
and the national averages, 

Thank you for your consideration of this material and please feel free to contact me at 
any time with questions or concerns regarding nursing issues. 

Sharon Moos, Executive Administrator 
North Dakota Nurses Association 
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SUMMARY OF ATIACHED RN/LPN DATA 
FOR NORTH DAKOTA AND SURROUNDING STATt:s 

-----·-------·-------------------, 
ata1I 
North Dakota 
Minnesota 
Montana 
South Dakota 
U.S. 

~umber of BN1 per &QQ,9QO Pouulation 
1069 
945 
764 

1049 
798 

Source: Division for Nursing; ~ureau of lhc Census 1996 

&.thm•• Rank 
3/50 
12/SO 
34/50 
S/50 

.51IU 
North Dakota• 

Number of LPNs nee 100,000 PopuJaUon 
434 

Minnesota 
Montana 
South Dakota 
U.S. 

353 
268 
254 
249 

•North Dakota has 1.5 times the national rate c,fL.PNs and rank.\· r' highest In 50 stc,tes 

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics~ Bureau of lhe Census; DivisJon for Nursin 1998 

Percentage Change An RN Program Degrees Awarded 
&m 
North Dakota 
Minnesota 
Montana 
South Dakota 
U.S. 

-8% 
10% 
-5% 
-43% 
12% 

Source: National Center for Educational Statistics; Bureau of tlw Census 

~a not adju1t«Jfor growth of 1tat11 oiwall population during J 9')/./997 

Percentage Change in LPN Program Degrees Awarded 
aim 
North Dakota 
Minnesota 
Montana 
South Dakota 
U.S . 

18% 
-3% 
-41% 
4% 
12% 

1991-2 to 1996-7111 

1991-2 to 1996-7* 

Source: National Center for Education Statistics~ Bureau of the Census 
-OOta not adfe ,tsd for growth <f ,tatu owraU popt1latl0ff "'4rlng J 99 J • I 997 
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-----Ht1be1t Nunla1 Related Educational Attainment of RNs Ernployed in Nursing 1996 

a.tau 

North Dakota 
Minnesota 
Montana 
South Dakota 
U.S. 

l!lalRml 
28% 

A11ociate 
Dure, 

IS% 
P1cc1l1u re••~ 

4~/o 
MIHfrn/Do,. 

8% 
24% 
21% 
23% 
24% 

37% 
33% 
38% 
35% 

32% 
40% 
33% 
32% 

7% 
6% 
5% 
10% 

Source: Division for Nursing ____________________ ~ 

Number of LPNs per 100 RNs 
North Dakota 40 
Minnesota 3 7 
Montana 35 
South :Dakota 24 
National Average 3 2 
Source: Bureau of Labor StutisUcs; Bureau of the Cen1ius; Division for Nursing 1998 
Data for RNs drawn from tho 1996 National Sam le Survey 

Percent Chan1e In Ff E Hospital RN Employment 1992-1998 

&au 
North Dakota 
Minnesota 
Montana 
South Dakota 
U.S. 

"• or Chanae 
21% 
12% 
13% 
-3% 
9°/o 

Source: American Hos ital Association 

Percent RN• Employed Full Time 1996 

aiau 
North Dakota 
Minnesota 
Montana 
South Dakota 
U.S. 

•(• RNs Employed Full Time 
65%• 
5S% 
6S% 
73% 
71% 

Source: Division for Nursing; Bureau of the Census 

National Rauk 
43/50 
48/50 
41/50 
21/50 

• R,vl.w of 1999 ND Boord ofMmlng Data indicat1J $2U o/lfNt now cmploy.dfall time In North Dakota 
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NURSING 

✓ Thero woro 7,248 llconscd registered nurses (RNs) in North Dakota in 1996; 6,902 were 
employed In nursh1g, 

✓ There were 1068.9 RNs per 100,000 population in North Dakota in 1996, signitlciwt!y 
moro than the national average of 798. 

✓ The RN workforce ln tho West North Central Census Division aged significantly between 
1988 and 1996, The percentage ofRNs 40 years and older l11crcased from 44% in 1988 
to 59% in J 996. 

✓ In 1996, the majority of RNs employed in nursing ln the West North Central Consus 
Division were non .. Hispanic white (96.6%). Only 1 % were Black/African American, Jess 
than their percentage in the general population (5.3%), 

✓ The number of RNs !ti North Dakota increased 11 % between 1988 and 1996 while the 
state's pvpuJation declined I%. The result was a 12% growth in RNs per capita, com­
pared to a 200/4 growth nationwide. 

✓ The majority (60"/o) ofRNs in the West North Central Census Divlsior, who wero em-

' ✓ 

I ✓ 

i ✓ 

ployed worked in hospitals in 1996, As a result, metropolitan areas with a concentration 
ofhospital beds were likely to have a relatively high ratio ofRNs per capita, 

In North Dakota, the numbcrof fulJ-timc equivalent RNs working in hospitals increased 
21 % between 1992 and 1998 while the number of inpatlcnt days declined 17%. The 
result was a 45% increase in the ratio of full .. tlme equivalent RNs to inpatient days, com­
pared to a 26% increase in the ratio nationwide. 

In 1996, 49% ofRNs employed in nursing in North Dakota had a Baccalaureate degree; 
28% had a Nursing diploma; 15% had an Associate degree; and 8% had a Masters/ 
Doctoral degree. 

Between J 991 .. 92 and 1996-97, the vast majority of nursing degrees awarded in North 
Dakota were Baccalaureate degrees and there were no Associate degrees awarded in 
nursing in the state during that period. 

In 1996-97, 95.90/o of the RN degree recipients in North Dakota were non-Hispanic 
white. Approximately 3% were American Indian/ Alaskan Native, sUghtly Jess than the 
percentage in the state's general population (4.6%), 

North Dakota -- 31 
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REGISTERED N lJKSES 

Registered Nurses - Total & RNs employed In nursing, 1996 

North Dakota Region VIII us Rook 
Reglsterodmnea • total 7,2'18 80,660 2,558.874 47/50 

---
ReglM(:)red m.nos emp(oyed In nursing (RNs) 6,902 68.680 2,116.816 40/60 

Par 100,000 population 1,068,9 798,4 797,7 3/50 

Percent efll)loyed full time 65% 69% 71% 43/50 

Poroanf femcie 96% 

Percent minority 10% 

Source: DMslon for Nursl11g: Bureau of fhe Census. 
Note: Unless otherwise Indicated, 'ne-glstered Nurws' and 'RNs' designate Registered Nl.Woos ernployod In nurslnu 

,o 
6.'ls> 

C> 

RNs per 100,000 population, 1996 

us 
Region vm 

North Oak.at.a 

797.7 

198.4 

1,068.9 

Sot.rce: Division for Nursing; Bureau of the Census . 

tm 946 to 1703 

□ 801 to 945 

□ 723 to 801 

D 568 to 723 

• 32 -- North Dakota 
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Age distribution of RNs employed ln nursing, West North 
Centro/Census Division, 1988-1996 

uO'r, 

461, 

■ 1988 

Sol.Ice: Di\11$1on tor Nurllng . 

30'lf, 

O 1992 ■ 199: .. 

33% 

Jili 
60 ♦ 

Percent change In RNs, population & RNs per 100,000 population, 
1988-1996 

35% 32% 

30% 

25% 

20'K, 

15~ 

10% 

5\lt, 

0% 

-5% 

30% 

-1% 

■ North Dakota 

□ Region VIII 

li:IUS 

14% 

Popubllon 

Soli'ce: D!wloo for Nu!ilng; Bureau ot the Census . 

17% 

RNs per 100,000 pop. 

North Dakota -- 33 
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Percent change In FTE hospital RN employment, hospital 
Inpatient days & FTE hospital RN employment per Inpatient 

day, 1992-1998 
60% 

40'#i 

16% 

■ North Dakota 

CJ Region VIII 

mus 

-17% 

45% 

-40% 
FTC hosptto! RNs Hor,pllollnpallonl do11a FH hospllal flN& po, 100,<xXl 

k1pol, Doy, 

SoLXce: American Hosµltal Association. 

Highest nursing-related educational attainment of RNs employed In 
nursing, 1996 

49% 

:SOu-ce\ Division for Nursing, 

■ North Dakota 
D Region VIII 
mus 

iOi 
Mosfers/Docloral 

North Dakota ~- 35 
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RN EDUCATION 

RN education program degrees received by award level, 1991 ~92 to 
1996 .. 97 

+ Blccalauroato .,._ Maliters/Ooctoral 

Ill.I 

100 

SotXce: Naflonol Center for EcitJcatlon Statistic&: Bureau of the Census, 

Percentage change In RN program degrees awarded, population & 
RN program degrees awarded per l 00,000 population, 1991 -2 to 

1996-7 

12% 

DeQreet awarded 

10% 

■ North Dakota 

□ Region VIII 

mus 

Populatlon 

6% 

• 17% 

Degreei awarded pet 
100,000 populatlon 

SolMce: National Center for Educatton Statistics; Bureau of the Census, 

36 ·· North Dakota 
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LICENSED PRAC'fICALNocATIONAL NURSES (I.JPNs) 
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North Dakota ranked 2nd highest among the states in the pl~ 1 ,apita employment of 
Licensed PracticalNocational Nurses (LPNs), with 434.3 LPNs per 1 O<M>OO population 
which is more than 1.5 times the national rate of 249.3 per l00,000. North Dakota 
ranked 38th in the nutt1ber of LPN$ em.ployed in 1998 with 2,770 workers. 

Over two thfrds of alt LPNs in the United States in 1999 worked in institutional settings 
(35.9% working in hospitals and 34.8% working in nursing and personal care facilities), 

The VRSt majority of LPNs in the United Stutes were non~Hispanic white (73% in t 999) and 
female (94.9% in 19~8), Nationally, Black/ African Americans were over represented in the 
profession (18%) compared to their presence in the population as a whote ( 12%), By con~ 
trast, Hispanic/Latinos were urtdcrrepresented (5%) compared to their presence in the popula­
tion (l l % in 1999), 

Most reoipients of LPN degrees in North Dakota in l 997 were non-Hispanic white 
(94%) and female (93%), 

In North Dakota, there were 40 LPNs for every l 00 RNs employed in the state. This is 
significantly higher than tho national ratio of 32 LPNs employed for every 100 RNs. 

LPNs, 1998 

North Dakota Region VIII us ND rank 

LPNs 2,770 17,500 673,790 38/50 

Per 100,0CX) population 434,3 198,9 249,3 02/60 

Par 100 RNs 40,, 25.5 31,8 11/50 

Percent fern ale 94, (1,\'., 

Sottce: Burecu of Labor statistics: Bureuu of the Census; Division for Noolng, 
Note: Data for~ drown from the l996 Nattonol Sample survey, 
The obbr&Vkrtlon LPN, or Licensed Practtcol Nu11e, Is used herein to refer to bom LPNs and L VNs, or Ucansad Vocotlonol NlXS8s . 

North Dakota -- 41 
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LPNs per 100,000 population, 1998 LPNs per l 00 RNs, 1998 

600 

.., 

.ltlJ 

3(1) 

,ru 

Ml 

:ittl 

llfl 

100 

I() 

(j 

434,il 

1989 

NOllhl>ci(oto lJS 

All 

,I() 

u 
\0 

40.l 

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics; aUfaau of the Census; Division for Nursing, 
Note: Datu fOf ~ drawn from the 1996 Nattonol Sarnple Survey. 

266 

Race/ethnicity of LPNs and the population, U ,s,, 1999 

73% 72.% 

60':W. 

~ 

30% 

IO'r. 

■ LPNs 

D Population 

18% 
12% 11% 

5% 0 3% 4% , 
-□ 

Nm-~l<i whit o 8kJok/Afrrn1 
Ame!IOOfl 

Hl~~/l.OI 1n«ti) Alloll & f'oolfic 
lllood8t' 

Sou-ca: Bureau of Lobot statistics, 

1% 1% 
-= 

An10t1rot1 
I ndionl A iatikCJlt 

NCJlll'tt 

318 

us 
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• LPNs by place of work, U.S., 1999 

other 
Other health 6.5% 

services 
11.9% 

Offices & 
cllrilcs 
10.9% 

Nursing cmd 
personal care 

faclllttes 
34.8% 

Souce: Blteou of Labor SkJtlstlcs, 

Hcspltals 
35,9% 

• Percentage change In FTE hospltal LPN ernployment, Inpatient days 
& FTE hospital LPN employment per Inpatient day, 1992-1998 

• 

40% 

30% 

20% 

10% 

21% 

-15% 

Flt hotpltol LPNs 

■ North Dakota 

o Region Vlll 

f!il us 

-17% 

31% 30% 

Hospllol lt1po!l81"1t doys m LPNs per I 00,000 lnPol. 
day& 

Souce: American Ho!pttal Association; Bureau of the Census, 
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LPN education program degrees awarded, 1992-3 to 1996-7 

180 

120 

100 

80 

60 

20· 

0+-------,-------,------..---~-----. 
1991·2 1992·3 1993-.4 1994-8 1996{> 1996•7 

Sollce: Nottonol Center fot Education Skrl!stlcs . 

Percentage change In LPN degrees awarded, population & LPN 
degrees per 1 00, 000 population, 1992 .. 3 to l 996-97 

20% 18% 

Hi% 

1~ 

!i'k. 

0% 

.511, 

·'°" 
·16" 

LPN <MgtHI 

10.6% 

1.3% 

■ North Dakota 

D Region VIII 
1111us 

Populolbn 

-10% 

Ll'N d&~s per 100< pop 

So1.1ce: Natlonol Center for Education stottsttcs: Buroou of the Census . 
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NURSING 
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✓ There were 50,909 licensed registered nurses (RNs) in Minnesota in 1996; 44,015 
were employed in nur.:ing. 

✓ There were 945 .2 RNs per 1001000 population in Minnesota in 19961 more than the 
national average of 798, 

✓ The RN workforce in the West North Ccntra] Census Division aged significantly 
between 1988 and 1996, The percentage of RNs 40 years and older increased from 
44% in 1988 to 59% in 1996. 

✓ In 1996, the majority ofRNs employed in nursing in the West North Central Census 
Division were non-Hispanic white (96.6%). Only J % were Black/ African American, 
less than their percentage in the general population (5.3%). 

✓ 

✓ 

✓ 

✓ 

The number of RNs in Minnesota inc.,-rcased 30% between 1988 and 1996 while the 
state's population only grew 8%. The result was a 20% growth in RNs per capita, the 
same as the growth nationwide, 

The majority (60%) ofRNs in the West North Central Census Division who were 
employed worked in hospitals in 1996. As a result, metropolitan areas with a concen­
tration of hospital beds were likely to have a relatively high ratio of RNs per capita. 

In Mirtnesota, the number of full-time equivalent RNs working in hospitals increased 
12% between 1992 and 1998 while the number of inpatient days declined 11 %. The 
result was a 25% increase in the ratio of full-time equivalent RNs to lnpatfont days, 
compared to a 26% increase in the ratio nationwide. 

In 1996, 37% ofRNs employed 1n nursing in Minnesota had an Associate degrecj 
32% had a Baccalaureate degree; 24% had a Nursing diplomaj and 7% had a Mas-
ters/Doctoral degree, 

✓ Between 1991-92 and 1996-97, the number of Associate degrees awarded in nursing 
in Minnesota remained relatively stable white the number of Baccalaureate degrees 
awarded in~-reascd slightly. 

✓ In 1996~97, 94.9% of the RN degree recipients in Minnesota were non-Hispanic 
white . 

Minnesota -- 31 



REGISTERED NURSES 

• Registered Nurses - Total & RNs employed In nursing, 1996 

Minnesota Region V us Rook 

P.eglstered nt.l'ses - total 50,909 502,989 2.558,874 19/50 

Registered nll'ses employed In rurslng (RNs) 44.015 415,036 2,115,815 18/50 

Par 100,000 population 945.2 858.8 797.7 12/50 

Percent employed full time 55% 65% 71% 48/50 

Percent female 95% 

Percent minority 10% 

Souce: DMslon for Nursing: Bureau of the Census. 
Note: Unless otherwise lndlccrted, 'Registered Nurses' and 'RNs' designate '1eglstered NlXses employed In nursing, 

RNs per l 00,000 population, 1996 

• 

E2J 945 to ·,, 703 

D 801 to 945 ,c, 
ai"fs) 

□ 723 to 801 {> 
D 568 to 723 

.............. Nf/lllr ....... ,....~..., ............... ........., ...... ..........,,... 

us 797,7 

Region V 858.8 

Minnesota 945.2 
••11:1••·· • ... •• ........... "~......,. ................... 

• Sollce: DM1k>n for Nursing: Bureau of the Census, 
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• 
Percent change In FTE hospital RN employment, hospital 

Inpatient days & FTE hospital RN employment per Inpatient 
day, 1992-1998 

60% ■ Minnesota 

□ ReglonV 

1ml us 25% 27% 26% 

FTE hospHd r~N$ HQGPHal lnpa!lent days Flt hospHol RNs per 100,000 
~pat.Days 

Source: Amerlcan Hospital Association. 

• Highest nursing-related educational attainment of RNs employed in 
nursing, 1996 

• 

■ Minnesota 

OReglonV 

mus 

l)plomo Aeeoclote Degtee Boccok:rnreote Moslers/Dootoral 

Sotxce: Dlvl~on for Nu/'8lng, 
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RN EDUCATION 

RN education program degrees received by award level, l 99 l -92 to 
1996-97 

,.ro, ....,_ Associate Degree ..,_ Baccalaureate -+- Masters/Doctoral 

0 ..,__ __________________ _ 

199112 199'2/3 1993/d 1994/b 19%/6 

Source: Natlonol Center fat Education Statistics: Bureau of tha Census, 

Percentage change In RN program degrees awarded, population & 
RN program degrees awarded per 100,000 population, 1991-2 to 

l996w7 

14% 

12% 
12% 

Degrees oworded 

■ Minnesota 

□ Region V 

mus 

Popubtloo 

5% 

~rees owo1ded per 
I 00,000 populollori 

Source: Noflonol Center for Educatton Sfot!stlcs; Bureau of the Census . 
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LICENSED PRACTJCAL/VocATIONAL NuasEs (LPNs) 

, '" 

'I 

,, 
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✓ Minnesota ranked Sib highest among the states in the per capita employment of Licensed 
PracticaV Vocational Nurses (LPNs), with 353. l LPNs per I 00,000 population as 
compared to the national rate of249.3 per 100,000. Michigan ranked J Slh in the number 
of LPNs employed in 1998 with 161690 workers. 

✓ Over two thirdc, of all LPNs in the United States in 1999 worked in institutional settings 
(35.91H, working in hospitals and 34.8% working in nursing and personal care facilities), 

✓ The vast majority of LPNs in the United States were nonNHispanic white (73% in 1999) 
and female (94.9% in 1998), Nationally, Blacks/ African Americans were over reprew 
sented in the profession ( 18%) compared to their presence in the population as a whole 

✓ 

·✓ 

(12%). By contrast. Hispanic/Latinos were underrepresented (5%) compared to their 
presence in the population ( 11 % in 1999), 

Most recipients of LPN degrees in Minnesota in 1997 were non~Hispanic white (89%) 
and female (90%), 

In Minnesota, there were 38 LPNs for every 100 RNs employed in the state. This is 
higher than the national ratio of32 LPNs employed for every l 00 RNs, 

LPNs, 1998 

Minnesota ReglonV us MN rank 

LPNs 16,690 121.11 0 673,790 15/50 

Per 100,000 poplllatlon 353, I 247,2 249,3 08/50 

Per 100 RNs 37.9 29.2 31.8 13/50 

Percent female 9Ll.9% 

Sollce: 13uroou of Lobar Statistics: 13ureau of the Censu~ Division for NU<slng, 
Note: Doto for RNs drawn from the 1996 Nattonol Sample survey. 
The obbrevtatlon LPN, or Uoensed Practtcal Nurse, Is used herein to refer to both LPNs and L VNs, or Licensed Vocational Nurses, 
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Percentage change In LPN degrees awarded, populatlon & LPN 
degrees per 100,000 population, 1992-3 to 1996-97 

12% 

-3% 

■ Minnesota 

oReglonV 

aus 

-6% 

lPN oooroos Popuk:Jllon IJIN degreos per I OOK pon 

Sotxce: National Center for Educo!lon Stotlsflcs; Bureau of the Census . 

Race/ethnicity & gender of LPN program degree recipients & the 
populatlon, 1996-97 

~ace/ethnicity 

Non-Hispanic white 

Black/African American 

Hlsponlc/Latlno(a) 

A&lon & Poclflc lslonder 

American lndlan/Alaskon Native 
Total 

Gender 
Female 

Mala 
Total 

LPN eduoaHon 
program degree 

reclplentB 

89,5% 

4,3% 

2,0% 

2,0% 

2.3% 
100,0% 

Population 

92.1% 

2.7% 

1.6% 

2.5% 

1.2% 
100.0% 

·------+----
90,3% 

9,7% 
100.0% 

50.7% 
49.3% 

100.0% 

Souce: Notion(]! Center for l:duccrlton Statistics; Bureau of the Cansus. 
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• NURSING 

✓ There were 8,417 licensed registered nurses (RNs) in Montana in 1996; 6,774 were 
employed in nursing. 

✓ There were 763. 7 RNs pct 100~000 population in Montana, less than the national 
average of 798. 

✓ The RN workforce in the Mountain Cersus Division aged significantly. The percent .. 
age of RN s 40 years and older increused from 50% in 1988 to 67% in 1996. 

✓ In 1996, the majority ofRNs employed in nursing in the Mountain Census Division 
;, were nonMHispanic white (92.4%), Fewer than 3% were /Latino, significantly less 

than the percentage in the general population ( 15. 7% ). 

✓ Tho number of RNs in Montana increased 28% between 1988 and 1996 while the 
state's population only grew 11 %. The result was a 16% growth in RNs per capita, 
compared to a 20% growth nationwide, 

✓ The majority (6()0/o) ofRNs who arc employed in the Mountain Census Division 
worked in hospitals. As a result, metropolitan areas with a concentration of hospital 
beds were Hkety to have a relatively high ratio ofRNs per capita . 

• ✓ In Montana, the number of fult~timc equivalent RNs working in hospitals increased 
13% between 1992 and 1998 while the number of inpatient days only increased 7%. 
The result was a 6% increase in RN s per capita, compared to a 26% increase nation-
wide. 

✓ In 1996, 40% of RNs employed in nursing in Montana had a Baccalaureate degree; 
33% had an Associate degree; 21 % had a Nursing diploma; and 6% had a Masters/ 
Doctoral degree. 

✓ Between 1991 ~92 and 1996-97, the numbct of Baccalaureate degrees awarded in 
nursing declined slightly in Montana while the number of Associate degrees awarded 
remained relatively stnble. 

✓ In 1996M97, 92, 9% of the RN degree recipients in Montana were non~Hlspanic 
white, approximately the same as the percentage in the stato's population. 

,, 
I 
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REGISTERED NURSES 

• Registered Nurses~ Total & RNs employed In nursing, 1996 

Montana Region VIII us Ronk 

Registered ntrses ~ total 8,417 80.560 2,558,874 46/50 

Registered mwses employed In nursing (RNs) 6,774 68,680 2,115.815 47/50 

Per 100,000 population 763.7 798,4 797.7 34/50 

Percent employed full time 65% 69% 71% 41/50 

Percent female 95% 

Percent minority 10% 

Source: DMston frn Nursing: Buteau of the Census, 
Not~: Unless otherwtse Indicated, 'Registered Nurses' and 'RNs' designate t?eglstered Nurses employed In nursing. 

RNs per 100,000 population, 1996 

• 

(ii 945 to 1703 

□ 801 to 945 

□ 723 to 801 

□ 568 to 723 

us 797,7 

Region vm 798.4 

Montana 763,7 
~ ... ~ ... .....-.~ff,.~•· .... ~•· 

• 
Source: DMslon for Nursing: Bureau of the Censut 
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Age distribution of RNs employed In nursing, 
Mountain Census Division, 1988-1996 

4.5% 

"1'i, 

~ 

HiW. 14% 

111988 

Source: Division for Nur~ng . 

D 1992 ■ 1996 

38% 

60+ 

Percent change In RNs, population & RNs per 100,000 population, 
1988-1996 

36% 32% 
30% 

■ Montana 

30% OR(:)glon VIII 

26% OlUS 

20% 

16% 14% 

10% 

6% 

Source: Division fot Nursing; Bureau of the Census, 
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Percent change In FTE hospital RN employment, hospital 
Inpatient days & FTE hospital RN employment per Inpatient 

day, 1992-1998 
6CH, 

·20% 

■ Montana 

D Region VIII 

rm us 25% 26% 

Hl'.lspHol lnpollonl days m hospltol RNs per , 00,000 
lnpat. Doy& 

Sol.Kc~: American Hospttol Associatlun, 

Highest nun,lng-related educatlonal ati'alnrnent of RNs employed In 
nursing, 1996 

~ ■ Monh..10 

□ Region VIII 
mus 

Dplomo ANOCblo Degree Boccobureole MaMe11/Doolo1al 

Sol.lee: Division for Nursing, 
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RN EDlJCA1'10N 

RN education program degrees rec~lved by award level, l 991 ··92 to 
1996··97 

IIO 
+ 81Cc.111ureele ·•· Mltlen/Doctor1! 

(i) 

?O 

01J.----=:::a:=-=:....·---~•~-...:.-=~==--:.:t:::::a:::-:...-·_-_..--.-__ _ 
1991/? 199:1/1\ 1996/1 

Soi.xce: Natlonol Center for Education Stafls11ca; Bureau of 1ha Cenw, . 

Percentage change In RN program degrees awarded, population & 
RN program degrees awarded per 100,000 populatlon, l 991 "2 to 

1996-7 

12% 

•IO'IL 

Degrees awarded 

10% 

■ Montana 

□ Reglon VIII 

llll US 

Populo11on 

6% 

-12% 

-17% 

Degrees awarded per 
!00,000 populo11on 

Sollce: Notional Center for Education Statistics; Bureau of the Census . 
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LICENSED PRACl'ICAL/VoCA'l'IONAL NuRSl4;S (LPr~s) 

✓ Montana ranked 23'11 among tho stateH in tho per capita cmployr.,-Jnt of Uccnscd f)y-ucti• 
caWocadonaJ Nurses (LPNs), with 268.3 LPNs per I 00,000 population as compared 
to the national rate of 249.3 per I 00,000. Montana ranked 43111 in tho number of 1.PNs 
omployed in 1998 with 2,3(,0 workers, 

✓ Over two thirds of all LPNs In the United States in 1999 work1..-d in institutional sc.1tingR 
(35.9'>/u workins in h08J)itals and 34.8% working In nursing and penmnal care f~cilitios). 

✓ The vast majority of LPNs In tho United States won, non~l·lispanic white (73% in 1999) 
and femalo (94.90/u In 1998), Nationally, Black/ African Americans were over rc.-prc­
sentcd in the profession ( 18%) compared to thofr presence in tho population as a whole 
( l 2%), By contrast, Hispanic/Latinos wcr<.' undcrrcprc1,onted ( 5%) compared to thoir 
presence In the population ( 11 % in , 999), 

✓ Most recipients of LPN degrees in Montana jn 1997 wc..~e non-Hispanic white (97%) 
and female (96%), American Indian/Alaskan Natives were undcrrcprcBCntcd among 
degree recipients. car.dng 2% of all degrees whilo constituting 6% of the state's populu­
tion. 

✓ In Montana, there were 35 LPNs for every J 00 RNs employed in tho state, This is 
comparable to the national ratio of 32 LPNs employed for every I 00 R Ns, 

LPNs, 1998 

Montana Region VIII 

LPNs 2,360 17,500 

Per 100,000 populatlon 268,3 198,9 

Per 100 RNs 34,8 25,5 

Percent female 

SoU'ce: Bureau of Labor statistics: Bureau of the Census: DMslon for Nursing. 
Note: Data for RNs drawn from the 1996 Nattonal Sample survey. 

us MT rank 

673,790 43/60 

249.3 23/50 

3 l.8 19/50 

94,9% 

The abbreviation lPN, or Licensed Practical Nurse, Is used herein to refer to both LPNs and L VNs, or Licensed Vocational Nurses 
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LPNs per 100,000 populatlon, 1998 LPNs per 100 RNs, 1998 

tw 

f/1 

30 

II 

(I 

I/Ii 

So1.tce: Buleou of Labol' Statls1Ice; BtJreou cl Iha CanM; Division for Nursing 
Note: Doto for RN• d1own from the 1996 Notional Sample Survov, 

Race/ethnicity of LPNs and the population, U .s., 1999 

73% 7'1% 

■ LPNs 

00% □ Population 

30% 

11% 
5% 3% 4% 1% 1% 

Nc:n·~ wtvte Bfocl</Afrlcoo H"l1p(llllc/La!h-O(o) Alilon & Poci1lc Arnencx:n 
Amorloon hlond« ln<Jlon/Alalll(oo 

Noilvo 

Source: &xeau of Labor stattstlcs . 
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LPN education program degrees awarded, 1992-3 to 1996· 7 
?60 

200 

160 

100 

0 
1991-2 1992-3 1993-4 19946 

Sol.Ice: Notional Cento1 for Education Stollsllc$ 

19'.lb 6 1996·7 

Percentage change In LPN degI·ees awarded, population & LPN 
degrees per 100,000 population, 1992-3 to 1996-97 

20% 
12% 8.3% 10.5% 

10% 5,1% 

0% 

·10% 

.2()% ■ Montana 

□ Region VIII 
.3()% 

mus 
~ 

.5()% 

-51% 
-60% 

LPN degrees Populatbn LPN degmos per 100K pop 

SoLXce: National Center for Education statistics; Bureau of the Census . 
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NURSING 

✓ Thero wcro 9,035 UcQnHud rcsisturcd nun1cs (RNH) in South 1Jnkot1t in 1996; 7,7~2 
were omploycd in nursing, 

✓ Thuro were l,04H.6 RNH per l<X),000 population in South Dakotu in 1'>96, signifi­
cantly more than the national 1woragc of 798. 

✓ Tho RN workforce in tho Wost North Central Census Dlvi11ion Rgcd signlllcantly 
between 1988 and 1996. The percentage of RNH 40 years und oldor incrc1u,cd from 
44% In I 988 to ,9% ln I 996, 

✓ In 1996, the majority of RNs employed in nursing in the West North Cuntml CcnsuH 
Division were Non-Hispanic white (96.6%). Only I% were Blar.lk/African Ameri­
can, less than their percentage in the general population (5.3%). 

✓ The number of RNs In South Dakota Increased 34% between 1988 and 1996 while 
the State's population only grew 6%, The result was a 27% growth in RNs per 
capita, compared to a 20% growth nutlonwldc. 

✓ Tho majority (60%) of RNs in tho West North Central Census Division who were 
employed worked in hospitals in t 996, As a result, metropolitan ar1Jas with a con­
centration of hospital beds were likely to have a relatively high ratio of RNs per 

✓ 

✓ 

✓ 

capita . 

In South Dakota, the number of full-time equivalent RNs working in hospitals 
dccHncd 3% between 1992 and 1998 while the number of inpatient days rose 6%. 
The result was a 9% decrease in the ratio of fu11-dme equivalent RNs to inpatient 
days, compared to a 26% increase in the ratio nationwide. 

In 1996, 38% of RNs employed in nursing in South Dakota had an Associate degree; 
33% had a Baccalaureate degree; 23% had a Nursing diploma; and 5% had a Mas-
ters/Doctoral degree. 

Between 1991-92 and 1996-97, the number of Associate and Baccalaureate degrees 
awarded in nursing decreased in South Dakota. In 1996, the number of Associate 
degrees awarded in nursing was higher than the number of Baccalaureate degrees 
awarded. 

✓ In 1996-971 94.3% of the RN degree recipients in South Dakota were non-Hispanic 
white, Nearly 5% were American Indian/ Alaskan Native, less than the percentage in 
the state's general population (7.8%) . 

32 ··- South Dakota 



• 

• 

• 

REGIS'l'ERED NURSES 

Registered Nurses - Total & r~Ns employed In nursing, 1996 

South Dokoto ___________ __... ____ _ l~eglon VIII US --- .. ··-·-----
Registered nurses• total 9,0-1b 80,560 2,658,814 44/t.>0 ----·---·--·--------------.. -----... --- ··-----"'-·----.... ---·-· -.. ~ ..... -·-···--
Registered nurses emplo~ In mxslng (l~Ns) 

Pat' 100,CXX) populatlon 

Pflf'cant employed full time 

Percent female 
Pe,c~t minority 

~uce: l.)jvlslon lor Nuralng; litHeau ot the Census. 

l, lb2 

1,048,6 

13% 

68,680 

/Q8,4 

fl~ 

2, ll6,8)5 

/9/./ 

71% 

95% 
10% 

4.1/60 

b/W 

21/W 

Note: Unlfm otherwise lndkmted, ·r~ogietered Nursas' ond 'RNt' doslunnto llooIs1a1o<J NU1set omptoyo(J In ritJrsInr1 

RNs per 100,000 population, 1996 

lZTI 945 to 1703 

D 801 to 945 ,o 
6'11:r> 

723 to 801 C> □ ;. 

□ 568 to 723 

us 797,7 

Region vm 798.4 

South ~kota 1,048.6 
.. .._." ..................... ~ .... 'VI\.-_..,..,,,,._.,..,.,,_., 

So1.tce: OMslon for Nursing: Bureau of the Census. 
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Age distribution of RNs employed In nursing, West North 
CentralCensus Division, 1988-1996 

1111988 [J 1992 ■ 1996 

ffl 

Sollce: Dtvlion tor Nursing, 

Percent change In RNs, population & RNs per 100,000 population, 
1988-1996 

40% 

35% 
34% 

30% 

25% 

20% 

16% 

10% 

6% 

0% 

32% 

RNs 

■ South Dakota 

□ Region VIII 

Ill US 

14% 

Popublbn 

Sol.Kee: Dlvlslon fO!' Nursing: Buroau of the Census . 
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Percent change In FTE hospital RN employnient, hoopltal 
Inpatient days & FTE hospital RN employment per Inpatient 

day, 1992-1998 

·20% 
fll ho1pllcJWN1> 

■ South Dakota 

[J Rogian VIII 

mus 

-13% 

25% 26% 

~lo•pllnl illpollBnt dr,ys Fl! hmpllol UN• J)OI I00,00'.) 
lnpol, Cloys 

Sourco: Amerlr:an Hospital Association . 

Highest nursing-related educational attainment of RNs employed In 
nursing, 1996 

60% 

30% 

20% 

■ South Dakota 
□ Region VIII 

39% mus 

32% 

,' 

Dpbma A880Cble Degee Boccalaureole Mos1ers/Doclorol 

So1.1ce: Division fOf Nurstng, 
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RN EDUCATION 

RN education program degrees received by award level, 1991 ~92 to 
1996 .. 97 

.,. B.tc.c1laura,to •· Masterli/Oocto,af 

f,('J 

0 ...___·_-·~,.__. __ , •..• ,-•---·•·-·- ·····- ........ -- " ..... , .. - ............. -, ,., __ ....• 

1991n 1m13 1993/11 19'M/I, 19'1t>/b lwt,// 

Sol.lee: National Center for Education Statistics: Hureou ol tho Census 

Percentage change In RN program degrees awarded, popul<Jtlon & 
RN program degrees awarded per 100,000 population, 1991-2 to 

1996-7 
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·20% 
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■ Sou1h Dakota 
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Sol.fee: Notional Center for Education Statistics: Bureau of 1he Census, 
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LICENSED PRAC'l'JCALIVocA'l'IONAL NuRSKS (LPNs) 

✓ South Dakota ranked 261h among tho states in per capita cmploymont of Licensed 
PracdcaVVocatlonal Nurses (LPNs), with 254.5 LPNs per I 00,000 population ui; com• 
pared to the national rate of 249.3 por l00,000, South Dakota ranked 46111 in the num­
~ of LPNs employed in I 998 with 1,860 workers. 

✓ Over two thlrdt of all LPNs in the United StuteR in 1999 work~d In institutional i;ct• 
tings (35,90/u working in hospltalR and 34,8% working in nurslnu and pcrsonul cure 
facUhJcs), 

✓ Tho vast majority of LPNs in th~ Unlt~d Staten worc non .. Jlispanlc white (73% in l 999) 
and female (94,9% in 1998). Nationally, Black/Africun Arnoricuni; were over n.,-,rc­
SO'ltcd in the profession ( 18%) compared to thclr prcscncc in the population as a whole 
(12%), By contrast, Hispanic/Latinos wore underreprcscnh:d (5%) compared to th~ir 
presence in tho populadon {11% jn 1999). 

✓ Most rccipi,mts of LPN degrees in South Dakota in 1997 were non-Hispanic white 
(98%) and female (92%), American Indian/ Alaskan Natives were not among the rcclpi~ 
ents of these degrees although they represent 8% of the stato population. 

✓ In South Dakota, there wore 24 LPNs for every 100 RNs employed in the state. This is 
tower than tho national ratio of 32 LPNs employed for every IOO RNs . 

LPNs, 1998 

South Dakota Region VIII 

LPNs 1,860 17,500 

Per 100,00J populatlon 254,5 198.9 

Per 100 RNs 24.0 25,5 

Percent fem ale 

Sotxca: Bureau of Labor Sfotlstlcs; Bureau of 1he Census: Division for NU(slng. 
Note: Doto for RNs drown from the 1996 National Sample survey. 

us SD rank 

673,790 46/60 

249,3 26/50 

31.8 36/50 

94.9% 

The obbrevtatlon LPN, or Licensed Practical Nurse, Is used herein to refer to both LPNs and L VNs, or Licensed Vocatlonal Nurses. 
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LPNs per l 00, 000 populatlon, 1998 LPNs per 100 RNs, 
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Race/ethnicity of LPNs and the population, U ,s,, 1999 
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LPN education program degrees awarded, 1992-3 to 1996-7 
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Percentage change In LPN degrees awarded, population & LPN 
degrees per 100,000 populatlon, l 992-3 to 1996-97 
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Sollce: Notlonal Center for Education Statistics; Bureau of the Census . 
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HOUSE HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 

TESTIMONY RELATED TO SB 2ll4 

Chairperson Price and members of the Human Sen-Ices Comndtt'ee, my name Is Constance 
Kalanek, Executive Director of the North Dakota Board of Nurs,ng. 

On behalf of the board, I wish to offer testlmon)' Jn supporl of SB 2 J J 4 relating to the 
Nurse Practices Act 43-12.1. 

The North Dakota Board of Nursing works diligently to establish and maintain rules and 
regulations that protect and serve the public. In 1995, the Nurse Practices Act was 
subject to major revisions, which also resulted In several rule revisions. 

The board currently licenses 8271 registered nurses of which 61% hold a bachelor's 
degree or higher, 3173 licensed practical nurses of which 48% hold an associate 
dt~gree, and 443 advanced practice nurses. The board also maintains a nurse assistant 
registry of 2122 nurse assistants and 238 medication assistants. 

The proposed revisions of the Nurse Practices Act 43"12.1 began with the first meeting 
of the Nurse Practice Committee established by the board in May 2000. This committee 
was established to provide expertise from areas of nursing practice not rep1esented on 
the board and to make recommendations to the board on Issues relevant to current 
practice. This committee comprised of 23 Individuals, represents nursing practice, 
administration (hospital and L TC)1 ND Department of Health, North Dakota Licensed 
Practical Nurse Association and the North Dakota Nurses Association. The committee 
met In May, June, August, and September 2000. 

The following Is a section by section summary of the revisions made to the Nurse 
Practices Act 43-12.1 along with rationale for the changes. 
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§EQII QN.ONE; Ql:EINIII QN,i 

The most Important revision in this section is the definition of 0 Unllcen1ed 111l1tive 
peraon", This proposed definition provides for utilization cA an assistant to the nurse In a 
variety of roles In their ·field regardless of title. Unlicensed asslstlve person may Include but 
are not limited to nurse assistant, surgical and dialysis technicians and medical assistants. 

The proposed definition for 111peclalty practice registered nurse" will provide for 
recognition and llcensure of nurses who practice a specialty but who do not meet the 
quaUficatlon for advanced practice. The specialty practice registered nurse must be 
currently licensed as a registered nursej In good standing, and not be the SLJbject of 
current dlsclpllnary action. Examples Include but are not limited to the registered nurse first 
assistant (RNFA), diabetic educator, or enterostomal therapist. 

The definitions for transitional practlc..,11 nurse license and transitional raglstered nurse 
license were amended Into the act in the Senate. The definition existed In the rules and on 
the advise of counsel they were amended Into the Nurse Practices Act. 

Sl;CTION TWO: LICENSED REQUIRED 

This section states that any person who provides nursing care to a resident of this state 
must hold a current license or registration Issued by the boord. The proposed revision 
Inserts the category of specialty practice registered nurse and deletes the words 11a nurse 
asslstantl) and replaces It with "unlicensed asslstlve person". 

SECTION THREE: PERSONS EXEMPT 

In this section the term tasks Is replaced with the word interventions. This is congruent 
with the updated terminology used In the nursing profession. It is a broader term that 
encompasses more than the basic technical skllls. 

This section also provides for an exomption for medication administration for facllities 
licensed under chapter 25-03.21 chapter 25-16, chapter 50-11 and chapter 50-06. The 
1995 Nurse Practices Act- NDCC 43-12.1-04(9) exempted DD provider agencies, 
fo~ter care providers, and human service centers from registry of assistive personnel 
from medication administration. This exemption has continued and will sunset July 31 I 

2001, 

A Joint committee of the Department of Human Services and the Board of Nursing 
was established according to the requirements contained in HB 1403 during the 
1999 Legislative Session, The committee met on September 9, September 2.2, 

2 
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October 12, November 10, December 16, 1999. Executive Summaries are available for 
your review, 

The rationale for this exemption includes the following: 
• The NDDHS facilities will monitor certified medication assistants through the use 

of the Medication Assistant Programs registry at Minot State University in 
conjunction with the Protection and Advocacy Program. 

• This Is not an exemption from the nurse assistant registry. 
• Background checks are conducted on individuals employed by the 

facilities/agencies under the purview of the ND Department of Human Services. 
• An up-to-date list of names of individuals successfully completing the Medication 

Assistant I Course Is supplied to the North Dakota Board of Nursing beginning in 
May 1999. 

• The Board of Nursing approves the Medication Assistant Courses I & II. 
• NDDHS will Include In contracts with providers or In a rule revision a requirement 

that employees of facilities administering medications complete a No11h Dakota 
Board of Nursing approved Medication I Course. 

• NDDHS wlll be responsible to establish a standard reporting mechanism for 
providers on medication errors and will review the submitted reports with the 
BON. 

• In an effort to provide quality nursing care in those facilities the Board has 
proposed a revision of the definition of consultative nurse and the addition of 
definitions for assisting with self .. admlnlstratlon of regularly scheduled or routine 
medications and basic nursing Interventions. ( See attached) 

• The revision of the defi11ltion of consultative nurse provides direction for nurses 
who are delegating to unlicensed personnel and Is broad enough to cover 
consultative nursing regardless of employment setting. 

• The nurse Is accountable to the board of nursing and the facility to follow the 
standards of practice for an Identified role, I.e. RN1 LPN, 

This section continues to provide protection to the nurse who delegates medication 
administration In the above settings, According to the Attorney Generars Opinion 
dated December 4, 2000, 11desplte the llmltatlon provided by NDAC 54 .. 05-04-05(9)1 
medication administration may be delegated to a person exempt under NDCC 43 .. 12.1 .. 
04(9) pursuant to NDCC 43 .. 12.1 .. 1 a until August 1, 2001, If this protection were not 
provided for the nurses providing consultative services to these facilities, they may indeed 
be In violation of NDCC 43 .. 12.1. 

Sl;CTION THREE; EXEMPTIONS (CONT>, 
North Dakota practitioners must be licensed to practice nursing, This section (Page 51 
Line 9, Subsection 10) would exempt Individuals licensed In another jurisdiction with a 
ND emflloyer to attend orlentatlon1 meetings, or required continuing education without 
obtaldlng a ND license. Specifically, health care facllltles located on the ND, Minnesota! 
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SDI and Montana borders have satellite clinics and smaller hospitals, which employ 
nurses licensed In Minnesota, Montana and SD. 
Due to the signlfica11t changes in the health care environment and the establishment of 
large health care corporations across state borders, many nurses who reside in a 
contiguous state must attend required inservices or orientation from the ND employer in 
the North Dakota work site, Also! a number of national corporations and organizations 
employ nurses strictly to provide either consultation or education in North Dakota for 
limited time frames. 
Subsection 10 also specifically provides for nurse consultants to practice ln the state on a 
limited basis. Examples include but are not limited to presenting in-services, reviewing 
policy and procedures; working as a sales representative, Guest lecturer, short-term 
consultant, and evaluation specifics will be further defined in the rules. 

SECTION FIVE: COMPENSATION OF BOARD MEMBERS 

This section deletes the current language and replaces it with language consistent with 
other regulatory boards in North Dakota. The proposed language is much more specific 
and more useful for budgetary purposes. The board of nursing is the only board to use the 
current language 

SECTION SIX: POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD 

This section replaces the term nurse assistant with unlicensed assistive person to be 
consistent throughout the NDCC 43-12.1. 

Subsection 12 (Page 7, line 8) addresses the Nut,~'»1~ Advocacy Program (NAP). The 
program addresses Issues of Impairment and is confidential In nature, Evaluation and 
treatment of NAP participants Is obtained from programs and treatment professionals who 
are mandated by statutory confidentiality laws. The NAP records and program results that 
reflect such action should likewise be protected, 
Subsection 13 (Page 7, line 10) adds the word applicants to provide for disciplinary action 
by the board for Individuals who have a positive response to the llcensure questions. 

§!;_gJION SEVEN: LICENSURE • REGIST~TION 

This section requires proof of progression towards meeting the educational 
requirements for endorsed nurses that do not meet the educational requirements 
established by the board. The amendment approved In the Senate would also provide 
for another traok for the experienced transitional licensee to select continuing education 
requirement to renew their license. A typographical error occurred on page 8, llne 24-
the word Qf_should be deleted and replaced with QL.....See attached. 

S,ubsectlon six (Page 9, line 11) makes the edltorlal changes described In Sections one 
and two related to the nurse assistant. Also, added proof of certification as a 
mechanism for registry status. 

4 
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Subsection seven (Page 9, line 16-23) identifies the requirements for obtaining a 
specialty practice license for the registered nurse. 

SECTION EIGHT: LICENSE-REGISTRATION-RENEWAL 

This section eliminates the residency requirement and is a recommendation by legal 
counsel. It legally may be unconstitutional. ND is the only state with a residency 
requirement for nurses. Employment by a federal agency is addressed in NDCC 43-12.1-
04 (3). Subsection 2 (Page 10, Line 3-9) clearly outlines the requirements for placement 
on the nurse assistant (unlicensed assistive person) registry. 

SECTION NINE: DUTIES OF LICENSEES 

This section adds 11registrantsH or "registered" to the current language, This will provide 
for the Individuals on the nurse assistant registry to be held to the same standard as the 
licensee when asked to provide information to the board or to report potential violations. 
It also provides for consistency. 

SECTION TEN: DISCIPLINARY :PROCEEDINGS. 

This section Is Intended to address the increased cost for legal services for complex 
cases. It also clarifies how the boards of nursing of other states are notified, Effective 
November 1999 federal law required reporting to national data banks. 

SECTION TEN: GROUNDS FOR DISCIPLINE-PENAL TIES 

This section specifically outlines board authority. The BON has conducted an 
alternative to discipline program entitled the Nurse Advocacy Program for nurses with 
Identified Impairments of chemical dependency, psychiatric Impairments, and or 
physical disorders. It has been In operation for 10 years and has had a total of 92 
participants (57 RNs1 35 LPNs) since Its Inception. The change In this section gives the 
board the authority to ask for evaluation and treatment when impairment is reported to 
the board. 

The other revisions would allow for voluntary surrender or emergency suspension of 
one's license to practice nursing, The revisions would be further defined In the rules. 

Subsection 2 (Page 11,Llne 19) adds registration and assist In the practice of nursing for 
Inclusion of the unlicensed asslstlve person (nurse assistant). Restricted Is replaced with 
sanctioned Is a broader term to encompass other Jurlsdlctlon1s terminology, 

Subsection 5 (Page 11, Line 27) has been clarlfied by Inserting the language of 
professional misconduct which would be further defined In the rules as It Is for the deleted 
terms. Examples of professlonal misconduct Include, but are not limited to a departure or 
failure to conform to standards of practice; endangering a patient's life, health, or safety; 

5 
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misconduct could Include non-payment of medications; non-payment of Nursing Education 
Loan; patient abandonment; negligence; or failure to adhere to professional code of ethics. 

Subsection 6 (Page 11, Line 30·31) has been revised to include supplies and equipment 
and drug diversion for personal use is more specific, 
Subsection 9 (Page 12, Line 5-7) specifically identifies responsiblllties of licensee; Globally 
Identifies any violation within the authority of the board. 

SECTION ELEVEN: VIOLATION - PENALTIES. 
Refer to Sections one and two. 

SECTION 12. AMENDMENTS 
On page 12, the board proposes the addition of specialty practice registered nurse In 
lines 15 and 19. See attachment. 

CONCLUSIONS 

Thank yc,u for giving me the opportunity to provide testimony on behalf of the North 
Dakota Board of Nursing. 

I am now open for questions . 

6 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2114 

Page 8, line 24, remove "of thirty hours of' replace with "or" 

Page 8, line 25 remove 11activlty" and replace with "requirements as established by the 
board. 

Page 12, line 15, after "an advanced practice registered nurse" insert 11a specialty 
practice registered nurse, 0 

Page 12, line 19, after ''an advanced practice registered nurse11 insert ~~a specialty 
practice registered nurse," 

. ..... ---· 
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PROPOSED REVISIONS TO NDAC TITLE 54 
RULE REVSION 

Definitions. 
Current: 
54-07-01--02(5) "Consultative Nurse" means a licensed nurse who provides guidance and 
infonnation as a participant of the interdisciplinary team but is not individually responsible to 
direct the plan of care for the client. 
Suggested Replacement 54 .. 07M01-02(5) 
"Consultative Nurse" means a licensed nurse who provides guidance and infonnation related to 
nursing procedures and 1ntervendons to the facility or agency but is not individual1y responsible 
to provide or direct the plan of care for the client. 
Suggested addition to Article 54-07-01-02 Nurse Assistant: (revision to Unlicensed 
Assistive Person after Nurse Practices Act enacted) 
54-07-01..02, Definitions. 

2. "Activities of dally llvlng11 Includes transferring, ambulating, repositioning, exf:,rclslng, tolletin~, 
feeding, and assistance with self-administered of regularly scheduled or routine 
medications and personal cares. Personal care Includes but Is not llmlted to bathing, hair 
care, nail care, shaving, dressing, SM oral caret and n,a1lntenance of a safe environment. 
Basic Interventions vary from setting to setting depending on the client population 
served and the acuity and comptextty of the cltent'• care needs, 

i 0 A11tatlng with Self Administration of Rtgular1v Sch..!!tYled or Routfn! 
Mtdlc1tlons 11 means helping the cllent with one or more steps In the process of 
taking medications but doea not mean 1111dmlnlstratlon of medication" as defined In 
the rulea. Example• of 11a1alatlng 11 include, but are r,ot llmlted to opening the 
medication container or reminding the cUent of the proper time to take the 
medication. A••tettng with the administration of medication may be a def@gated 
f nterventlon, 

8 
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Testimony Before the Human Services Ciommlttee 

SB 2114 

Chairperson: Representative Clara Sutt Price 

March 7, 2001 

Chairperson Price and members of the committee, 

My name Is Bonnie Selzler. I am the Assistant Director of Mental Health 

Services and represent the Department of Hu,nan Ser,lces on the 

Medication Administration Committee. 

In response to HB 1403 of the 1999 legislative seas1lon, representatives 

from the Department of Human Services, the Board of Nursing, the North 

Dakota Medtcal Association, the North Dakota Nurses Auoclatlon, the 

North Dakota Association of Community Facllltles and other private 

providers met regularly to discuss the ramifications of unlicensed staff 

providing medlcatlor~. The results of those efforts were previously 

reported to the Interim Budget Committee on Health Care as directed by HB 
1403, 

The changes detailed In aubaectfon 9 of Section 3 ()1f Senate BIii 2114 

reffect the conaenaua of that group. 

The Department of Human Services supports Senate BUI 2114. 

I am happy to answer any que1tlon1 you may have. 
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On behalf of the board, I wlt-'h to offer testimony In support of SB 2114 relating to 
the Nurse Practices Act43-,12.1. 
Chairperson Prlce and members of the Human Services Committee, my 
My name ls Kirsten Friedt. I am a Registered Nurse employed by ABLE, Inc. of 
Dickinson. I urge you to pltJce a DO PASS on Senate BI112114. ABLE provides 
services to people with Developmental Disabilities; we are licensed under chapter 25 .. 
16. I have been employed by ABLE, Inc. for almost 12 years. Medication 
administration and delegf,tion of nursing tasks have long been a grc:1y area for nurses 
employed by facilities sw~h as ABLE, Inc. f can remember discussing this very issue at 
the first nurse's meeting for people with developmental dlsabllitles that I attended, just a 
few short months after I started, 

Today I would like to speak to the exemption portion of this bill included in section three, 
subsection 9 both with the exemption effective through July 31, 2001 and effective after 
July 31, 2001. DurlnfJ the last legislative session I was not In favor of the exemption as 
It Is noted through July 31, ~001. The exemption through July 31, 2001 exempts the DD 
provider from havlnfJ to place staff administering medications on the North Dakota 
Board of Nurslng's Medication Assistant Registry. However, it does not exempt the 
nurses employed by the DD provider from having to comply with the Nurse Practice Act. 
What this did was 'take the nurse out of the task of administering medications. 
Unlicensed asslstlve personnel are able administer medications without the nurse being 
Involved . 

The exemption as written to be effective after July 31, 2001 states the nurse may 
delegate medication administration to a person exempt from the provisions of chapter 
43-12.1. This keeps the nurse Involved In the task of administering medications when It 
has been delegated to unlicensed asslstlve personnel. This provision Is In fact a 
compromise reached by the North Dakota Board of Nursing and the Department of 
Human Services. I was a member of the committee that deliberated over this Issue. 
Although It if, not perfect by any means It Is workable and rational at this point In time. It 
continues tc, allow me, the nurse, to delegate to the staff the duty of administering 
medlcatlonrJ, This Includes Insuring the person administering medications meets 
competenc;y standards. 

Once age,ln, I urge you to place a do pass on Senate BIii 2114. Thank you for your time 
and attention to my testimony . 
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Senate Bill 2114 

Greetings Chainnan Price and fuembers of the Committee, My name is Susan McNaboe. 
I am a registered nurse (RN), a Certified Nurse Operating Room (CNOR) and a Certified 
Registered Nurse First Assistant (CRNFA). I have lived in ND for 25 years and have 
been employed in Operative Services of Mercy Medical Center, Williston throughout that 
time. 

1 am speaking today in support of SB2114, specifically to section I. Item 8. 

Speciali1..ation in nursing practice has been a major advancement in nursing over the last 
few decades. Three forces initiate movement toward specialization: 

New knowledge pertinent to the field 
Technological advance 
And response to public need. 

The development of the Registered Nurse First Assistant is the result of changes in the 
health care delivery system and insurers' greater attention to cost-effectiveness. 

The sc.:ope of practice for the Registered Nurse First Assistant is a part of the specialized 
practice of perioperat.ive nursing. The RNF A assists the surgeon in the perfonnance of 
the surgical procedure, from the preoperative assessment through the surgical 
intervention, recovery, and discharge of the patient. 

Currently the board of nursing in all fifty states recognizes the RNFA role as being within 
the scope of nursing practice, The Association of periOperative Jlegistered Nurses, the 
American College of Surgeons, the American Nurses Association, and the National 
Association of Orthopedic Nurses also recognize RNFAs. 

A CRNFA is a registered nurse first assistant (RNFA) who obtains national certification, 
a voluntary process, An RNFA already is a technically skilled, highly educated nursing 
professional who renders direct patient care as part of the perioperative nursing process. 
The certification process raises an already high quality standard and recognizes those 
RNFAs who have achieved excellence in patient care, 

The RNFA seckfog certification must meet rigid requirements before applying, including: 
t, current licensure as a registered nurse, without provision or condition 
2. must be a Certified Nurse Operating Room (CNOR) and must maintain that status 

throughout the entire period of CRNF A ce,1i ficadon 
The CNOR itself involves two years of perioperative experience, current ticensure 
as a registered nurse, and successful completion of the certification exam. 

3. must have completed 2000 documented hours of practice as an R.NFA 
4. Must have completed a formal RNF A progran1 that meets criteria established by the 

Certification Board Perioperative Nursing including training equivalent to one-year 
con1prehensive post-graduate program involving both classroom and clinical studies . 

5. Must have a Bachelor and/or Master of Science Degree in Nursing after January 1,2000, 

I 
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Jdeally a physician would provide first assistant ~ervices. In rural areas such as ours this 
is simply not always possible. In our situation we have no Advanced Practice Nurses or 
Physicians Assista11ts that are available. It quickly became apparent who would be 
fuJfiJJing the first assistant role. Thus, remembering the words of my parents-"lf you 
are going to do it, do it right" and knowing the way to do it right is through the 
appropriate education, I went back to school. CRNF As receive more advanced 
education and traimng in first assisting than any other non-physician provider who first 
assists. 

The category of SpcciaJty Practice Registered Nurse recognizes the experience and 
expertise of the CRNFA Our education is extensive and is a definite benefit to our 
patients, the citizens of North Dakota. 

Thank you 

Respectfully, 

_ .. ->~<·f /!! 
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SUPPORT MEDICARE REIMBURSEMENT FOR 

CERTIFIED REGISTERED NURSE PIRST ASSIST ANTS 

AORN (the Association of periOperative Registered Nurses) is seeking Medicare reimbursement for the surgical 
first assisting services of Certified Registered Nurse First Assistants (CRNF As) at a rate of 13.6 percent of the 
surgeon's fee. As first assistants, CRNFAs provide high-quality cost-effective care and perform the same tasks 
and duties as surgeons, physicians, physician assistants (PAs), and some nurse practitioners (NPs) who may 
currently receive Medicare reimbursement for first assisting services. Reimbursing CRNF As for their surgical 
first assisting services would address this fundamental inequity. 

WJ{A1' IS A CRNFA? 
A CRNFA is a registere-i nurse first assistant (RNFA) who obtains national certification, a voluntary process. 
An RNF A already is a ~hnically skilled and highly educated nursing professional who renders direct patient 
care as part of the pv. .JCrative nursing process. The RNF A possesses the skills) knowledge, and judgment 
necessary to assist the surgeon in perfonning a safe operation that yields optimal results for the patient. The 
ce·rtification process raises an already high quality standard and recognizes those RNF As who have achieved 
excellence in patient care. 

The RNI;-A seeking certification must meet rigid requirements before applying, including: 

1. Current ticensure as an RN, without provision or condition, in the United States; 

2. Certification in perioperative nursing (CNOR); 

3. Completion of a minimum of 2000 hours of practice as an RNFA1 that includes preoperative, 
intraoperative, and postoperative patient care; 

4. Completion of a fonnal RNFA program that meets criteria established by the Certification Board 
Perioperative Nw·sir1g, including training equivalent to a one-year comprehensive post-graduate 
program involving both classroom and clinical studies in anatomy and physiology, assessment 
skills, usepsis/infcction control, and an extensive surgical assisting curriculum. During the required 
clinical internship, the prospective RNFA spends a minimum number of clinical hours under the 
supervision of a surgeon preceptor; and 

S. Hold a B.S.N, or M.S.N as of January 1, 2000. 

CRNFAs are recognized by the American CoJJege of Surgeons, the American Nurses Association, the National 
League for Nursing, the National Association of Orthopedic Nurses, and the SO state boards of nursing. 

1 There are approximately 4,000 RNFAs 1n the United States. According to a 1995 survey of the Specialty Assembly, 
RNFAs are employed by hospitals and physicians, as well as being self-employed as Independently contracted health care 
providers. In addition: · 
• The average age of an RNFA Is 42 years old. 
• The average length of t1me as an RN Is 17 years. 
• The average length of tlme In the operating room is IS years. 
• The average length of tlme as an RNFA ls 4.62 years. 
• Thlrty percent of RNFAs have CRNFA credentials, 



- WHAT MAKES CRNFAs SPECIAL? 
CRNFAs bring the patient-centered perspective of nursing into the operating room, continuous:y utilizing 
critical thinking skills and assessing patient health in order to ensure optimal patient outcom!s. Further, 
CRNFAs have received more advanced education and training in surgical first assisting than any other non­
.physician provider who first assists. For example, PAs commonly complete much less than the 2,000 hours of 
surgical assisting currently required before RNF As may take the CRNF A ccrti fl cation exam. NPs are not 
required to have any extensive training in first assisting and yet receive direct reimbursement. In addition, 
CRNF A.c; and RNF.As are the only providers -- aside from the rare physician making house calls -- who 
sometimes provide post~operative care by actually visiting patients at home following surgery. Thus, not only 
do CRNFAs have more clinical experience and education but they also provide continuity of carr. to patients 
enabling higher quality and better patient outcomes. 

HOW WOULD CRNFAs SA VE THE BEAL TH CARE SYSTEM MONEY? 
Heath claims data from the Health Care Financing Administration (HCFA) reveal that physicians file more than 
90 percent of the first assistant at surgery claims for Medicare reimbursement. Physicians receive 16 percent of 
the surgeon's fee for first assisting. CRNFAs are requesting only 13.6 percent of the surgeon's fee for their 
first assisting services, Use of CRNFAs would therefore be a high quality yet cost-effective alternative for the 
nation's health care delivery system, affording additional flexibility to surgeons, hospitals and ambulatory 
surgery centers. 

Further, CRNFAs are cquaJly as cost-effective as other non~physician providers (PAs and some NPs) wtv.., 
currently are reimbursed at 13.6 percent of the surgeon's fee for first assisting. Moreover, CRNFAs have more 
rigorous training in first afisisting, which likely would result in positive patient outcomes such as· lower ( 
recidivism rates, decreased complications from surgery, higher patient satisfaction levels and overall Jower 
expected costs per patient. Until CRNFAs can receive direct reimbursement, however, there is no incentive to 
use these high quality, cost-effective providers for first assisting in surgery. 

WHO C,1.JRRENTL Y REIMBURSES CRNFAs? 
• 1nough some commercial insurers provide coverage for the services of CRNF As, reimbt>.rsemc..-nt is 

inconsistent and variable on a state-by-state and even a case-by-case basis. 
• Payment by BlueCross/BlueShield plans vaty by state; however, generally, if the CRNFA is n.ot a co:ntracted 

provider, BtueCross/BlueShield wilt pay the patient directly for CRNFA services. 
• Many Medicaid plans provide direct reimbursement. 

COST E'STIMA TE 
An independent cost estimate by Muse & Associates determined that coverage eligibility for CRNFAs under 
Part B ,,f the Medicare program would cost $7 .2 million in 2000, increasing to $25 .1 mitlion in 2004. The tot.al 
cost OVtt a five-year period would be $84.6 million. 

SUMMARY 
AB a provider of health care, the CRNF A is a viable solution for controlling rising health care costs. Working in 
collaborative practice with sw-gcons, CRNF'As are cost-effective to the patient and to the health care delivery 
system. ~ AORN proposal wou1d.£Xtend Medicare coverage eligibiJity to CBNFAs for their surgical fi.m! 
aa:;isting seryfoes. Becau.~e CRNF As would be reimbursed under Medicare llt a lower rate than physicians who 
first assist, and because CRNFAs routinely provide much-needed patient education and counseling, use of 
CRNF AJ could weJJ decrease the frequency and length of hospital stpys. 



CHAIRMf\N PRICF.,MEMBERS OF 'l'IJF. IIUMl\N SERVICES COMMI'I"rEE, 
Ll\DI ES !\ND GEN'rLEMEN, 

l 

MY Nl\ME IS ELAINE D. '11!\YLOR LPN, I AM r!ERF. l\S A HEPRESEN'rA11 IVE 
AND PRESIDEN'I1 0>F 'rt-IE NORTH Dl\1<0111\ LICENSED PRAC'l'ICJ\L NUJRSES 
ASSOCIATION, I ALSO COME TO YOU AS A LPN OF 37 YEJ\RS IN THIS 
MY CHOSEN PROFESSION, 

NDLPNA WISHES TO SPEAK IN FAVOR OF SB 211 tl AND 'I'O 1'HJ\NK YOU 
F'OR TH IS OPPOR'I'UN I TY HER 1~ ~'ODJ\ Y. 

MEMDERS OF NDLPNJ\ FEEL 'l'HAT 'l'HE CIIOICE 'C'O WORI< IN 'l'HE MEDICAL 
ARENl\ CARRIES WITH IT RESPONSTnrJ.,I'rEs l\ND J\CCOUN11l\BILI 1rY.THERE 
ARE 1'HOSE OtJ'11 'rHERE WHO SAY 'l'IIA'l' f\CCOUN'rJ\BTLt'l'Y IS J\ 11 '1'URF 11 

ISSUE OF THE PROPESSIONALS MAKING ONLY,BUT WE SAY,NOT SO! 
J\CCOUNTl\BILT'rY IS J\LT.i /\ROUND us. I'r IS IN 'I1HE DU'rY 'I'HA'I1 YOU 
TH8 ELEC'l'ED OFFICTAL HAS TO us ·rrrn PUBLIC,'rHA'I' ELEC11ED YOU, 
CHILDREN TO PARENT,WIFE 'I'O HUSBAND,WE AS 'rl\XPl\YERS TO rrHE 
US GOVERNMENT,TftE LIST GOES ON AND ON.PERHAPS AS PROFESSIONALS 
I'l' ENTAILS MORE, DU'r HOWEVER rr11E 1 SSUE S'rANDS, !11 IS rrHEREFOR E 
NECESSARY TO SEE THAT THE PROPER EDUCf\TION,TRAINING,CER'rIFICATION 
AND lJICENSING ARE IN PLACE AND 111-IA't' 'l'IIERE IS J\ ENVIR01~MEN'l1 

SO THAT CONTINUED EDUCATION AND LEARNING IS MET, 

SPEAKING FROM PERSONAL EXPERIENCE OF 35 YEARS IN THE ACUTE 
C~RE,TO MY tAIEST EXPERIENCE OF 2 YEARS IN LONO TERM CARE, 
THE MEDICAL PICTURE HAS GREATLY F3ROJ\DENED,EVEN THOUGH VARIOUS 
FACILITIES HAVE DOWNSIZED,R!GHTSIZED1WHAT WE SEE NOW ARE EVEN 
MORE ACU11ELY ILL CLIEN'11S AND THERE rs J\ SEVERITY OF DISABILITIES 
AND TRAGEDIES THAT REQUIRE MUCH MORE CARE J\ND EVEN GREl\'l1ER 
NEED FOR THE LTC ADMISSION,IT IS NO LONGER A CASE OF CARING FOR 
MOM,OR DAD IN A GOOD FACILITY,BUT YOUNGER AND MORE ACUTE CASES 
NEED THAT CON'rtNUED CARE. THEREFORE NDLPNA IMPLORES 'rJIESF, 
AGENCIES rro USE THEIR S1'1\Ff' 'rO 'I'HE FULLEST OF THEIR ~APABILI'l1 IES 
AND TO THE EXTENT THAT THEIR SCOPE OF PRACTICE ALLOWS, 

TH1S BRINGS us TO ANOTHER ISSUE THAT NEEDS ADDRESSING. NOT JUS'l1 

HERE IN ND , RUT EVERYWHERE WE ARE TiOOKING A'l1 A SHOR'J'AOE OF 
NURSES. TEN YEARS AGO WHEN WE MET IIERE ON !SSUES,THE I\VERAGE 
AGE(LPN) WAS 41 - 44,W~ ARE NOW LOOKING AT A POPULATION OF 
51 ~ 55 YEARS AND OLDER.THERE IS ALSO A GROUP OUT THERE THAT 
CHOOSE NOT TO WORK AND PRACTICE THEIR PROVBSS!ON BECAUSE,FACE 
IT, SAt,ARIES AND BENEFI'rs ARE NO'l' THE GREATEST I HOURS ARE LONQ . 
AND OETTING I,ONGER,FOR LACK OF S'11/\FF!NG nEINO COMPLETE;THEN 
YOU HAVE THE DILEMA OF CONCERNS OVER SAFETY,NOT ONLY FOR 1rHE 
PUBLIC,BUT NURSES CONCERNS ~VER LtCENSURE PROTECTION, WHAT 
ABOUT THOSE WHO DESIRE TO WORK HERE IN ND , nu'r C1\NNOT I WE TELL 
THEM THAT THEIR YEARS OF F.XPF.RtENCE,KN0WLEDGF.,SIO!,LS AND ABILITIES 
COUNT FOR NAUGHT. CAN WE AFFORD TO tJOSE MORE PROFESSIONAL CARF. -
GIVERS? WE OF NOJ,PN1\ J\tJSO f11 EEf, 'rfl,\11' ND IIAS ME'l1 'l11t0S~ CRI'rERI A 
ANO STAND~ROS SET DY OUTSIDE ENT!TTES,1\LL WE NEED DO IS LOOK 
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TESTIMONY ON SB 2114 
NORTH DAKOTA NURSES ASSOCIATION 

Chairman Price and members of the ·House Hwnan Services Committee. My 
name is Penni Weston. I am a Registered Nurse and a board rrlember of the 
North Dakota Nurses Association (NONA), an organization representing 
professional nurses in ND. 

NONA has been a participant in the workgroups responsible tor fonnulating the 
revisions to the Nurse Practice Act. We appreciated the opportunity to be 
involved in this process and support the revisions with one exception. We are 
not supportive of the exemption for those individuals who provide medications 
in specific settings ( developrnentally disabled treatment centers, human service 
centers, etc.). NONA is fully a.ware that this exemption has been agreed upon as 
a compromise, however we have grave concerns for the safety of the clients 
receiving medications as a result of this compromise. The dictionary defines 
compromise as conceding, giving in or making a deal. Another definition of 
compromise is to compromise care. We believe this is the applicable definition 
in this exemption for the following reasons: 

1. This exemption allows the least trained individual to administer 
medications to some of our least capable citizens. Medication 
administration is a complex skill that requires a broad base of knowledge 
to prevent undesired consequences. It is much more involved than 
simply "handing out pills". The individual administering medication 
must have knowledge of anatomy and physiology (which organs will the 
medication affect), microbiology (what diseases or infections is the 
medication intended to treat), pharmacology (what are the potential side 
effects and allergic reactions), mathematics (what is the correct dosage) 
and medical and legal principles. These must be understood before the 
actual manual skill of giving the medication can be mastered. At the very 
least, licensed nurses should be involved in determining which 
medications can be safely administered by someone who has only 
completed a self-study program. 

2. Client safety is our major concern nnd objection to this exemption. Who 
wiH be monitoring medication administration to assure that the client's 
safety and weJI being is protected? The client will go to a health care 
provider who will issue a prescription. This provider will have no further 
responsibility to the client. The prescription is then tak~n to a pharmacist 
who will place the pills in the bottle and laLel the container. This 



pharmacist will also have no further responsibility or interaction with the 
client. The pharmacist has no opportunity to provide education to the 
client or the person administering the medication about the intended use 
and/or side effects of the prescribed medication. The medication is then 
delivered to the client's care setting. Who then, will be responsible to 
make sure the medication is given at the appropriate time, in the right 
amount and to the right client? Who will educate the staff as to what side 
effects to watch for and under what conditions it would not be 
appropriate to give the medication? 

A recent report from the IOM (Institute of Medicine) demonstrates that 
errors are being made at alarming rates. Medication errors are one of the 
areas that have surfaced as being one of the most troublesome. Note that 
this report indicates patient safety is being jeopardized in health care 
settings where licensed nurses are administering medications. Common 
sense would tell us that if medication errors were jeopardizing patient 
safety where licensed nurses are involved in the process of medication 
administration, not having a licensed nurse involved would seem to 
indicate almost sure danger. 

3. The ND Board of Nursing has defined medication administration as a 
nursing task. The board has also defined feeding as a nursing task. 
Feeding assistants have been utilized in the long term care setting to 
assist with this nursing task. The Health Care Financing Administration 
(HCFA) has taken the position that anyone that perfonns the "simple 
task" of feeding must complete tho CNA course. This course includes 
content on how to take a blood pressure, pulse, report signs of infection 
and many other topics. It seems inconsistent and illogical to think then, 
that someone with less training shouid be allowed to administer 
,nedications such as anticonvulsants (prevent seizures), psychotropics 
(mood altedng), antihypertensives (blood pressure and heart 
medications), and oral hypoglycemics ( diabetes medications). 

4. Medical symptoms may not have been the primary reason for someone 
entering these settings, ho•,,ever, as the aging process occurs and medical 
problems arise, so does the need tor nursing care; particularly medication 
administration. The individual who administers these rnedications should 
know about drug toxicities, side effects, drug/drug interactions and other 
potential problems that 1nay al'ise as a result of the client requiring 
medication for treatment of a medical problem. tf the individual 
administering the medications does not have this ktlow!edge, then the 



person who is supervising the medication administration must know this 
in order to safely delegate this task. 

As previously stated, NDNA does not support this exemption. The pre1nise of 
professional licensing is to protect the public from unscrupulous providers. 
Exemptions to a practice act serve only to weaken the protection of the public. 

There are currently exemptions to the practice act, however, there is usually still 
a nurse involved in some way. Families who give nursing care to a fami1y 
member are exempted, but a licensed nurse is often involved through home care 
or hospice services. Individuals rendering assistance in a disaster are exempt, 
but licensed nurses have always been involved such as providing leadership and 
direction for care in the shelters. 

In closing, NDNA believes licensed nurses should be and must be involved in 
any setting where nursing care is rendered, either through direct care or 
delegation. Delegation implies licensed nnrse responsibility, which cannot be 
pennissive under the law. 

Thank you for the opportunity to testify on SB 2114 and I would be happy to 
answer any questions committee members might have. 

I 



To: House Human Service Committee 
Representative-Clara Sue Price 

From: Melana Howe, RN 
Dir. of Patient Care Services 
Hettinger, North Dakota 

I am a registered nurse, and work in healthcare administration, 

As an employer of healthcare personnel with West River Regional Medical Center and President 
of the North Dakota Organization of Nurse Executives (the clinical supportive entity of the North 
Dakota Healthcare Association), I am speaking in support of Senate Bill 2114 and specifically 
Sections One and Three as they relate to supervision through delegation and I icensure. 

First, North Dakota is unique in its' standards for assignment and delegations. The nurse's role 
and accountability for care are defined by the following questions: 

l. Who is directing the care'? 
2, From whom does the unlicensed assistive personnel get the authority to act'? 
3. What are the nursing activities for which the nurse is held accountable? 

In numerous lwalthcare facilities across ND, individuals, regal'dless of title or education, arc 
performing interventions delegated and supervised by a licensed nurse. These individuals arc 
assistive to the nurse, regardless of title, The desired ~hangc in tlic Practice Act recognizes the 
individual's education, trnini11g1 and competency. It also recognizes those individuals' scope of 
practice that overlaps with nursing, It sets the stage fot mutual respect between professionals, 
such as medical ;tssistant, surgic.al technician, dialysis technician, or medical technicians, As 
Director of Patient Cat'e, I do hiring, delegating to supervising, disciplining of RTs, EMS, 
Medical Assistants, and midlevels, 

Secondly, ND practitionc"s must be licensed to practice tltll'sing, This section would exempt 
individuals licensed in another jurisdiction with n ND employer to attend orie11tntion, nwctlngs, 
or required continuing education without obtaining a ND License. Specifically, henlthcarc 
facilities located on the North Dakota, Mi1111(,sota, South Dukota und Montnnu bordct·s have 
satellite cllnics and smaller hospitals, which employ nurses licensed i11 Minnesota, Montam11 und 
South Dnkota, 

The ND BON should be commended on their collabornt1011 with nursing cxccutives1 such as 
myself, to prepare for the desired revisions of the Stanclurds of Prncticc for nursing, Healthcare 
is changing rapidly und drastlcnlly, The proposed revisions urc timely, pructical, n11d mukc good 
sense, Thunk you, 
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Testimony on SB 2114 

House Human Services Committee 
March 7, 2001 

Chairman Price and members of the House Human Services Committee, thank you for 
the opportunity to testify on SB 2114. My name is Shelly Peterson, President of the 
North Dakota Long Term Care Association. I am here today representing our 
members; nursing facilities, basic care facilities and assisted living facilities. 

We are supportive of all aspects of SB 2114 and respectively request your support. 

Prior to talking about SB 2114 I would like to briefly outline to the Committee why I 
am here today. Last fall the Chairman of our A8sociation was asked by a legislator 
what our position was on the educational requir~ments for nurses. That question 
prompted statewide discussion. 

\Ve conducted discussion groups in six regiO',IS of the state, asked the National 
Association of Directors ofNursing Administration of North Dakota for their input and 
position, discussed it within our Re8iuent Issues Committee and Legbiative Committee, 
explored the topic with Jegislator \ conducted a survey of long term care nurses and 
finally at our December 13, 2000 J\1embership Meeting formulated our position and 
solution. During this time I work .. .f'. closely with Dr. Constance Kalanek, Executive 
Director of tne North Dakota Board of Nursing, exploring options that might be 
acceptable to both parties. During our explot-atory process we found the majority of 
res,pondents, including nurses supported repealing the current educational standards, 
however this position would be strongly opposed by the North Dakota Board of 
Nursing. 

In the true spirit of working toward common ground, the North Dakota Board of 
Nursing and our Association reached a "third alternative" that I truly be1ieve will 
benefit North Dakota, consumers ofhealth care and the nursing profession. Section 7, 
under item 3 on page 8 of SB 2114 allows North Dakota to continue to maintain their 
academic requirements for nurses but allows those nurses who hold an out-of-state 
license, who apply for licensure in North Dakota and find they don't meet the 
educational requirements, to have two options in order to be allowed to practice in 
Nc,rth Dakota, 



Currently a nurse who does not meet the educational requirements applies for a 
transitional license. In order to obtain a transitional license, a nurse must show I) 

completion of a nursing education program approved by another state's Board of 
Nu1sing; 2) a current license by examination, approved by the State's requirement for 
license by examination; and 3) an unencumbered license. 

Section 7 provides the nurse-applicant described above a second option. As you know 
the only option available now is the nurse applicant must obtain an Associate Degree 
(LPN) or Baccalaureate Degree (RN) with a major in nursing within eight years. This 
section adds continuing education as the second option available to the nurse. So rather 
than having only one option of returning to school, the nurse would agree to 30 hours 
of continuing education every license renewal cycle. A renewal cycle is two years. 
fhe continuing education par~meters would be set by the North Dakota Board of 
Nursing, and could be tailored to the area of nursing practice relevant to the transitional 
nurse's job duties, if they so choose. 

As it stand, this bill has no impact on the 400 nurses presently in transition, although 
it is anticipated the North Dakota Board of Nursing would address this issue by rule. 
SB 2114 further does not address the nurse whose license lapsed because they did not 
obtain the proper academic requirements within eight years, who may now wish to 
practice under the CEU provision. lt would only be through rule promogation by the 
North Dakota Board of Nursing could these situations be: addressed. SB 2114 simply 
allows another option to those nurses deemed competent by another state, who desire 
a North Dakota license to practice here. 

As you may be aware, long term care is in a nursing crisis and if this bill removes one 
barrier to employment in North Dakota, we believe it merits your serious consideration 
and adoption. Currently we have 1,000 open positions in nursing facilities across North 
Dakota. The top vacant position is CNA, with RN's and LPN's second. Two-thirds 
of the nursing facilities term themselves in a staffing crisis and in 2000, two out of 
every five nursing facilities voluntarily stoppeJ admissions because ofinsufficient staff 
to care for residents, 



For nursing facilities LPN turnover is 24% and RN turnover is 33%. With the average 
age oflong tenn care LPN's at 43 years and RN's at 44 year, this problem will become 
even more acute in ten and fifteen years when nurses decide to retire. 

We recognize we have many barriers to employment. Salary and benefits, demands of 
the job, working evenings and weekends and rural North Dakota are a few of the 
barriers. We believe SB 2114 will retnove one barrier by al1owing nurses duly licensed 
by another state, to practice in North Dakota. 

I wouJd Hke to bring to your attention a small error on page 8, related to the CEU 
provision. On line 24 "of' should be replaced with "or". The sentence should r~ad 
"Renewal requires proof of progression towards meeting the educatio11al - academic 
requirements or thirty hours of continuing education activi~." 

Thank you for your consideration of SB 2114. I would be happy to answer any 
questions you might have at this time. 

Shelly Peterson, President 
North Dakota Long Term Care Association 
1900 North 11 th Street 
Bismarck, ND 58501 
(701) 222 .. 0660 
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March 5, 2001 

F1om: Roger Gilbertson, MD, 
President and CEO, MeritCare 
North Dakota Registered Lobbyist Badge Number 207 

Evelyn Quigley, MN, RN 
Senior Executive and Chief Nursing Officer, MeritCare 
North Dakota Registered Lobbyist Badge Number 214 

To: Honorable Representative Clara Sue Price, Chairperson 
Members of the House Human Services Committee 
Fifty-Seventh l.egislativc Assembly 
State of North Dakota 

Re: SB 2114 - Nursing Practice Standards 

Dear Honorable Representative Price and Members of the House Human s~rvices Committee: 

The purpose of thls letter is to encourage a DO PASS for SB 2114. We respectfully request this docwnent be {iled 
with th-. House Human Services CommitteLJ proceedings. 

MeritCare Health System is comm.itteri to the health of individuals and communities we serve by providing 
excellence in healthcare, As a health system, MeritCare represents 335 physicians, 4,9 physician assistants and 63 
advanced practice registered nurses (nurse practitioners, certified registered nurse anesthetists. and clinical nurse 
specialists) in 68 specialty fields of medicine. Some 830 registered nurses and 355 Jicensed pr,,ctical nurses provide 
compassionate care as MeritCare associates to the patients and families in the reglor1 we are privileged to serve. 
Over 18,000 people are adm.lttcd annually to MeritCare Hospital. More than l.2 mlllion clinical office visits are 
provided ln 34 clinical settings throughout a 150-m.He geographic radius of Fargo/Nloorhead including smaller 
communities in eastern and central North Dakota. MeritCare partners with commu11ities by providing clinical 
services to eleven community clinics and providing services to six nursing homes In North Dakota. 

It is our belief that a DO PASS VOTE on SB 2114 would provide for the tramH!onal llcensuro needed to provide 
Incentive £or nurses ltt border communities to begin practicing In North Dakolla, It would allow time to 
address the long-term need for solutions rather than a dramaUc dismantling c,r a system of excellence In 
nursing, 

MeritCare Is willing to work with leaders across the state to design 1 test 1 and imploment creative solutions to the 
shared crisis for nurses to ~rov\de the much needed care in vario,1s settings, both urban and rural, long tenn care. 
d1nic1I, home care, or hospital setting. Please feel free to contact Ev Quigley, MN, RN, at (701 )234-6953 or 
eyguialey@meritcare.com or Susan Bosak, Public Policy and Oovemment RelatiMs, at (70 I )234-6332 or 
WJnbosgk@merltcare.com for further discussion of this or any heallh-relnted Issues. 
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1 1/1 BREA'/11 (JF FRES/1 CARH" 

March 7, 2001 

Testimony of: Glenn Thom, BS, MMgt, RRT 
President, North Dakota Society for Respiratory Care (NDSRC) 

Regarding: SB 2114, Rcmigrosscd 

As President of the NDSRC, I register these comments in relation tn Hccngrosscd SB 2114, a hill 
couccmcd with the nurse practice act. 

As rcspirutory therapists lic~.'llscd to ddivcr patient l'HrL' alongside the m11·scs in th,.: srntL' of Nmlh 
Dukotu, we feel the umcndml'11ts made in Rccngrosscd SB 2114 ari.• positive changes to till' North 
Dukotu Century Code, with one.' 110tuhll· cxccptio11. 

Linc8 Jund 4 of pugc S should lw delch:d. Ruk 54-05-04-0J of tile North Dakota Nursi1w 
Bourd'~ Nursing Sla11<l11rds awl /),•IC'gutio11: A Uuidc• to North /)(lkota Jloard o(Nursing R11lc•., 
indicate~ thnl criteria for nursing i11tcrvc11tions that may bl' tkkgall'd includes "a standard and 
um~trnngcahk proccdlll'L' whkh dm-..; nnt t"L·quirl' 1111y cxc1\·1sL' ofi11dq11:rnlL·111 m1rsi11t1,j11dg1m·111" 

l~sscntial requisites of iu::' health can: prnctitiom.·r hl'i11g allowed lo pruvidl.' medicatio11 to 
chronicully or acutely l'ompromiscd clients include: 

a) Knowk•dg1.: of a 111cdkatio11 's actions ("why ii dm.·s what it does"). 
b) Knowl~dgc 0L1 mcdicution's intcrnc:tions (''hnw dncs it am:cl other 111cdil'utions' 

actions") 
c) Knowlcdg•.: of side effects ("what arc co111111011 and not-so-common delctc1fous 

reactions to this medication?"). 
d) Interventions required for any adverse reactions to either the medication or 

method by which the medication is administ~rcd. 
c) Interventions required for lack of response to the lllL'diration 's intended effect. 

The clients described in lines 3 and 4 of page 5 do not fall into the category of persons which can 
safely be covered by the services of "unlicensed assistivc personnel". 

We recommend that unlicensed assistivc personnel be excluded from the delivery of medications 
to residents of facilities licensed under Chapter 25-16. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 
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e ldentftylng tho need• of the cllenl; 
t,, C<llllU"lnij lht plan of care, 

Coneldc,rlng the circum1lances and Httlng; ancJ 
.~!aUrJ'!Q lhe availability of ad!9~"'.!!.!!!.~i~.clu~~~~pe1V!_!!_o~---------· 
lannlng for delegation lhat mu11 Include: 
a Criteria tor nurelng lnlerventlon1 that may be delogat•Jd ond lncludos 

(1) The nature of the 1p1tclflc nursing Intervention, lie comploxity, and the knowleooe and skill& requlrod lo perform tho intorvont10,1• 

(2) The rnsull& of the lnleNenllon are predlciaole; 
(3) A determination that the potential risk to client I& minimal, ancJ 
(4) A standard and unchangeable procedure which doe11 not require any &xo1cise of Independent mnlng judgmonl 

b Selo<..11on and ldenllficallon of nurse a&&lelants to whom nursing inteNonllons m11y be delegatou. Llconeed nurses who assess and 1don11t1 thu 111.,i,t• 
as&lijtanl'a training, experlen~, and compotency lo provide a selected nursing lntorvenllon shall. 
(1) hach tho nuralng !nlerventlont; 
(2) ObaoNo the nurse a&1lstanl's demonstrallo11 of cuiront competence to perlorm tho nwelng lntuNe11li.:>n, and 
(3) Documo11t Ille nurse aHlslanl's competency lo perform lhe nursing intervunllon, 

c Solocllon and lcJentlf1callon of the metho~s of supervision 11nd the licensed nurses responsible lo provide supurvla1on. Tho mo111orJ ol supo,v1~1u11 ,11111 
lhe frequoncy of asses11mant, Inspection, and evaluation must be dotormlnod by: 
( 1) The willingness and ability of the client to be Involved In lho manaooment of the client's own caru; 
(2) The stability of the client's condttlon: 
(3) Tho oxperlenr.o and competency of the nurw assistant providing tho nursing Intervention. and 

---··-· {.11 Tho .J!tyol of nursing Jydgmeuqulrvd tor lho dolupalod _nursing _lntervonllon ____ .. ·--····- .. --·---· .. ___ .. ________ . ________ ----··. _. 
3. lmplomontatlon of the delegated nursing Interventions by providing dlr\lcllcm and 1Jupervlslon 

n Olrect1on mu11t Include: 
( 1) The nursi, assl&tant's acco 1 a to written Instructions on how tho nurs,nu mtorvent1on Is to bo po,fvrmad lncludmg 

(a) Rea&ont1 why the nursing Intervention Is nocouory 
(b) Methods usod to perform the nursing lntorvMt1011, 
(c) Docurnonlatlon or the nursing Intervention, am1 
(d) Obsc1v11Uon of the clktnt's ruspont10 

(2) The lle<tnsed nurso'a: 
(II) Mo111to,1ng to ossuro comµl1u11co with ostabl1shori stnnc1nrds of prucllcu om/ policies; amJ 
(b) L:vnluo\lng c;llonl ra&pon&as and ottolnmonl of gouls 1olulod to lhA delugoted 11urs111g mtervunl1on 

b Suporvision m(jy br provided by tho doloy11t1n11 llconsud nursu or l>y nlho, hconsod nu,sos 11,0 cJugtou oncJ t1101l1uu of ':i\llH.irv1!>,o" 11H11J11lld 11111!,1 1.,1c 
dotormlnod by tho licensed nurse after an evaluation of tho 11ppwp11nto fot:tors 11wolvot1 including 
(I) 1 ho numbor <1f client& !or whom nursing lnto1ve111ions u,o dulcgalotl, 
(2) The stability of the r.ond1t1011 of tho client; 
(3) Thu t1u/r11nu tllld capability of tho nurse ase1stn111 to wt1om n10 mirair,IJ lntorvont1on wns dolol.)utud 
(4) Tho notu,o of the nursing lntorventlon doklgatod; nr1d 

···-- __ (5)_Tho proxln~ ond avollol>lllty of lho llconsotJ nurso wlum thu.rnirs:no l11torvo11l1on Is porforrnou ···-· ...•.. _ .. _ . 
4 El/oluotlon of tho tlologotod nurs(ng lntorvontlona through 

o. Moa11u1omo11t 011110 c111mt's rosponse ond gool attul11mun1101atucJ lo Iha delogulod 1nlervenlions, 
b Mod1flcatlon of nursing lnlorvontlons £16 lnd1caled by client's rospor,so, 
c Ev11lu11llon or tho porforrnance of the lntervonllo11 by tho nwse ussislant, 
d Feodoack from nurso asalstont; and 

__ e. Provision or foodba9k to nl!!!!.!!!J!!ant -----··----·----------- -·------.. ·-------- ______ ,. __ ..... 
64-06-04,06. lntervonllona that may not be doltgated. lnlorvonlluns that roqulro nursing k11owlodyo, skill, ond JUdgmunl moy not be uelugutud liy l!it• 
Uconsod nurse to Q nurse anlstant. These activities Include 
1 Physical, psychological, and social assessment which roqu1ros professional nursing /u:.!ymont, lntervonl1on, reforral, or followup 
2 bevotopmunl of nursing diagnosis and care goals. 
3. Formulation of the plan of nursing care 
4 Eval•J11llon of the effectiveness of the nursing care provldttd. 
5 Teachlno excopt for thal related to promoUng lndopondence in act1villes of dally livmg 
6. Counseling, excopt Iha! the nurse asslslant may be Instructed to recognize and report basic dovlalions from healthy bohav1or and co111111unicat,01 1 1,i.111o:r1••, 

and may pre,11ldo h$lening, empathy, and support 
7 Coordination and management of care Including collaborating, consulllng, and rnferrlng 
8 Triage. 
9 Medicallon administration may not be delegated unless the nurse ass1slanl has met the requirements of ND.~C chapter 54-07-05 Ttie exwpt1,)11 1', 1·,' ,., , ,1 

liCIJJ:!l?!!,d nurse spttcificaUy delegates to a cpecific nurso assi!llonl tho administration of_a spec1f1c modicat1on for a ~!3cir1ci!!_e_~!! _____ _ 
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